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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
(the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and that there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com for
at least seven days from the date of its publication.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
2wl i v

China Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited (formerly
known as China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) currently conduct
the business of manufacture and sales of liquefied coalbed gas whose
operations are located in the PRC. The Company was incorporated
in Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability in
July 2002 and was initially listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 August
2003.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of exploitation,
liguefaction production and sales of natural gas in the PRC.
Headquartered in Beijing. The Group’s production of liquefied coalbed
gas is in Shanxi Qinshui Basin which boasts the richest liquefied
coalbed gas, while its distribution network extends to Shanxi,
Guangxi and Guangdong Provinces, etc.

In order to stabilise our natural gas supply and hence raise the
utilisation of our liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) plant, the Group has
made significant investment in resources exploration and exploitation
at the coalbed methane blocks located in Yangcheng, Shanxi, since
July 2011. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had successfully
supplied gas to the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) plant. The
commercial production of coalbed gas has transformed our Group
into a vertically integrated natural gas company and continued to
enhance our leading position in China’s unconventional gas market.

The Group will adhere to the principle of “social responsibility is of
overriding importance” while exploring and developing in the new
energy sector with an aim to provide the world with high-quality clean
energy and keep improving and promoting the harmonious
coexistence of man and nature.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

OVERALL BUSINESS REVIEW

In order to raise our natural gas supply and enhance earnings
prospect, we decided to turn ourselves into a vertically integrated
natural gas producer a few years ago. Today, on behalf of our
Company, | am pleased to announce to our investors that we have
made significant progress in 2012. As at 31 December 2012, we
have completed the ground work and drilling of 220 wells in the
Yangcheng gas block and set up Yangcheng County Shunan Gas
Gathering Pipeline Co. Ltd. We had the Yangcheng County Huiyang
Company completed gas supply pipeline construction and the first
booster station construction and trial operation for Qinshui Shuntai
Liguefaction Plant. In order to ensure the normal operation of group
companies, the Group also set up Beijing Leason Jiaye Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. (It F 8% 57 35 82 )R £ 4i1 B PR 2 &) in Beijing
to provide sufficient technical service for group companies. All these
actions we have taken are to ensure that we minimise our business
risks and at the same time maximise our shareholders’ return in the
coming years. At present, Ruyang Company has completed
configuration of distribution facilities within the industrial zone during
the year, and the electric power supply problems obsessed us will
be properly resolved at the end of 2012. We will take advantage of
the 30-year exclusive right to operate in gas pipeline infrastructure
and provision of piped natural gas to conduct related businesses
aggressively. Due to the instability in cooperative factory’s natural
gas supply, as well as the demand for capital resources required to
complete our drilling plan, year 2013 will still be a year full of
challenges. We will continue to enhance our efforts to implement
the development plan, with an aim to strengthen our leading position
in China’s coalbed methane (“CBM?”) industry.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN 28

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION
BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite unforeseeable difficulties during the drilling process, such
as bad weather and technical problems, we have successfully
completed the ground work and drilling of 220 CBM wells on time.
Among these 220 wells, there are 85 wells ready for immediate gas
output as at 31 December 2012. The gas output volume of these 85
wells is estimated to be 1,500 cubic metre per day per well on
average by the end of 2013. With the increase of the number of
wells and gas output volume in production wells, we believe that
once our gas pipeline connecting the gas field in Yangcheng to our
LNG plant in Qinshui put into operation in 2012, our self-sufficiency
in gas supply will further increase and thereby enhancing the earnings
prospect. We estimate the total gas production to exceed 300,000
cubic metre per day by the end of 2013 and 500,000 cubic metre
per day by the end of 2014.

LNG BUSINESS REVIEW

Although the whole LNG industry in Shanxi, including ourselves,
continues to be affected by the gas supply shortage, resulting in a
lower utilisation rate of our Qinshui LNG plant, we take this an
opportunity for us to implement our repair and maintenance program
and upgrade our LNG facilities. The Qinshui LNG plant has been
affected by shortage in cooperative factory’s natural gas supply in
the first half of 2012, but the utilisation rate of the LNG plant gradually
improved as we started to get supply from the Yangcheng gas block
by the end of 2012. At present, Qinshui liquefaction plant is
conducting phase Il expansion project, and it is expected to put into
operation this year thus improve the liquefaction capacity greatly.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

MARKETING BUSINESS REVIEW

On the other hand, we have also taken different measures to
maximise the profitability of our gas sale. In 2012, as regard to the
gas projects along the domestic commodity transportation routes,
we invested and built 4 gas skid stations along two mature and stable
transportation routes in Henan and Hebei, and actively expanded
the automobile official refill station project and end-user development
and maintenance. With the related work to further promote, we will
be able to reduce the uncertainty in future natural gas sales and
optimise our sales mix, i.e. shifting towards a balanced mix from a
residential user dominated mix. We will strive to ramp up the business
progressively in 2013, and contribute more earnings to the Group.

EMPHASISE ON TECHNOLOGICAL
ADVANCEMENT

One key factor of our success in our exploration and production
business is technological advancement. Our belief is “technology
for reserve”. We believe that only through advancing our CBM
extraction technology can we lower our CBM production costs as a
whole and, more importantly, to raise our overall proven reserve level.
To this end, we established Beijing Leason Jiaye Energy Technology
Co., Ltd. and built a professional technical team to provide advanced
technical services. In the future, we will be investing heavily in
developing and advancing our CBM extraction technology and
techniques.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN 28

OUTLOOK

Natural gas is in a period of rapid development. The current
consumption level for natural gas shows great potential in further
development, recognising the rising advocacy of safer - especially
under the recent nuclear power crisis - and cleaner energy. However,
the existing conventional natural gas production is unlikely to satisfy
China’s strong demand of natural gas in the coming years; and we
believe that it is inevitable that the PRC government would need to
encourage the unconventional gas production. With all the favourable
policies and measures in place, there is no doubt that the Company,
as a leading CBM company, will gain major benefits. We will seise
this opportunity to grow our CBM business on a long term sustainable
basis and would try our very best to maximise our shareholders’
investment return.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our team for all
their hard work in the past years for turning the Group a better
enterprise than | have ever seen. Going forward, | believe that our
team will pay more efforts in making the Group one of the leading
enterprises in China’s CBM industry.

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

27 March 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of approximately
RMB183,834,000 for the year, representing a decrease of
approximately 27.6% compared with last year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to:

(i)  approximately RMB80,224,000 decline in sales of liquefied
coalbed gas in China. The decline in sales was attributable to:
firstly, the LNG plants being shut down for equipment
maintenance from February 2012 to April 2012; secondly,
decrease in liquefied gas production and insufficient LNG
supplied to the market due to default of China United Coalbed’s
suppliers and their suspension of supply of piped coalbed gas;
thirdly, significant decrease in sales of trading liquefied coalbed
gas during the year due to unstable prices in the LNG market
in 2012.

The Group recorded gross loss of approximately RMB28,461,000
for the year, mainly attributable to:

() the LNG plants being shut down for equipment maintenance
and the supplier suspend the supply of piped coalbed gas,
resulting in increase in production costs as a result of the
production capability of LNG plants not being fully utilized;

(i) significant decline in turnover due to the significant decrease
in sales of trading liquefied coalbed gas during the year.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for approximately RMB55,130,000,
compared with the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
approximately RMB45,016,000 for last year. The reasons for the loss
are as follows:

(i) decrease in gross profit from main business of RMB42,632,000
as a result of lower market price of LNG compared to 2011
and the increase in production costs of our plants as well as
significant decline in turnover due to the significant decrease
in sales of trading liquefied coalbed gas during the year;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
e ) i

(ih

(i)

(iv)

the loss of approximately RMB2,339,000 arising from
impairment on goodwill of our piped natural gas operation as a
result of the difficult operating environment that has lasted since
2010 in Guangxi Province, PRC;

increase in the compensation income (included in other income)
of approximately RMB16,690,000 to compensate for the delay
in completion of power supply system in the industrial zone
located in Ruyang County; and

decline in the fair value of other financial assets of approximately
RMB17,051,000. Successful achievement of the Warranted
Profit of RMB40 million for the year of 2012 by Luoyang Shunhe
resulted in fair value loss on the Group’s other financial assets.

The balance of the Group’s trade and other payables increased
significantly by approximately RMB152,791,000. This was mainly
attributable to the Group’s focus on natural gas exploration and
extraction business in 2012, which needed ground work, drilling and
pipeline placement for CBM wells. These projects are now under
construction without delivery, inspection and settlement, resulting in
significant increase in property, plant and equipment payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT
PROSPECTS

Natural gas exploration and extraction:

As at 31 December 2012, the Group already completed the ground
work and drilling of 220 CBM wells, of which 85 wells were ready for
immediate gas output. The number of wells drilled was slightly below
our previous expectation due to geological and technical difficulties.
However, the Group has already solved such geological and technical
issues and the Board expect to accelerate the drilling program in
2013. The Group expects to complete the ground work and drilling
of 320 CBM wells by the end of 2013 and 500 CBM wells by the
end of 2014. The average gas production volume of the existing 85
wells is 800 cubic meter per day per well currently and is expected
to increase to 1,500 cubic meter per day per well on average by the
end of 2013. The Group expects its overall gas output to exceed
300,000 cubic meter per day by the end of 2013 and 500,000 cubic
meter per day by end of 2014. As the construction of the Group’s
natural gas pipeline for delivery of gas from the production field to
the liquefaction plant has been essentially completed in 2012, the
Group will start to generate revenue, profit and cash flow from the
gas operation approximately the same time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e ) i

Liquefaction operation:

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s LNG capacity was 500,000
cubic metre per day. However, due to the tight supply of domestic
natural gas within China, the Group experienced difficulty in sourcing
enough natural gas feed for its downstream liquefaction purpose,
and therefore, the utilisation of our LNG plants was low and
unsatisfactory. However, the above situation has been improved after
the Group has started its own gas production in the fourth quarter
of 2012. Furthermore, the Group suspended the operation of the
LNG plant for an overhaul between February 2012 and April 2012,
which resulted in the sharp decline in turnover and operating cashflow
of our Group. The LNG plant has resumed operation since May 2012,
After the major overhaul, the Group expects the LNG plant to become
more efficient and cost effective, that will increase the revenue, profit
and cashflow contribution to the Group in 2013 because of the
increase in our self-produced gas production supply.

Marketing and sales:

In view of the strong demand of liquefied natural gas in central China
due to the rising industrial and residential demands, the Group
developed the vertical integration structure to supply liquefied natural
gas from its LNG plant in Qinshui County, Shanxi Province to its
customers in surrounding areas through its own distribution pipes.
The vertical integration structure can reduce risk of gas supply
disruption and increase profit margins. The Group can also decide
its customer mix in order to maximise the profit margins. In 2013,
the Group will actively expand the natural gas consumption market
by making the most of its exclusive natural gas operation right in
Ruyang County, Henan Province and in Beiliu City, Guangxi Province.
Meanwhile, through the project of building gas stations along the
mature transportation routes within China and the market
development and maintenance of end users, the Group is able to
secure a long term demand from major users while the Group can
optimise the overall sales mix and therefore maximise our profit
margin.

RAICET

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—08 KEEHNK
LR RER BT XR500,0005 /5K » &
il ARFPEEARATHEERER - AEE
HURBREANKARRERET THNRK
1t Bt BIOIWBRIERARTHF B EER
KB RWIBIE - A - EAEBR T —=
FENEERBATEERARE UL
MBS ESRE o i AEEEZT—=
FZAME-_ZE——FHAMGHMEERE
AARLRHEEWHEITRE - BHALE
MEXBENEERERESEI TR B2F
—ZFR AR - RIERARIRE RIEE
o ENIB 21 AEEEFRIERART
e EEANE BEAKANG  ME
BT —=F BHRBEMEERAREEH
FEHVIE AN - AL R AR TR AN E B U -
B RRSTENERIBEEEMER -

MBEHREERE

BRI R NMEEFKETHES P EF HOR
ERARBHRER  AEEEY TEH 8
L& BBEFNOHEES  AELR
W FEE DK BB RAE R IR SR TR ) ) 128 [ 35K
MEPHERICRAR - EH —BILHAERE
A ERARB DB R - WIRFFE
o REEMIPRAEAEREFPES - UEAR
BiREMEER - —T—=F AEEER
DB BFEBENAEELGFORARBRE
L BRIERTORARBREEE B
BEABRARBETS o R EREARR
BB B AR IR I R R ISR VA B R S AR AR
BPMMIZRINLEE BRI &SRS
TZAPMEHFTR - RS MERER LR
HEMES  EMEAREMIRESFER -

14 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

However, the Group’s operations in Ruyang Industrial Zone have
not started during the Review Period mainly due to the delay in the
completion of the power supply system in the Ruyang Industrial Zone
which was newly constructed. The management company of the
Ruyang Industrial Zone explained that the delay in completion of the
power supply system was due to some unforeseeable technical and
administrative difficulties, and agreed to pay the Group a
compensation income for all the losses incurred due to the delay.
After a series of discussion and negotiation with the management
company of the Industrial Zone, the Group was granted a before tax
compensation income of approximately RMB34,000,000 in 2011.

Having said that, we were informed by the management company
of the Ruyang Industrial Zone that the power supply system has
been completed and started to supply power on 29 October 2012.
And we started the gas sales to our customers on December 2012.
Moreover, the Group will increase the utilization of the LNG plant by
participating in the regional gas trading market to generate more
revenue. Nevertheless, the profit margin of the gas trading business
will be lower than that of the piped natural gas business.

The Board have been informed that the power supply system is
expected to be completed and starting operating before the
beginning of 2013, and by then the sales of gas to our customers
will be commenced after testing. Moreover, the Group will increase
the utilisation of the LNG plant by participating in the regional gas
trading market so as to generate more revenue. Nevertheless, this
will not be our major business. The trading business only generates
a thin margin, but it is one of the measures to minimise the idle
capacity and to generate more revenue.

The Group believes that it is not in breach of the obligation under
GEM Listing Rule 17.10 because the Group was reasonably confident
that the compensation income from the management company of
the Ruyang Industrial Zone would be paid up, as stipulated in the
aforesaid agreements. Alternatively, if the management failed to
satisfy the compensation obligation, Mr. Wang, the vendor of the
acquisition in relation to, among other things, Luoyang Shunhe would
be required to compensate the Group to make up the profit shortfall
of the Warranted Profit of RMB40 million in 2012, which in turn will
not materially affect the revenue of the Group. As such, the Directors
consider that the delay in completion of power supply system has
not triggered the Company'’s disclosure obligations under GEM Listing
Rule 17.10.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e ) i

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net assets of approximately
RMB1,022,703,000, including cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB29,437,000. To minimise financial risks, the Group
implements stringent financial and risk management strategies and
avoids the use of highly-geared financing arrangements. The Group’s
gearing ratio, calculated by the Group’s total external borrowings
divided by its shareholders’ fund, was approximately 11%.

The Group is opportunistic in obtaining financing to further improve
the cash position given that the natural gas drilling program is capital
intensive. If the Group has adequate financing in the future (whether
it is from internal cash flow due to increased gas sales, or from fund
raising), the Group will accelerate the drilling program. Apart from
the intended investment in upstream CBM exploration and extraction,
the Group does not have any other plan for acquisition or investment,
disposal or scale-down of any current business.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has an aggregate of 533
employees, of which 88 are research and development staff, 221
are engineering and customer service staff, 192 administrative staff
and 32 marketing staff. During the year, the staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration and share-based payment) was
approximately 24,834,000 (2011: approximately RMB28,167,000).

The salary and bonus policy of the Group is principally determined
by the performance of the individual employee. The Group will on an
ongoing basis, provides opportunity for professional development
and training to its employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Risk in Foreign Exchange

The group entities collect most of the revenue and incur most of
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The Directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in the functional currency of each individual group entity.

Significant Investment

The Group did not have significant investment as at 31 December
2012.

OUTLOOK

The Board believes that the Company will sustain long term
development and maintain its leading position in China’s natural gas
market given its vertical integration business structure that reduces,
or eliminates risks in gas supply, gas price fluctuation and earning
visibility.

In light of a publication regarding the 12th Five-Year Plan for the
period from 2011 to 2015 of the PRC government, natural gas users
in China will increase by 100 million to a total of 250 million. Viewing
from the national gas market, the Group has observed inadequate
gas supply in general that has rendered midstream gas processing
companies in the market in an adverse operating environment
causing low utilisation and loss.

Unlike most of the above midstream gas processing companies
whose business models only focus on certain areas of the gas
production or supply chain, the Group has its own gas production in
upstream operation which enhance the Group’s self-sufficiency in
gas supply to the mid-stream LNG plants and downstream gas sales
and distribution, and therefore reducing the gas supply risk in the
long run. The current situation of inadequate gas supply and the
consequent loss arising from operation are only temporary and it is
likely that the business will turn profitable and show phenomenal
growth as the Group’s gas production accelerates in the near future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e ) i

Furthermore, the Group, with its own gas supply, is less affected by
gas price fluctuation caused by international natural gas market.
Nevertheless, the increasing gas price in the international market
would make our gas products and supply more competitive and
increase our profit margin given our lower operation cost of our full
participation in the natural gas value chain. The Group believes that
its revenue and profit will increase in the long run. More importantly,
the vertical integration strategy would enable the Group to sustain a
long term development and become a strong market leader.

After a series of corporate restructuring, the Group believes that the
build-out of the Group’s vertical integration structure is almost
complete and now it is high time for the Group to move to the second
stage - the growing phase. The Group expects to turn the business
into profitable in the near future.

On the upstream exploration and production front, the number of
wells ready for gas output would increase and the daily production
per well would rise as the wells become more mature. The Group
expects the daily gas production volume to be over 300,000 cubic
meter per day by the end of 2013 and 500,000 cubic meter per day
by end of 2014. On the other hand, the construction of the pipeline
transporting gas from the Group’s own gas fields to the LNG plants
in Qinshui County has been essentially completed by the end of
2012; after then the Group can raise its own LNG plants utilisation
by feeding more self-produced gas to the LNG plants. More
importantly, the utilisation of the downstream LNG transportation
trunks and the storage facilities would increase too. As the demand
for gas in China remains strong and the Group’s supply constraint
unleashed, the Group expects the gas sales in 2013 to grow
significantly and the profitability to improve materially.

In the near future, the Group will mainly focus on upstream CBM
exploration and production on the existing gas CBM assets.
Meanwhile, the Group will be opportunistic in value-accretive
upstream gas asset acquisition, if any.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a)

(b)

Application of Corporate Governance
Principles

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate
governance, with the objectives of (i) the maintenance of
responsible decision making, (ii) the improvement in
transparency and disclosure of information to shareholders,
(i) the continuance of respect for the rights of shareholders
and the recognition of the legitimate interests of shareholders,
and (iv) the improvement in crisis management and the
enhancement of performance by the Group. The Group has
applied the principles set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “HKSE Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules with these objectives in mind.

Promulgation of Company’s Corporate
Governance Code

To this end, the Group has promulgated a set of code on
corporate governance (the “Company Code”) which sets out
the corporate standards and practices used by the Group to
direct and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by
reference to the principles, code provisions and recommended
best practices set out in the HKSE Code, which came into
effect on 1 January 2005. In addition to formalising existing
corporate governance principles and practices, the Company
Code also serves the purpose of assimilating existing practices
with benchmarks prescribed by the HKSE Code and ultimately
ensuring high transparency and accountability to the Group’s
shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i SRR

(c) Compliance of Company and HKSE's Code’s
Provisions

The Group has complied with all provisions in the Company Code
and the HKSE Code save the deviations mentioned below.

The Company had delayed the publication of its first quarterly
results of 2012 and interim results of 2012 and delayed the
despatch of its first quarterly report of 2012 and interim report
of 2012 within the period, as stipulated by the GEM Listing
Rules, due to the delay in publication of the annual results report
of 2011 as additional time was required for the preparation of
the technical reports on the Company’s CBM resources, and
therefore the preparation of various valuation reports on certain
assets of the Company. The publication of the annual results
of 2011 and the despatch of the annual report of 2011 were
also delayed due to the change of auditors on 25 July 2012.
The aforesaid delays constituted breaches of Rules 18.48A,
18.53, 18.66, 18.78 and 18.79 of the GEM Listing Rules.

To rectify the said breaches, the Company published the annual
results of 2011, the first quarterly results of 2012 and the interim
results of 2012 on 3 October 2012 and despatched the annual
report of 2011, the first quarterly report of 2012 and interim
report of 2012 on 15 October 2012.

The Company Code contains all the Code Provisions of the
HKSE Code and other provisions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than those as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of the Directors, all Directors have complied with
the required standard of dealings and code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors as set out in the code of conduct
for the year 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting
the success of the Company by the direction and supervision of the
Company’s business and affairs.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, comprising five
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman); Mr.
Feng San Li (Chief Executive Officer) (retired on 26 November 2012);
Mr. Shi Liang; Mr. Zhang Qing Lin; Mr. Fu Shou Gang and Mr. Kwok
Shun Tim and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Wang Zhi He and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. Ms.
Pang Yuk Fong has appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and financial management expertise as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2012,
there were three independent non-executive Directors in the Board
and the number of independent non-executive Directors represents
at least one-third of the Board. The Company has also complied
with Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, which stipulates that
one of the independent non-executive Directors must possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Board considers that the
independent non-executive Directors are all independent persons
with appropriate qualifications or expertise and the Company has
complied with the relevant requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in code provision D3.1 of the Revised Code. As at
the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and monitored: (a)
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, (b)
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, (c) the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (d) the Company’s
code of conduct and (e) the Company’s compliance with the Revised
Code disclosures requirements.
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APPOINTMENT TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the HKSE Code non-executive
directors should be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-
election. Currently, the independent non-executive Directors have
no fixed term of office but are subject to retirement by rotation at
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operations of the
Group are conducted in accordance with the objectives of the Group.
The principal roles of the Board are:

° to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

o to monitor and control operating and financial performance
through the determination of the annual budget; and

° to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is
responsible for preparing the accounts.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management responsibility
to the management staff under the instruction/supervision of the
Board.

The management staff of the Company are principally responsible
for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other
acts as may be exercised and performed by the Directors, save
and except for those that may specifically be reserved by the
Board/or the committees set up by the Board for decision and
implementation; or those that may only be exercised by the
Board pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company, the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations.

2. formulating and implementing policies for business actives,
internal controls and administration of the Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its business
activities; and

4.  keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which
may be inspected by any members of the Board or the Board
committees upon request.

The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the HKSE Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Prior to the retirement of Mr. Feng
San Li on 26 November 2012, Mr. Feng San Li was holding the title
of CEOQ. Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is the chairman of the Board. After
Mr. Feng’s retirement, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng continues to at as the
chairman made the duties of the chief executive have been
undertaken by the other executive Directors. The Board meets
regularly to consider major matters affecting the business and
operations of the Group. The Board considers that this structure will
balance the power and authority between the Board and
management and believes that this structure enables the Group to
make and implement decision promptly and efficiently.

AR T IRWA

EEERE

EECEBEREAEERNET
T ETAREERE -

/__:—‘—|
B

KRRz ERBABTEAE :

1. TREFATENEMGABRED ME
TEFAETHEMMETTE FEEH
BEEg EEENUNZTEGRER
ENMMITHER  RBARE 24
BAMNMAEBER  BIRRETRRA
REMEREARMERZRE &R
HEFSATRENEBIKIN -

2. BIEXHITEBARRELEZE A
ERERFE ATV IR

3. FTEIRREARRRIEHRE + K&

4. REBEBERENEE EMAE - AR
EERAREFTREENEMNKES
F‘Rﬁ o

EEE T LI R R AR —
ERAARENE -

EFERTHRAR

RIBBE P ST A2 SFRNRSCR A2 1% - £/F
HITHAHMBERTED - TEAR—A
ITHRE - RB=FEER -_ZT——F+—A
ZARBERER  NRABITRARE RS =F
S TRBEEREFTELRE - NBFRE
RIER - TRBLEEEEETTE - MITR
BENBECHEMATESAE - EF8
EHFeImTERAEERGLEFNEE
FH - EXERRERREEITIBRTES
TR R BN TS WREX

—E-—FEH

RETE BE AN SR B IR B A 1 L BT IR
ﬁ_‘f_ o
FERRRBEREEREXEEERAT 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i SRR

BOARD OPERATION

Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months, with
additional meeting arranged, if and when required. In 2012, the Board

held 14 meetings.

The attendance record of each member of the Board at board
meeting and general meetings of the Company are set out below:

EEEEE

EFE - HES=EARA K LEER
BESNRIGE - EFGR T —FH
BIT1AREH -
EEFERANLRALNETRRARR
AR

Attendance of
General Meetings

Attendance of
Board Meetings

EEGEE BREER
e HEE

Executive Directors
RITES
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) 14/14 11
TREBSE (FE)
Mr. Feng San Li (CEO) (retired on 26 November 2012) 5/14 1/1
W= L% (TTBRAR) RZTE—Z—F+— A=+ XBEMT)
Mr. Shi Liang 8/14 i7al
hisE S A
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin 12/14 11
SR B A
Mr. Fu Shou Gang 6/14 11
&ML E
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (appointed on 2 January 2013) 0/14 0/1
B ELEE(RZE—=F—AZHEZT)
Independent Non-executive Directors
WIUFRTESE
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 7/14 1/1
BEERE
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong 7/14 11
ZEFIL
Mr. Wang Zhi He 7/14 1/1
FzREE

Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings and
major decisions would only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would

abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied

with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.

EENeLtEHBERTANER  E2R
EREGEESFEER LETHMRIGED
NEFHEEZNRZFHAETROFE LR
BREFENGERIFEEA D - AHE
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Directors’ Duties

Every Director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company:

° A comprehensive director’s handbook is issued to every
Director, which sets out guidelines on conduct by making
reference to the relevant sections of the statutes or the GEM
Listing Rules, and reminds Directors of their responsibilities in
making disclosure of their interests and potential conflict of
interests.

° Orientation programmes are organised for providing induction
to new Directors to help them familiarise with the Company’s
management, business and governance practices.

° Management provides appropriate and sufficient information
to Directors and the committee members in a timely manner to
keep them apprised of the latest development of the Group
and enable them to discharge their responsibilities. Directors
also have independent and unrestricted access to senior
executives of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. Directors’
training is an ongoing process. During the year ended 31 December
2012, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the board as a whole
and each director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has also
organized briefing sessions conducted by the Hong Kong Legal
Adviser to the Company for the Directors.

EENFEEXRRESE
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The briefing sessions covered topics including the HKSE Code, listed N MENEBREH AT - 5L
company regulations and disclosure obligations in Hong Kong, T2 &) 2%@&%’2&%;& BTBRBERXH N
disclosable transactions and connected transactions etc. BR5%E
REMUNERATION PAID TO MEMBERS OF IHFEEEBAENEEH
KEY MANAGEMENT
Details of remuneration paid to member of key management fell within -~ X F = ZEE A EFH I EEN T A T &
the following band: :
2012 2011

—E—_%F —E——F

HKD Nil ~ HKD 1,000,000 Z 1% 1,000,000/ 7T 3 1
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CONDUCT ON SHARE DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as referred to in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Group, having made specific enquiries to its
Directors and supervisors, confirms that, throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2012, all Directors and supervisors met
the criteria laid down in the said code for securities transactions by
Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was established on 12 August 2005 for,
inter alia, the following purposes: —

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on policies and
structure for remuneration of directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such policy on remuneration;

(b) to make recommendations to the Board the remuneration
packages for executive Directors and senior management and
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
(Chairman), Mr. Luo Wei Kun and Mr. Wang Zhi He. The duty of
remuneration committee is to review and make recommendations
to the remuneration policy and packages of the executive Directors
and executives.
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In 2012, the remuneration committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the remuneration committee
is set out below:

=

FHEEEN T —FERITREH -

FHZBEEEREMDFELENT

W

Attendance
HEE
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman) 1/1
CEFLLT (EE)
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
BEERE
Mr. Wang Zhi He 11
FTzMEE

During the meeting, members of the remuneration committee
reviewed the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the
Directors by taking into account factors such as remuneration
packages and benefits offered by comparable companies, the
respective contribution of each of the Directors to the Group and
the business objectives of the Group.

The executive Directors are responsible for reviewing all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions as well as the performance
of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and proposing to the
remuneration committee for consideration and approval,
remuneration packages for the executive Directors and executives,
and performed the major work as below:

1. reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company and the remuneration and performance of
duties of the executive Directors and senior management in
the year under review;

2. made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

gL FHZEEXEERES THERE N
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

As mentioned above, a nomination committee was established on  ##l bl - IRBREE @R _EZERFE/\A
12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes: — +ZHKYZ c EFERRE

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including the (a) WA EZEMHZRE « B8 NMAK (B
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; FRE - AN R ALER)

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board (b) YBEHEAEIKRKABEZEKEN

members and make recommendations to the Board on the AL UREwiRZALTHEES
selection of individuals nominated for directorship; and MEEFGROESR &

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters (c) MEEZIXNEFEZETEENEEE

relating to the appointment or reappointment of directors and FHEEENEERNESSRERE
succession planning for directors. 3
The nomination committee is made up of all of the Company’s REZZECHARRAF 2B IFHITESH
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Zhi He & - “TEIZ*H?EE(ITFE) - BEBERER
(Chairman), Mr. Luo Wei Kun and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. TEFLL
In 2012, the nomination committee held one meeting. The attendance IEZRZE @M - T — —FLRIT— RN EF °
record of each member of the nomination committee is set out below: ERZE &€ &K ENHFELEEWT ¢
Attendance
HiEE
Mr. Wang Zhi He (Chairman) 11
FoMEE (FE)
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
BHEESLE
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong 1/1
TERRTLT
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At the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Company’s Board of Directors, made
reference to criteria including, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industry, professional
and educational background, and commitment in respect of available
time and relevant interest. The nomination committee was satisfied
with the existing composition of the Board and recommended no
change in the near future, and performed the major work as below:

1. examined the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
ensure the Directors have the expertise, skills and experience
required to meet the Company’s business;

2. assessed the independency of all independent non-executive
directors of the Company; and

3. made recommendations to the Board in this regard.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee was established on 28 July 2003 and
currently comprises all three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman), Mr. Luo Wei Kun and Mr. Wang
Zhi He. The primary duties of the audit committee are (a) to review the
Group’s annual reports, financial statements, half year reports and
quarterly reports; (b) To serve as a focal point for communication between
Directors, the external auditors and internal auditors; (c) To assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system; and (d) To review the appointment of
external auditors on an annual basis as well as to ensure independence
of the continuing auditors.
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B RERANK - RET2EZLEFBEEA
FATESIE  BEEABTEORRE
B HEXRHESSRULRERANEE
BIRRENN R B A S B E R SR IS BV BT
F-REZEGHEEFTENRGMAS 2
BTN B ARSI NITEZTIENAT ¢

1. REEFGNRE  RERMEK - K
BREFABTAARBEHAFN
BR - R k&R

2. FHAARRBIMBBIUIFATEENE
MR

3. BULEEESRLEH -

BERERS

ARPNEZZREEN _TE=FLtH -+
NBRKY - REKBBREEH =2 LIFHR
TEFZEF L (EF) BHEERLERT
ZMEE - BERRBEZ T EHE 2 (@)FH
AEBENFR - PHREK  FFERERT
ElE  OERESE - JMNEZEAED R EZ
B 2 Fm —ERBERE - B BHHBR
EREBRFEZEREFNARERMAB R
AREE  BPEFSRTRE  MAEF
TR AT SNIE A BN 2 & A LA e MR B AT AR 2R
ZILNE -

In 2012, the audit committee held four meetings. The attendance B|XZEEN T — —FLEITUNESE °

record of each member of the audit committee is set out below: ERLZEERNEMNEHFELENT
Attendance

HE =

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman) 4/4

TEFRT (FE)

Mr. Luo Wei Kun 4/4

BHESLE

Mr. Wang Zhi He 4/4

F 2Rk A
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At the meetings, the audit committee has carefully reviewed the
Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and its system
of internal control and has made suggestions to improve them. The
audit committee also carried out and discharged its other duties set
out in HKSE Code. In the course of doing so, the audit committee
has met the company’s management and qualified accountant
several times during year 2012. Each member of the audit committee
has unrestricted access to the Group’s external auditors and the
management.

During the financial year 2012, the audit committee has held four
meetings. The Group’s results for the year 2012 have been reviewed
and commented by the audit committee members, and performed
the major works as below:

1. reviewed the annual financial results and report for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and interim financial results and
report for the six months ended 30 June 2012;

2. reviewed the internal audit department’s report regarding the
reviewing and procedures of the internal control and risk
management of the Company; and

3. provided opinions to the Board in respect of the terms of
appointment of external auditors.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through mails whose contact details are as
follows: —

Room 3705, 37th Floor
148 Electric Road
North Point

Hong Kong

Tel No.: 2366 1663
Fax No.: 2366 1665
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionst(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 88 of the articles of association of the Company,
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election
as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a
member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such
notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that the period
for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the
date of such general meeting..
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
annual accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs of the results and cash flow for the year. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors have:

o adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

° made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and ensured the accounts are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Company recognises that high quality corporate reporting is
important in reinforcing the trust relationship between the Company
and the its stakeholders and aims at presenting a balanced, clear
and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in all corporate communications.

Internal Control

The Board, through the audit committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control over
financial, operational and compliance issues for the year 2012. The
audit committee concluded that, in general, the Group has set up a
sound control environment and installed necessary control
mechanisms to monitor and correct non-compliance. The Board,
through the review of the audit committee, is satisfied that the Group
in 2012, fully complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as set forth in the code.

In order to maintain a high quality of corporate governance, the Group
employed a Qualified Accountant in current year and will still employ
a Qualified Accountant in the coming years. The audit committee
also concluded that the Group has employed sufficient staff for the
propose of accounting, financial and internal control.

AR T IRWA

BB R EF&%
B |mE

EXEREEFERBZRE LAEBRYT
HRBERNEBRFEAZBBEERESR
BN e MREBE-_T——F+-A=+
—BLEFERER  EFC2

s RMEAZEBRALEREM:: &

o {RHEEAE ZHIE RfAE - A KHE
RIRE DR ERERERE -

ARRRBRRE R QR HRE L IR AR A
HEEERmACHNEEIHRETEER - FtME
(b E G RIAFE -~ BT N 2 EH T
EARRRNREA - RRKFTR -

&R E

ESECBAERZREER T —_FAM
A AREEARERRGEZ AR - EPRE
B 2BESAFRE EXEEER
R BEME  AREERIZZZEFR
% YERBLTZE GIHHIEEE RKIER
BHAE - BRAERZEE RN EFE
MEAEER T ——FRTE2ETTRIF
FIE 2 A ERE il <7 RIME ST o

RTHF—ESEENEREL  AEEHE
RERAEREERSAMMMERKFEZT
SRAEERGTE c ERZEGNRAR
AEBECEAEHNE TREE MR
MEE B2 TIE -

—E-"EFHR PEHBERABRES

REXKEEERQF 33



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i SRR

External Auditors

The Group's external auditors are HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. The AuditCommittee is mandated to ensure continuing
auditors' objectivity and safeguard independence of the auditors,
and it has:

° determined the framework for the type and authorisation of
non-audit services for which the external auditors may provide.
In general, the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services is prohibited except for tax related services;
and

° agreed with the Board on the policy relating to the hiring of
employees or former employees of the external auditors and
monitored the applications of such policy.

During 2012, the fees paid to the Company's external auditors for
audit services amounted to RMB1,466,000.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The audit committee of the Company has recommended to the Board
that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The Group has not employed any staff who was formerly involved in
the Group's statutory audit.

Corporate Communication

The Group recognises the importance of shareholder feedback and
the need for ongoing communication with its stakeholders, including
the general public, investors, and the institutional and individual
shareholders. The Company published annual, interim and quarterly
reports which contained detailed information about the Group.
Inquiries by shareholders are directed and dealt with by senior
management of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang, aged 49, has been appointed as chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the compliance officer of the Company
since May 2006. From 9 January 2004 to 26 May 2006, Mr. Wang
was an executive director of Tianjin Tianlian Public Utilities Company
Limited (“Tianjin Tianlian”), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8290), and was
responsible for its business strategies. He graduated from the
University of Tianjin with a bachelor degree in engineering in 1984.
Mr. Wang is also a director of Tianjin Leason Investment Group
Company Limited (KRBT EL & E S B AR 2 F]). Mr. Wang is a
substantial shareholder of the company which holds 1,101,572,118
Shares in person or through controlled corporation, representing
approximately 27.94% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this report. In addition, Mr. Wang is interested as a
grantee of options to subscribe for 2,500,000 shares under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011 and as a
holder of convertible bonds convertible to 1,119,230,769 conversion
shares.

Mr. Feng San Li, aged 56, was appointed as an executive Director
and chief executive officer since June 2011 retired on 26 November
2012. Mr. Feng is a geologist with more than 28 years’ experience in
China’s coal and coalbed methane industry. Previously, he was
engaged as the deputy general manager and chief geologist of China
United Coalbed Methane Company Ltd., and was subsequently
promoted as the general manager between 1999 and 2010. Before
1999, he was the chief engineer of Henan Coal Geology Bureau. Mr.
Feng graduated from the Changchun College of Geology with a
bachelor degree in geology in 1982. He is currently the committee
member of the China Coal Society, director of the Coalbed Methane
Specialised Committee China Coal Society, the member of the Oil &
Gas Reserve Evaluation Division of Ministry of Land and Resources.
Mr. Feng is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
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“E-—FFR HTEEREEREEREXEEEERAT 35



BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
o 8 B i A A DU i R R

Mr. Shi Liang, aged 44, has been appointed as an executive Director
since May 2006. Mr. Shi graduated with a bachelor degree in Material
Science in the Shanghai University of Science and Technology of
the PRC and a master degree in management from the Business
School of the People’s University in the PRC. He was a vice general
manager of Tianjin Tianlian. He had worked for Jiangsu Nan Tong
Electric Melter Company and Electronic Industrial Division Basic
Products Department. He had also worked for Jiangsu Hua Yong
Electronic Group Company as deputy manager of international
cooperation department and secretary to the board of directors. He
had also held various positions as a project manager, senior manager
and an assistant to executive director in the investment banking of
United Securities Limited, a securities company in the PRC.

Mr. Zhang Qing Lin, aged 62, joined the Company in the year of
2007. He graduated from the Tianjin Industrial University* (K& T 3%
KE), (formerly known as The Institute of Tianjin Textile Industry* (<
VR4 K T % E267)) in 1980. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang has
extensive working experience in corporate management. Mr. Zhang
is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for 2,500,000 shares
under the share options scheme adopted by the Company on 18
May 2011.

Mr. Fu Shou Gang, aged 46, has years of experiences in the natural
gas sector. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Tianjin Tianlian
Public Utilities Company Limited, where was pointed as an executive
Director. Mr. Fu is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
2,500,000 shares under the share options scheme adopted by the
Company on 18 May 2011.
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Mr. Kwok, aged 38, join the Company in the year of 2013. He
graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
with a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accounting in
November 1999. He also received a master of science in China
Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
master of laws (International Economic Law) from the City University
of Hong Kong in November 2004 and November 2008 respectively.
Mr. Kwok was admitted as an associate of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in July 2003, an ordinary member of Hong Kong
Secuirities Institute in October 2003, a full member of [TAccountants
Association in January 2004 and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in April 2008. Mr. Kwok is currently
a member of Guangdong Province Zhaoging City Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FF B A R EA
WEEREREEEMELEE), adirector of Yan Oi Tong for the
year 2012/2013, the deputy chief supervisor of Hong Kong Road
Safety Patrol and a school manager of C.C.C. Kwei Wah Shan
College. Currently, Mr. Kwok is the company secretary of Tianjin
Jinran Public Utilities Company Limited (formerly known as Tianjin
Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited) (stock code: 01265) and
an independent non-executive director of Modern Education Group
Limited (stock code: 01082). From May 2006 to December 2010,
Mr. Kwok was a non-executive director of China Leason Investment
Group Co., Limited (stock code: 08270, currently known as China
Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited). He was an
independent non-executive director of Core Healthcare Investment
Holdings Limited (stock code: 08250, currently known as China
Natural Investment Company Limited) for the period from September
2006 to September 2009, and the company secretary and authorized
representative of Tianyi Fruit Holdings Limited (stock code: 00756,
currently known as China Tianyi Holdings Limited) for the period
from March 2009 to March 2010. Mr. Kwok is also appointed as the
managing director of Guoxin Capital Company Limited, the executive
director of Up Way Wealth Management Limited, Up Way Global
Fund Management Limited and World Time International Company
Limited. Mr. Kwok is a licensed person for Type 4, Type 6 and Type
9 regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQO”).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Luo Wei Kun, aged 74, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since August 2006. He graduated from the
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in
1964 and started postgraduate studies in the same year. He was
awarded a postgraduate diploma in civil engineering in 1967. He
acted as a technician in Wuhan Branch of the Chinese Medicine
Industrial Limited during 1968 to 1969 and as a technician, deputy
section chief, section chief, engineer and vice chief engineer in the
State Ministry of Medicine - Hubei Medical Manufactory Branch
during 1969 to 1985. He then worked as a senior engineer, section
chief and assistant factory manager in Tianjin Second Coal Gas
Factory during 1986 to 1992. From 1992 to 2000, he acted as a
vice chief engineer in Tianjin Utility Department and at the same time,
worked as a chief engineer in Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office.
After his retirement in March 2000, Mr. Luo acted as a consultant of
Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office and Tianjin City Gas Planning
Office. Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of
Tianjin Tianlian.

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong, aged 47, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since August 2006. She is an
experienced Practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong with
over 24 years’ professional experience in the accounting and auditing.
She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Ms. Pang holds a master of professional accounting
degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Pang’s
professional career started in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. She has
been the principal partner in Y. F. Pang & Co., Certified Public
Accountants since 1990’s and the managing director of AMC First
Plan International Limited which is engaged in business advisory
services in the Asia Pacific region. Ms. Pang was appointed by the
Cuilong Copper International Holding Limited in 2006 as its
independent non-executive director.

BYFATES

BEEESLLE 745 B-ZEZRFN\AER
RRPVBILIFAITES - BERE—NATF
BENBEAR  BIAIRSL2M [
FREBVEMRLE RN FELAT
B RAERRIR - KRR —NAANN\FE—
NANFEETEBEETRARRED AR
BRME  —hWANFEE-NNRFEREE
BB LA R R ERE DB E -
BlRtR - BHx - TEMMEIRTIERM - — N
NREE-NAN_FEBRRETE KR
B - B GESRTIIZE - BHERMEIRE
— NN _FE2E-_TTTFEERETLABE
B TIZED  RAEXETMREERA TR
fb o BEAN_TETF=-_FARNKIEK  BZ
EREMRRE LR MREZTRRBR M A
=M o BEL B AEERZREBIFHN
TES-

TEFLL 4T BZEERF/N\ARAE
RRBVBUIERITES - ERIR— RS
LELRNESNESHAN - EE5 REH
FEBEBB2AFHERLSR - EH TR
AREHMAEREESHTMACTE RS
B BBRAWERE REBEFITWERIT
BRABREMNEE  BEAAEIREHEX
SEELEM c ERTHREY BB
Gt R B AE - BOOFRHAR Xt
RIS MBS (MESHTM NER
BEA - EREAREFIZHEERR
RISHE TS EBREERARBIESAL
12 o RN ZEZF XF ¥ Cuilong Copper
International Holding LimitedZ= {E /& H ¥& 7 3F
WITESE -

38 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

o 0 N v B4 B It B R

Mr. Wang Zhi He, aged 65, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since August 2006. Mr. Wang is a senior
accountant. Mr. Wang graduated from Anhui University of Finance
and Economics in February 1972, and was assigned to finance
department of Anhui Huaibei Mining Bureau and worked as a
commissioner, deputy section chief, section chief, deputy director
and director. Mr. Wang was transferred to the Ministry of Coal Industry
in May 1995, and worked as a director of Asset Capital Management
Division and State-owned Assets Management department. In
October 1997, Mr. Wang was re-designated as a chief accountant
of China Coal Construction Group Corporation, and worked as a
deputy general manager and chief accountant in May 1999. Mr. Wang
was transferred to Zhonglian Gas Company Limited and worked as
a chief accountant in March 2004. Mr. Wang has years of relevant
experience.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lui Chi Keung, aged 55, has been appointed as the company
secretary, qualified accountant and authorised representative of the
Company since September 2007. Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lui has over 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
financial and business management.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 60 to 61.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2012 are set out in the consolidated and company statements of
financial position on pages 62 to 63 and page 64 respectively. The
cash flows of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of
cash flows on pages 67 to 68.

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in page 65 and note 32(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s articles of association, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to its shareholders comprise share
premium, translation reserve and accumulated losses which in
aggregate amounted to approximately 709,410,000 as at
31 December 2012 (2011: RMB773,041,000). The distributable
reserves are available for distribution provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed, the Company
will be able to pay off its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
Mr. Feng San Li (Chief executive officer)
(retired on 26 November 2012)
Mr. Shi Liang
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin
Mr. Fu Shou Gang
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (appointed on 2 January 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
Mr. Wang Zhi He

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Fu Shou Gang, Mr. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Zhang Qing Lin
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of independent non-executive Directors
is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of the articles of association of the Company.
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Biographical information of the Directors is set out on page 35 to
page 39 of this report.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors have remained
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration for the
year are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No other contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
subsisted at the year-end or any time during the year to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or
may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on Information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed
issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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(@) Long positions in shares, underlying shares

(@ RAERTARH HEAROREZ

and debentures of the Company ZHR
Number of
ordinary shares/
Nature of underlying  Approximate %
Name Capacity Interest shares of shareholdings
HilERkR HE HkREw
] 1 Hang B8 E Bk
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Interest of controlled Corporate interest 120,790,000 3.06%
corporation (Note 1)
FRBLEA R LB S NEIER (Br=E1)
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Beneficial owner Personal 2,102,512,887 53.33%
(Note 2)
TEBEE ERnEBA EA (Ft7E2)
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin Beneficial Owner Personal 2,500,000 0.06%
(Note 3)
REMESE EnfEBEA 1A (Pff5E3)
Mr. Fu Shou Gang Beneficial Owner Personal 2,500,000 0.06%
(Note 4)
&R E EmEAA EA (P 5 4)
Notes: B 5T
1. Such shares are owned by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited. 1. ZEBRNDBBEEREABRARES -

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 100% interest in the issued share capital
of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and he is taken to be interested
in the shares owned by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant
to Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Out of the 2,102,512,887 long positions, Mr. Wang is interested as
(i) a grantee of options to subscribe for 2,500,000 shares under the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011;
(i) a holder of convertible bonds convertible to 1,119,230,769
conversion shares; and (jii) a beneficial owner of 980,782,118 issued
shares of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Qing Lin is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe
for 2,500,000 shares under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 18 May 2011.

Mr. Fu Shou Gang is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe
for 2,500,000 shares under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 18 May 2011.
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(b) Associated corporations — interests in shares

(b) HEEE RO ER

Percentage of
interests in
the registered
capital of the

Name of Nature of associated
Director associated corporation Interest corporation
{5 X B EE
EMExZ
- HEEB R EaH" L E-1=R2 04
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 100%
(Note 1)
FRBEE BEEREFRAR (P 1) 18 A
Note: B 5
1. Jumbo Lane Investments Limited is a holding Company of the 1. HEREERQAFAAAEEMERA

Group, owns 3.06% of the shareholding of the Group. Mr. Wang
owns 100% interest in the issued share capital of Jumbo Lane
Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any other interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were otherwise required, pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Group had not issued any debentures
during the period.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WITH DISCLOSEABLE INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND

OPTIONS UNDER SFO

As at the 31 December 2012, so far as is known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had an interest or a short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of
the Group, or held any option in respect of such capital:

Long positions in shares
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FERRERBRORBRERS
BREFSRAERAATHREZ
Eﬁ&/ﬂ%ZAi

RZTB—"F+-A=1t—H RARAE
EREBITRAEBRA - TIAL (RAF
BEERTETHABRRIN R RAARR
DR IEA RIBE S LB RGIEXVERFE 2 M
BN MAMARFWE ZREIAR » HE
BREEAESWSRN A MEMBER T ER
SEEMEMBKE AR ZRRAE LRE
ERIFARI IR AR E 10 % 3k A | 2 Rz stk
B RRERERAZBAE

Ripz R

Percentage of

Name Number of Shares Nature of Interest shareholding

4 B3 8 B EaHH FRESLt

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Note 1) 120,790,000 Interest of controlled 3.06%
corporation

TRk A (FiFEE1) REEEER

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Note 2) 2,102,512,887 Personal 53.33%

T Bk A (FiFsE2) EA

Ms. Zhao Xin (Note 3) 120,790,000 Interest of spouse 3.06%

e+ (M5E3) Bz #Em

Ms. Zhao Xin (Note 4) 2,102,512,887 Interest of spouse 53.33%

ezt (T4 Bz #Em

Notes: B 5

1. Such shares represent the same parcel of shares owned by Jumbo Lane 1. ISR MDEIHEFIREERAREE ZE— Ttt

Investments Limited. Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is the beneficial owner of the

100% of the total issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.

Mr. Wang is taken to be interested in the shares owned by Jumbo Lane

Investments Limited pursuant to the SFO.

R - TEBEEEREEEERERRA
EEITIRANEF 2 100% ° *ETE&%&EEE%
Bl - EAREWARIERA T EIREBRARIFE
Mtz s -
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2. Out of the 2,102,512,887 long positions, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is
interested as (i) a grantee of options to subscribe for 2,500,000 shares
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011;
(i) a holder of convertible bonds convertible to 1,119,230,769 conversion
shares; and (iii) a beneficial owner of 980,782,118 issued shares of the
Company.

3. Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is deemed to be
interested in her spouse’s interest in the Company which represent the
same parcel of shares held by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant
to the SFO.

4. Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is deemed to be
interested in her spouse’s interest in the Company pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012 no other person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Long Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” above and in the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children or chief
executive or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

2. TRBEESANANTINEXNES Z
2,102,512,887f& Mk 1h 2 4F & : (i)BE AR 4E =2 %
BA BEAURBARAR-_T—FAAT+
J\ B ER 4 Y B iR 4 5T 2132 85 2,500,0008% A% 17
WERE: (NIRBREHFZBEBEA  #
BH 8 A1,119,230,7690% 85 2 i% 15 &9 7]
BRES R(iBROZEZEBA  BA
980,782,118 AR R B 1T D ©

3. MREEFIRMEGS BHRZL (ERBEL
2B WRER AR B A B E
@ R EERERERARREZRA K

t

>

o

$

4. REFFMPERD - BELT (ZRBEE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 18 May 2011, the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 28 July 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme and will expire on 17 May 2021. On 30 May
2011, the Board approved to grant options in respect of 258,300,000
ordinary shares to the Company’s Directors, employees and
consultants under the New Share Option Scheme.

There were no share options that had been granted remained
outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme prior to its
termination.

For details of the New Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 20 April 2011 and note 33 to the
financial statements.
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Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with 1R &IZEMR F R BIFri E A BERENE

the GEM Listing Rules was as follows: BT
Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Asat Granted Exercised lapsed As at Exercise as at the date
Name and category 1 January during the during the during the ~ 31 December  Date of grant of Exercise period of price per of grant of
of participants 2012 period period period 2012 share options share options  share option  share options
gt ot 3 fi
£ 111 RI3-2% L #h BRiEg/ +Z8 Bkt BBk RHiAH
REN -f-H BRL BT b3 Zt-H RHiAH BREGED it F09RE
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 30/6/2011  30/6/2011 - 29/56/2021 0.49% 0.49%
TRBEE
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 30/6/2011  30/5/2011 - 29//2021 0.4% 0.4%
REMEE
Mr. Fu Shou Gang 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 30/6/2011 30/6/2011 - 29/5/2021 0.49% 0.49%
fSmEE
Mr. Feng San Li (retired on 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 30/6/2011 30/6/2011 - 29/6/2021 0.49% 0.49%
26 November 2012)
BoHEE(R_T-_F
T-AZtARER)
10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
Employees 43,690,000 - - (3,950,000 39,740,000 30/6/2011 30/5/2011-29/6/2021 0.49 0.49%
Consultants 200,020,000 - - - 200,020,000 30/6/2011 30/5/2011-29/6/2021 0.49% 0.4%
Ef
258,710,000 - - (950,000 249,760,000
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Notes:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
5,

Wi

()  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the period are (i) HRNTFE B BERRAEHERAT -

as follows:

Number of Contractual
options Vesting conditions life of options
BEENA WEEH BRESHEY

Options granted:

ER R
30 May 2011 215,220,000 Vest immediately 10 years
—E-——FRA=TH BA 5 T
30 May 2011 43,080,000 Half on each of the first and second anniversaries 10 years
of grant date

—E——FhA="+H BREBHZEERE_EEFAGRA—F T+

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of options are as follows: (i)  FEREZ B M EFHTEEOT ¢

Weighted average Number of
exercise price options
mEFHTEERE M EN A
HK$
o
Outstanding as at 1 January 2012 RZT——F—A—BXRIE 0.495 253,710,000
Granted during the period HABREH - -
Outstanding as at RZE—ZF+_A=+—BRTE
31 December 2012 0.495 249,760,000
Exercisable as at WZZE—ZF+-A=+—HAUITE
31 December 2012 0.495 229,990,000

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2012 had an exercise price of R-T——F+ - A=+—BHZKITEEBRE 1T
HK$0.495 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.4 years. EER0.495E T - AT 2 NEFHENFE R4

F o

TE-CEFR TEHEREAERREEREXEEERAAF 51



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
oW

MAJOR TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

Finance Lease Agreement

On 21 May 2012, Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy Development
Company Limited (“Qinshui Energy”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a conditional finance lease
agreement in relation to the sale and lease of equipments (“Finance
Lease Agreement”) with CIMC Capital Limited (“CIMC”), pursuant to
which, (i) Qinshui Energy conditionally agreed to sell, and CIMC
conditionally agreed to purchase certain liquefied natural gas
equipment for a total consideration of RMB95,000,000
(approximately HK$117,283,950.62); and (i) Qinshui Energy
conditionally agreed to lease from CIMC, and CIMC conditionally
agreed to lease to Qinshui Energy, the said equipment for a total
lease consideration of RMB114,570,000 (approximately
HK$141,444,444 .44) for a term of 36 months by monthly installments
inclusive of interest with a lump sum handling fee in the sum of
RMB950,000 (approximately HK$1,172,839.51). The lease
consideration may be adjusted according to the floating lending
interest rate to be promulgated by People’s Bank of China from time
to time.

As the applicable percentage ratios of the Finance Lease Agreement
exceed 25% but less than 100%, the Finance Lease Agreement
constitutes a major transaction on the part of the Company under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. Therefore, the Finance Lease
Agreement is subject to the requirements of announcement and the
approval of the shareholders by way of poll at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
21 May 2012, 28 June 2012, 30 August 2012, 18 October 2012,
30 November 2012, 31 January 2013 and 25 February 2013
respectively.

As at the date of this report, the Company has received pre-payment
of RMB47,500,000 from CIMC as deposit, for which the Group has
provided certain pledge as security for the said pre-payment, The
relevant pledges will be released by CIMC upon return of the said
pre-payment.

FERGREE
MEEES

RIEBE——FRHA-+—H ARFMNEE
2EWBARILTLKIBIEERER AR QD
A (DUKEER]) B ERMEREGR AR
(PEDET—HEERELEREENS
BHERERER R ((RMEREHZE] - &
g (OKBERBIEGRELERFEHB K
HREBEATRIERARRICEBRME
BREABAR®IS,000,0005m (4
117,283,950.62%8 70) ()b 7K BE IR A 15
HREMPEEME  MPEEERERERID
KEEREE EAMEE - BHRERBAARKE
114,570,0007T (#7141,444,444 .44 7T) -
AHIB6E A AN - BEFE) - &
—ERFEELHARMI50,0007T (4
1,172,839.51% L) - HEREAIRIEFE
ARBIT A RMOFEEEEFEIEHR

%Eko

RIBAIFAR EMRAFE19E - ANBERE
HBERNERED L ERIN26%EERN
100% - M E B E HHE B QBN —IH
TBXRS - At EBREHRAEET M
BE - BAFBRRRARBRRENAE £
IR ET A AR - FAHEE -

BEAFERE2EARRESSAZS—=
FRAZ+—HB ZE—ZFAZ+AN
A —FT——-FNA=+H - ZT—=F+
A+N\H - Z&2—=F+—A=+H =&
—=F—A=+—HBR-_ZE-—=F"A—"-+
FBEZ R -

RAHEBH  ARRERE P EZANR
AR#47,500,000TE R E » NEBE 5L
EaEA SRR E TEAERERm - 18588
EIRASRIE L FE A RS SR AR R o

52 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



Non-legally Binding Cooperation Agreement

On 28 February 2012, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) to cooperate with
Longmen Hui Cheng Investment Limited (BEPIFER R E B R A 7))
(“Longmen Hui Cheng”). Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement,
the Company wished to closely co-operate with Longmen Hui Cheng
in all areas and intends to form a strategic alliance with Longmen
Hui Cheng in China’s coalbed methane gas sector to form a vertically
integrated alliance to cover all the upstream, midstream and
downstream areas in the coalbed methane gas value chain (the
“Cooperation Project”). Both parties have agreed that a joint working
group will be formed immediately following the signing of the
Cooperation Agreement to push forward the subsequent signing of
a formal agreement. As at the date of this report, no binding
agreement in relation to the Cooperation Project has been entered
into and the Cooperation Project may or may not proceed. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 February
2012.

Change of auditors

CCIF CPA Limited (“CCIF”) has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 25 July 2012. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited has been appointed to replace CCIF as the Company’s
statutory auditors with effect from 25 July 2012. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25 July 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the top five customers of the Group
together accounted for approximately 28.9% of the Group’s total
sales for the year while the single largest customers accounted for
approximately 13.2% of the Group’s total sales during the year.
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The top five suppliers of the Group for the year under review together
accounted for approximately 97.5% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year and the single largest supplier accounted for
approximately 46.7% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or any shareholders
of the Company who owns more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company has any interests in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers above mentioned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A customer initiated claims against a subsidiary of the Group for
compensation of approximately RMB6,954,000 arising from alleged
failure on the part of the subsidiary to supply gas under contract.
The Directors of the Company consider, based on the legal advice
obtained from the Group’s legal counsel, that the subsidiary has a
valid defence against the above claim and, accordingly, no provision
has been made in these financial statement in relation to these
proceedings.

AMOUNT OF CAPITALISED INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no interest has been capitalised by
the Group during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particular of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had outstanding convertible bonds convertible to
1,119,230,769 conversion shares and outstanding options to
subscribe for 249,760,000 shares under the share option scheme
adopted on 18 May 2011. Details are disclosed in note 30 and note
33 to the financial statements respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries.

RETIREMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND RESIGNATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Feng San Li was appointed as the executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 17 June 2011
and retired as an executive Director and resigned from the office of
Chief Executive Officer with effect from 26 November 2012.

APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim was appointed as the executive Director of the
Company with effect from 2 January 20183.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 14 March 2013, the Company and Vision Finance International
Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into the Placing
Agreement on 14 March 2013, whereby the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent, on a best
efforts basis, a maximum of 400,000,000 Placing Shares to
independent investors at a price of HK$0.25 per Placing Share. The
400,000,000 Placing Shares represent (i) approximately 9.99% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company of 4,002,505,023
Shares; and (ii) approximately 9.09% of the Company’s issued share
capital of 4,402,505,023 Shares as enlarged by completion of the
Placing. The maximum net proceeds from the Placing of
approximately HK$96.4 million which will be used for the drilling of
wells and natural gas pipeline construction work. The placing has
not been completed as of the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2010 were audited
by CCIF CPA Limited. CCIF CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 25 July 2012 and HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited were appointed as auditors of the Company on 25
July 2012 to fill the casual vacancy so arising.

The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of
office will expire upon the annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Imprey Cheng Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

27 March 2013

HEREERE

RZZE—=F=A+MA ' AQFEHEE®
BBRBERAR (BRERBDR_ZZ—=F
= A+MBIEEEHE - BILEAREHE K
HREFARERERBERAEERERS
400,000,000l BRE MR TR IREE - &
B B2 & B 19 YE1E0.2578 7T ° 400,000,0004%
REBRGHEERNARRREEEHITRA
4,002,505,023/% Ix 17 #19.99% K (i)~ 7]
KREETHKABEARAZE BITRA
4,402,505,023[% A% 17 479.09% ° BL& 2 &=
FT 18 3B 5849 596,400,000/ 7T * ¥R
HTHERAREEEZRTRE - HEAREA
Hy - BeE MR ©

B BB

BHE-_Z-ZEF+-_A=+—HLFENE
BOHRESSHMEEABERAREZ
PREBETEMEBAERAREFHEARAT]
BEE AT —HF+A-+HHBE
B MARRNMR-_E——FtA=-+HH
ZEEFGEFRMEFSAERA A EEZE
B - LASEA RZER A 220 o

BE-_ZT——FR-_T—=-F+=ZA=+—
HIEFEMNRE HHBRESTMEBAER
NEIEZ - HEHBRRRBFTFREER -
ERENZEREETMEBAERARA
RN B EEN R Z RGN RITHR R
BFRGERZE -

AEEED
-
FE

—E—=F=H=-++H

56 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

To the shareholders of China Leason CBM & Shale Gas
Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 60 to 210, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately RMB61,462,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2012 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB196,515,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainly that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan T. S. Lai
Practising Certificate Number: P04165
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013

¥ i % B i 4

%
L

2B

BEETZUEREBER  EEFEBRERE
o BREVBmENT20ET ESER
HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HIEFEHE
SHEEAOARKG61,462,0000T © MRZE
H . BSENRDEERERBEEZD
#) AN R#196,515,0007T ° % FA N RF
FEERTHEEN - Afjge BESEFEK
SR NI EREEM -

BEEHEEMARAR
S ]
BB E S LA

RER
HEFERY - P04165
EH —ET—=F=A=-++A8

CECFFR PEBEBREBRESREXZSRERRAT 59



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

By WA

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2012 2011
it et 2 —EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®TR ARBTT
Turnover =X8 5 183,834 253,849
Cost of sales S5 6 B A (212,295) (239,678)
Gross (loss)/profit (EB) E£7 (28,461) 14,171
Other income and gains H b A K sz 6 55,661 36,115
Distribution costs 73 88 B A (2,003) (1,733)
Administrative expenses THHAX (47,249) (59,329)
Other operating expenses HigER (4,861) (4,260)
Finance costs MBER 7(c) (7,214) (8,762)
Fair value (loss)/gain on HthemeEE A TE
other financial assets (&18) e 22 (17,051) 17,051
Fair value loss on the derivative AR & 50T & 2B 10
component of convertible bonds 2 RNFEEE 30 - (6,487)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 15 (2,339) (21,492)
Loss before taxation BRREER 7 (53,517) (34,726)
Income tax Frig#i 8(a) (7,945) (14,609)
Loss for the year XEEER (61,462) (49,335)
Attributable to: THEW :
Equity shareholders of the Company A A Az A% R (55,130) (45,016)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 IR A 2 (6,332) (4,319)
(61,462) (49,335)
RMB RMB
AR# AR
Loss per share SERER 13
— Basic — EK (1.40) cents% (1.53) cents 7>
— Diluted — s (1.40) cents% (1.53) cents 7>

The notes on pages 69 to 210 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

REBED -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 2 A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE
2012 2011
—E—_%F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Loss for the year XEEHR (61,462) (49,335)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEEEM2E BIZ) KA
income for the year
Exchange differences on translation & E 9N B A B B # $R R
of financial statements ZERER
of foreign subsidiaries (22) 2,231
Total comprehensive expense XEEZXEARTEE
for the year (61,484) (47,104)
Total comprehensive expense THATEEZEMAZEHE
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company — ZANA &) #E 5 I B (55,152) (42,785)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (6,332) (4,319
(61,484) (47,104)
|
The notes on pages 69 to 210 form part of these consolidated 2698 £2108 M sH A It F47 4 B 155k
financial statements. KA o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 5 W 551K DL o

At 81 December 2012 R=—ZE——F1+=-FA=+—H

2012 2011
it et 2 —EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®TR ARBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Goodwill EES 15 267,298 269,637
Property, plant and equipment M - S RERE 16(a) 601,503 481,040
Prepaid lease payments for LEBRAHTEN A
land under operating leases 17 34,309 35,119
Intangible assets EREE 18 365,231 395,474
Deposits and prepayments e RIEHIE 19 53,485 33,682
Deferred tax assets BEBIREE 31(b) 152 189
1,321,978 1,215,141
Current assets mENEE
Prepaid lease payments for KEROTEN T HES
land under operating leases 17 810 810
Financial assets at fair value AR EFFAEBZE
through profit or loss HEREE 21 200 200
Other financial assets Hih & mEE 22 - 17,051
Inventories FE 23(a) 5,949 2,597
Trade and other receivables JEURBR R R M eI FRIE 24 187,387 138,758
Tax recoverable A Y =l F 18 31(a) - 687
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMREEEYD 25 29,437 21,698
223,783 181,801
Current liabilities mEAaRE
Trade and other payables JERTBRFR R AL FRIE 26 280,191 127,400
Bank and other borrowings due —FREEZRIT
within one year R H M ER 28 110,600 62,900
Obligations under finance leases BB TH 4 A IE 29 4,747 3,420
Provision B 27 2,507 —
Tax payable FERTHR IR 31(a) 22,253 13,556
420,298 207,276
Net current liabilities mBAESRE (196,515) (25,475)
Total assets less current liabilities #BEERAHE R 1,125,463 1,189,666
D —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 551K DL 3

At 31 December 2012 R=—E——#+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
it et 2 —EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AER®TR ARETF T
Non-current liabilities ERBRE
Bank borrowings SRITRE 28 5,400 —
Obligations under finance leases B & AR IE 29 1,405 4,256
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 31(b) 95,955 104,013
102,760 108,269
Net assets BEESE 1,022,703 1,081,397
Capital and reserves EXR G
Share capital R A 32(b) 34,828 34,828
Reserves fHE 965,232 1,017,594
Equity attributable to equity RN A= IRRE (LS
shareholders of the Company 1,000,060 1,052,422
Non-controlling interests e AR 4 2 22,643 28,975
Total equity HES 1,022,703 1,081,397

EEgR T =F=A-+LHEERK
% -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 March 2013.

Wang Zhong Sheng Kwok Shun Tim

ERBB SR#TE
Director Director
- -

FE69R 2108 < AR L 4R A W 53R
REFED -

The notes on pages 69 to 210 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

TE-CEFR TEHEREAERREEREXEEERAAF 63



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S 5IR DL A%

At 81 December 2012 R=—ZE——F1+=-FA=+—H

2012 2011
2% —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®T AREFIT

Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HESRERE 16(b) 688 1,529
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZKE 20 879,550 879,550
880,238 881,079

Current assets B E
Other financial assets EmemEE 22 - 17,051
Trade and other receivables FEUCBR R E M e UL ERIE 24 146,858 185,034
Cash and cash equivalents HekHeEEY 25 455 6,065
147,313 208,150
Current liabilities mE AR

Trade and other payables ERBRR R A ZRIE 26 8,751 9,540
Tax payable FERTFR IR 31(a) 42 56
8,793 9,596
Net current assets mEEERE 138,520 198,554
Total assets less current liabilities #EERTEHEE 1,018,758 1,079,633

Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 31(b) 2,548 2,179
Net assets BEERE 1,016,210 1,077,454

Capital and reserves BEXR
Share capital R 32(b) 34,828 34,828
Reserves i 32(a) 981,382 1,042,626
Total equity HER 1,016,210 1,077,454

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

27 March 2013.

Wang Zhong Sheng

ERBB
Director

EZE

The notes on pages 69 to 210 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EFEN_ZE=F=-A-THHMEREK

T -

Kwok S

hun Tim

SR#lTE
Director

EZE

FEOBE E2108 2 Mz AR Itk H 474 B 75 7R

REFED -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B B A 52 ) %

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARRERRREN
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share  Contributed General Translation option bonds  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TRk ES
e RnEE g BH —HE hEEE  BREER & ZiThiR B FERER By ol
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR®TT  ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at RZE--%£-f-8
1 January 2011 fEs 20,681 484,632 25,160 - (708) - 15,810 (112,446) 433,034 21,294 454,328
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - (45,016) 45,016) (4,319) (49,335)
Other comprehensive REFEMEZERA
income for the year - - - - 2,231 - - - 2,281 - 2,231
Total comprehensive T5E2E
income/(expense) Wi/ (%) 8%
for the year - - - - 2231 - - (45,016) (42,785) 8.319) (47,104)
Issue of new shares ETHRH
— Share placement — RiRE 4,744 176,717 - - - - - - 181,461 - 181,461
— Conversion of — BRTARES
convertible bonds 9,408 202,132 - - - - (188,222) - 43913 - 43913
Transaction costs ETHRARER AHA
attributable to issue
of new shares - (5,615) - - - - - - (5,615) - (5,615)
Capital contribution —ARBAREER
by non-controling BRNTE
interests of
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 12,000 12,000
Recognition of equity BRTARES 2 BRHH
component of
convertible bonds - - - - - - 413,621 - 413,621 - 413,621
Equity-settled share-based  bARES EH RN AR
payments 2 - - - - - 28,793 - - 28,793 - 28793
Lapse of share options B RIEX I - - - - - 417) - 47 - = -
Transfer to accumulated ~ BEZZHEE
losses - - (25,160) - - - - 25,160 - - -
Transfer to general reserve  EEZ—REE - - - 1523 - - - (1523) - - -
Balance at REE-—%+27
31 December 2011 “t-BHEH 34,828 878,366 - 1,623 1,628 28,376 241,209 (133,408) 1,062,422 28,975 1,081,397
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Ao B ot 5 W) ¢

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FLTRBRREN
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share General Translation option bonds  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
THRES
k% EhER -BEHE BERE  BREGE 1] RHER @t FBRER e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEWFR  ARWTT  ABWTR  ARRTT  ABWTR  ARRTR  ABMTR  ARRTR  ABWFR AR
Balance at 1 January 2012 R=E-—5-F-AH&H 34,828 878,366 1,523 1,528 28,376 241,209 (133,408) 1,052,422 28,975 1,081,397
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - - (55,130) (55,130) (6,332) (61,462)
Other comprehensive TEEAMRERS
expense for the year - - - (22) - - - (22 - (22
Total comprehensive IEERERREE
expense for the year - - - (22 - - (55,130) (55,152) (6,332) (61,484)
Equity-settled share-based  DARELE L R BER
payments VAL - - - - 2,790 - - 2,790 - 2,790
Lapse of share options ~~ BIRIELH - - - - (403) - 403 - - -
Transfer to general reserve  EEZ—REE - - 889 - - = (889) = = =
Balance at RZ8-Z%+ZR
31 December 2012 St-AmER 34,828 878,366 2,412 1,506 30,763 241,209 (189,024) 1,000,060 20,643 1,022,703

J

The notes on pages 69 to 210 form part of these consolidated 2698 £2108 Z Kl sH A It 474 B 155k

financial statements. REFRIG -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A Bl R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # %2 — & —

—EFZA=1+—HIEFE

2012 2011
—=E—_% —EF——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Lk AR®TTT ARETIT
Operating activities BEXY
Loss before taxation kR Al &R (53,517) (34,726)
Adjustments for: BTYZIEFAE
Depreciation of property, M - MBS RREBITE
plant and equipment 29,165 24,590
Amortisation of prepaid lease EHAOTIEN TH
payments for land under 05 8 4H
operating leases 810 738
Amortisation of intangible assets I B B 30,243 25,369
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 2,339 21,492
Interest income A EHA (44) (963)
Loss on disposal of property, MEWX - e K&
plant and equipment 2 BB 35 1,338
Recognition of equity-settled T 3R LA B 45 & LA IR (D
share-based payments RERE 2R 2,790 18,743
Impairment loss on trade JRE U5t B SRR B EL A FE UK
and other receivables I 2 REEE 2,940 1,000
Fair value loss/(gain) on HemEE 2 AT E
other financial assets BB (W) 17,051 (17,051)
Finance costs 7% 8 A 7,214 8,762
Fair value loss on the derivative AMRESITETER
component of convertible bonds w1 2 A FEFEE - 6,487
39,026 55,779
Changes in working capital: LEESHEE
Increase in inventories FEEM (3,352) (137)
Increase in trade and JE Y B 5% K2 EL b 8 Lk
other receivables FIELE N (51,569) (74,521)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JE 11 BR 3R e E At FE A< 3K
other payables BEM OB 64,423 (11,939
Increase in provision for HEEREBEIEN
production safety 2,507 —
Cash generated from/(used in) BEXBEE (BA)
operations ZHh& 51,035 (30,818)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMESH (6,582) (4,069)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EZXKEELE (BH)
operating activities ZHR&RE 44,453 (34,887)
Cash flows from investing activities It B EFHEEZHERE
Payment for purchase of property, EEYE - #eS RS
plant and equipment Z I (106,800) (132,778)
Proceeds from disposal of property, & - 7& 25 M
plant and equipment Zﬁﬁﬁfk 654 600
Deposits paid for acquisition of WIBE - HE B
property, plant and equipment IS 28] & (19,803) (10,712)
Payment for purchase of financial assets B & 4 gl & & 7 & - (200)
Interest received 2 U A& 44 963
Net cash inflow on acquisition of WM B AR 2B e
subsidiaries MAFRE 35 - 754
Net cash used in investing activities B EEZHRAZHELSHE (125,905) (141,373)
|
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

i Bl i bR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2012 2011
—ET—_"F —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TR ARBTT
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEZHEEZHERE
Capital contribution by non-controlling — & i /& /A & 3E 2 i%
interests of a subsidiary TR - 12,000
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITH R0 2 FR1S 3E - 181,461
Transaction costs for issue of new shares 217 #H I 1D 2 X B A - (5,615)
Proceeds from new bank and FTIGERTT R B A fE K
other borrowings Z FTS 508 66,000 —
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (12,900) (5,100)
Interest paid on bank and RITREMEK
other borrowings ZBERFE (6,268) (5,344)
Capital element of finance leases BEMRN 2 BRI D (4,100) (2,741)
Interest element of finance leases BEM A 2 M BB D (946) (1,129)
Change in other payable H b T BR R E & 47,425 —
Net cash generated from MEETDEEZH PR
financing activities 89,211 173,532
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRRe&EED
and cash equivalents 1/ (Rd) B 7,759 (2,728)
Cash and cash equivalents BW—RA—HZHR&
at 1 January RE&EED 21,698 23,567
Effect of foreign exchange Efxgmcovg
rate changes (20) 859
Cash and cash equivalents B+-B=+—HzZH&
at 31 December REEEED 25 29,437 21,698
The notes on pages 69 to 210 form part of these consolidated 2698 £2108 Z Kl sH A It 474 B 15 R

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 July 2002 under
the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” section in the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
exploitation, liquefaction production and sale of natural gas in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except
those disclosed otherwise in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 4.

2. FESHBE@®)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated (b) ZEVBRREREE &)

financial statements (Continued)

Going concern

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB61,462,000 during the year ended 31 December
2012 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB196,515,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and that the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

Nevertheless, the directors of the Company had adopted
the going concern basis in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group based on
the following factors:

(1)  Other borrowings of RMB80,000,000 disclosed in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
were due for repayment within 12 months in
accordance with the loan agreements entered into
between the Group and non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries of the Company (note 42). However,
prior to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, these borrowings had been
rolled over for a further 12 months and will be due
for repayment after 31 December 2013. Up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries of the Company have not indicated their
intention to withdraw the credit facilities granted to
the Group;

(2)  Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), a substantial
shareholder, the chairman and executive director of
the Company, has confirmed to provide continuing
financial support to the Group to enable it to continue
as a going concern and to settle its liabilities as and
when they fall due in the foreseeable future;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 205 e B ek

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(8) Management is formulating, and will implement, cost
saving measures to improve the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows;

(4) As detailed in note 43, subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing agreement on 14 March 2013,
whereby the Company has conditionally agreed to
place through the placing agent on a best effort
basis, a maximum of 400,000,000 placing shares
to independent investors at a price of HK$0.25 per
placing share. The maximum net proceeds from the
placing will be approximately HK$96.4 million; and

(65) The Company is exploring other sources of funding
including finance lease arrangement of
approximately RMB95 million as announced by the
Company on 21 May 2012.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve the
liquidity of the Company, the directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. According, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group
be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write-down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities
as current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk v W 05 o Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

(Continued)

(©) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests ) MBRARRFERES

MEBARANEEESZEE -

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fas 3 5 W R i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&

— A=+ —AIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income/expense for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk v W 05 o Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Business combinations and Goodwill

(i

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for the
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Business combinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

(i

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk v W 05 o Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Business combinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

(i

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

(Continued)
(d) Business combinations and Goodwill ) ¥BEHREE (@
(Continued)
() Business combinations (Continued) (i) XBEOHE)
When a business combination is achieved in stages, IMREH A GHEDPE BT
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the i - Bl EIZ YRR B A (BN AR
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition SEESEREZA)HR
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control) FEENTEARELAE
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in BB FR AR DS - B
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the HERER &R (nE) BT AR
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have g3 o PUEB B EBIRT - UER
previously been recognised in other comprehensive Hofth 2 T Y s P e R Y IO
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such WETHEDamMELEN T
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were B EEMOBRERE M
disposed of. WSS EFHERIE
mABHTERE -

If the initial accounting for a business combination RS AR LIRS A 6
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in MEEBE ORI 2P AR EIR
which the combination occurs, the Group reports sEfk - AIARSREARE H AR
provisional amounts for the items for which the ANRREVIE B R E E KA © %%
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional FEERBARTEHE
amounts are adjusted during the measurement (R 30 W% - AR
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities RINEEREE - ARBAR
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained S B R UEE B BIFER
about facts and circumstances that existed at the FERIRHF AR (nE)
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected HZHACHERATENTE -
the amounts recognised at that date.

The policy described above is applied to all business FHABREEAR _—_E—F
combinations that take place on or after 1 January F— R BRZEETHI
2010. BEBEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Business combinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fas 3 5 W R i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&

— A=+ —AIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Other investments in debt and equity

securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are
as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(t).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2())).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

2. FESHBE@®)

(e)

REBRRAE S 2 H MR
&

REEMARREBR
ZlSM%Z&,éf(T@? W%D\
A BEARRARZEHEEZ
1wz )Zﬂlﬁﬁ%ﬁ U

WIEB RN E F 2 RE KT
BAFEEIERZZE) IR - &
FAFEEE A S EEE (B
FEERFENBAT SN &
a+ B T SRt BISMB SN - AR

ABRERERXHHA - ZFKE
Efé?ﬁz‘l’iﬁﬁ LR FE DA
REER H M EEF 2B R

BRARBEE - EWEERXZK
AREEREBRR AR - XF
BERESERSHRENTE M
EHjZ{ETTEEﬁE'JEAT§¥WﬁE
B NBHEABRZBEFEDT
BREZFREMRIZ EARE
EHE - B Exﬁ?ﬂl%ﬁ*ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ
2(FTE 2 BURHERR -

WERNERTIZHRE - B e
SFTEEAFEZBRAFE S

B IR AR A RO E B B B R
&R AR (RHFE2() °

KEBEB IR AER A
HEREBRR 2 ANES
H %L\/\EEE/U/TEEEE%‘\ ©

BE
i

80

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(g)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2())).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits/accumulated losses
and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fas 3 5 W R i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&

— A=+ —AIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings held for own Over the shorter of
use unexpired term of the
leases or 30 years

— Leasehold improvements 2-5 years

— Pipelines 5-20 years

— Plant and machinery 3-10 years

— Computer equipment 3-5 years

— Furniture and 3-10 years
equipment

— Transportation and 4-10 years

motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes the costs of construction of the
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance these
assets during the period of construction or installation and
testing. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time the relevant assets
are completed and are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to other property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and
the drilling of commercially proven development wells but
do not include geological and geophysical costs which
are expensed directly to profit or loss as they are incurred,
is capitalised as coalbed methane development costs
within construction in progress. Coalbed methane
development costs are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. Coalbed methane development costs
are classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation on these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Tangible assets acquired for use in well drilling works of
ground drainage activities are classified as property, plant
and equipment.

Intangible assets (other than goodwilD)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2())).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwilD)

0)

(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use over their estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the
useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with
finite lives as set out above.

Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Lease assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases,
except that land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write-off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note
2(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 2(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Lease assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged as expenses in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term, except where the property
is classified as an investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. FESHBE@®)

(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) () EERE®
() Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) REBERBRAFSZRER

securities and other receivables (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  Forinvestments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, the impairment loss
is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(j)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(j)(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 205 e B ek

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&

— A=+ —AIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (Continued)

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk v W 05 o Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #;

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— goodwill;

—  property, plant and equipment;

— prepaid lease payments for land under
operating leases;

— intangible assets; and

— deposits and prepayments.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.,
a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fas 3 5 W R i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of a cash-
generating unit are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro-rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o)

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (see notes

2()() and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unlisted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Inventories (Continued)

)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(j)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

(m) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of any entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESFTEEX®
(Continued)

(m) Convertible bonds (Continued) m) TERES (&)

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
liability, conversion option and redemption option
components are classified separately into liability
component, equity component and derivative component
consisting of the redemption option of the Company
respectively. A derivative embedded in a non-derivative
host contract is treated as a separate derivative when its
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contract. On initial recognition, the fair value
of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible bonds.
The derivative component is carried at fair value on the
statement of financial position with any changes in fair
value being charged or credited to profit or loss in the
period in which the change occurs. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair values of the liability component and
derivative component related to the redemption option of
the Company is included in equity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component
of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The difference between the
interest so calculated and the interest paid is added to
the carrying amount of the liability component. The
derivative is remeasured to fair value through profit or loss
at subsequent reporting dates. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, remains
in convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (at which time the convertible bonds equity
component will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance remaining in convertible bonds
reserve is released to retained profits/accumulated losses.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 205 e B ek

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method. The portion relating
to the embedded derivative is charged directly to profit to
loss. Transaction costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly to convertible bonds reserve.

If the convertible bonds are redeemed by the Company
before maturity, the Company will allocate the
consideration paid and any transaction costs for the
repurchase or redemption to the liability and equity
components of the instrument at the date of the
transaction. The method used in allocating the
consideration paid and transaction costs to the separate
components is consistent with that used in the original
allocation to the separate components of the proceeds
received by the Company when the convertible instrument
was issued. Once the consideration is allocated, any
resulting gain or loss relating to the liability component is
recognised in profit or loss and the amount of
consideration relating to the equity component is
recognised in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit and loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Employee benefits

(i

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and mandatory central
pension schemes organised by the local government
of the PRC government are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

Share-based payments

Share options granted by the Company to
employees of the Group in an equity-settled
share-based payment arrangement

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial option pricing model, taking into
accounts the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total
estimated fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Share options granted by the Company to
employees of the Group in an equity-settled
share-based payment arrangement (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vests (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the share option reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to the retained profits/accumulated
losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(r)

(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)
Share options granted to consultant in an equity-
settled share-based payment transactions

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at fair values of the goods or
services rendered, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of goods or services received are recognised as
expenses immediately, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustment has been made to equity (share option
reserve).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fas 3 5 W R i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&

— A=+ —AIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set-off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

(Continued)
(N Income tax (Continued) " BB @)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if — WRELHBEEENARE -
they relate to income taxes levied by the same R — S EIRA T IER
taxation authority on either: B RS R
—  the same taxable entity; or — —ERRERE ; =X
— different taxable entities, which, in each future — TRMRMELR - FLER
period in which significant amounts of deferred FTEIETEHA A REERET I8
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be BEREEEIREERIESR
settled or recovered, intend to realise the AT AN B 89 18 R 2Rk R
current tax assets and settle the current tax M RFHERNEHIEE
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle EMEENBHEA EXE
simultaneously. SRMEENRKBEAE -
(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities (s) BERIARERE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing ARSI AR RRBEEHM
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal E\ﬁ—fﬁéﬁﬁl,ﬁ&ﬁﬂmumﬁﬁ—f
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past THZETSREEERME - BeelE
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits AT SR ET - BBt E BSPR 2K
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable TR BERREE - WMEKE
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is FEAEANE - RIBEILREEE
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the BESBERAIZREARE -

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic fin) P] B tH 78 B BB M 28 m H 3k
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be TeERI AT 28 - AR ES
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a ESARBERE - RIFLEN R
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of T2 AT BE MRS c (B REAE
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose I EE M RBGRREHT
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non- LAREE 2 ATBEEE » TRSIPESKA
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed BEERE  RIFLENRREZ
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow Al Be MR o

of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of liquefied coalbed gas and piped
natural gas

Revenue from sales of liquefied coalbed gas and
piped natural gas are recognised when the gas is
delivered and title has passed. Revenue excludes
value-added and business taxes, and is after
deduction of any goods returns and trade discounts.

Income from provision of gas supply
connection services

Revenue from provision of gas supply connection
services is recognised when the relevant
construction work is completed and connection
services are rendered.

Income from provision of liquefied coalbed gas
logistics services

Revenue from provision of logistics services is
recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1) Revenue recognition (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net less payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Value-added tax refund

Value-added tax refund is recognised when the
acknowledgement of refund from the PRC Tax
Bureau has been received.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
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are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the FRARBEANERER -
useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(1) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii) Government grants (Continued)
A government grant that becomes receivables as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the entity with no future related
costs shall be recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which it becomes receivable.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).
The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and the presentation currency is RMB. The
reason for using RMB as a presentation currency is that
the functional currency of the principal entities within the
Group is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESFTEEX®
(Continued)

() MEBRE &)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into RMB at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

W)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or completed.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(y)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
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of the Group or the Group’s parent. RAMEFTEEEREN
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHHE ®
(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued) (y) BEAL #E
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) i ?jf/m\—l—ﬁ‘JEﬂﬂ%@ CBE
conditions applies: RBEAEEBRE
() The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBEASEEBER
same group (which means that each parent, —SBZXE AR (B
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to E8R2A - WBAF
the others); NAEER Y= NCIE Y g
MAaRE) :
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of iy —HERBAS—E®
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture Bt E DRI AEZE D
of a member of a group of which the other ¥EE5—ERBARKE
entity is a member); NElZEEBEETKE
RAZEERBIHE
EE)
(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBHAR—
party; =M EEDRE
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy " HEBAE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the third BHAELE M3
entity; —BERBA%E=FE
R E AR
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan Vv EBERAREENER
for the benefit of employees of either the Group SEEEEZERY
or an entity related to the Group; & B T 2 &% 3 B B B
mAETE
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by Vi) EfEX(@ )Fﬁﬁﬁk}?”/\i?
a person identified in (a); and Hll g HL RS
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) R@O)FTHERIATHE
influence over the entity or is a member of the RBEEAXENSE
key management personnel of the entity (or of ZEE (AZEENY
a parent of the entity). RENEEEBEK
E o
Close members of the family of a person are those EA BT K EK B 157E 8
family members who may be expected to influence, ZERBETRZREHA &
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with Z . SXZEATENRE
the entity. KE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Deferred Tax: Recovery

of Underlying Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRSs has no material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new and revised standards and interpretation which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and which
have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements.
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures*

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BFfERNES »®

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BEMGWmEER 2FTA
F9%

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BV BREER LFLHBFHREX

Statements? F105%

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? BV BREER HaeZH
F115%

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in BV BREEN HERAEMELRE

Other Entities? 1088 T

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial BAEMBREED LFABERK -

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint E10%% - BA BE LR
Arrangements and B i R 2Rl HERAM
Disclosures of Interests in FUHERES B o -
Other Entities: Transition B 7% 3R &5 2 B BEIE S
Guidance? F125RZAERT A

EBMERELED REFHE
F£105% - FF

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities®

B 75 R &5 ZE Al
F129 REE
2EHERIFE 275
ZABET AR
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? BEAVBREEL QFEHE
F135%
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Iltems of Other BB G ERF1 EMEEKA
Comprehensive Income’ ZIEET AR EHEH 25
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits? BB G AR 1E 8 15 FP
F195% (R=F
——F{8E])
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements? BB G AR CAVA )
F27H (R=F
——F{8E])
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and BB G AR KRB &2 al &
Joint Ventures? F285R (M= F BEPEZ
——FE37]) -
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and BB G AR Y2 m & =
Financial Liabilities® EI2FZEITAR THEE
HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production 5 (BB 15 BRBES L E
Phase of a Surface Mine? WEEARE & B2 .~ FER
ZEg) —#E A

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretation is expected to be in the period of initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether those
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretation
would have a significant impact on the Group’s or the
Company’s results of operations and financial position.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Estimation of impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units (“CGU(s)”) to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31
December 2012, the carrying amount of the Group’s
goodwill was approximately RMB267,298,000
(2011: RMB269,637,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Estimation of impairment of goodwill

(Continued)

An impairment loss of approximately RMB2,339,000
(2011: RMB21,492,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2012 resulting in the carrying amount
of the piped natural gas CGU located in Guangxi
being written down to its recoverable amount.

Estimation of impairment of intangible assets
The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2(j). The recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates,
and other assumptions underlying the value in use
calculations. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of the Group’s intangible assets was
approximately RMB365,231,000 (2011:
RMB395,474,000).

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(g). The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different from previous estimates, or will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment was
approximately RMB601,503,000 (2011:
RMB481,040,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # %= — &

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2(h). The
determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses
the useful life of the intangible assets and, if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the amortisation in the year
and the estimate will be changed in the future period.

Estimation of impairment of trade and other
receivables

The policy for recognising impairment on receivables
of the Group is based on an evaluation of the
collectibility and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. If the financial conditions of the Group’s
debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
on the basis of the estimated selling price less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. Management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. As at 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of the Group’s inventories was
approximately RMB5,949,000 (2011:
RMB2,597,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Measurement of convertible bonds

On the issue of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this
amount is carried as a long-term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The difference between
the proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair values of liability and derivative
components is recognised and included in the
convertible bonds reserve, net of transaction costs.
The splitting of the liability, derivative and equity
components requires estimation of the market
interest rate and the use of valuation techniques
(note 30).

Fair value of other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group estimates the fair
value of these financial instruments based on
financial modeling which requires various sources
of information and assumptions. The carrying
amount of other financial assets (representing
contingent consideration receivable) as at
31 December 2012 was Nil (2011: RMB17,051,000),
further details of which are given in note 22 to these
consolidated financial statements.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted to employees
were calculated using the Binomial option pricing
model involving estimates including estimated life
of share options granted, future dividends and
volatility of share price.

4.

STHE R &R @

(@ fEEFTTAREMZRIR (&)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

R ESFNTE
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BRI 2 A FETIFRBRE

PNAARHE R 2 TS R &
E - Mk BRI A E
EARIIERBAE  BE
BEFERBRABOREHES
b o BITRIMREFNME
RIREBERITET ARD
AT EZZERE  THEHE
R HRAE I A AR B SR
BHERMAR- - E0 A
B TETANERENA
BTG FR AR (G AT A
EET% (MEE30) °

Htt&mIT Az DAFE
WENERTISZEE 2SR
TEZAFEFERGHERE
BE -  AEEERSRER
HEteMIAEZAFE H
FPEEZHEAHRREER
Ho-RZE—=—F+= A=
+—H EtterEE A
ERHERE) 2FEEAR
T(ZE——F : AR¥
17,051,0007T) @ # —#F&F
BENILEREMBRERZ
BizE22 ©

ERHBRENMGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(x)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set-up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

4. ST HEREE @)

(@) fEEFTTPREMZRIR (&)

()

Fris#i

BEEMB BT MARRE
TR ZMIBFEZ HE -
AEEFEN AR ZOHGE
FE - WHEFELTER
B BRAXSZRGHES
EHIERE - Wt MBUA
HE) - B RKEATIAE
BIOWERSETEHRREE
- HEARERRE® A A] gE R
RERTNASRZERR
R - RETEA THRAIEL
MIRAESH  ARBARK
JERR B M) 2 A] e ) B 3K
BB R AR R R B R RS 1F
HEBREEREHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fas 3 5 W R i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —E— —F+_A=1+—HIFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following critical accounting
judgements:

(i

Renewal of gas business operating permits

The Group holds certain gas business operating
permits with licence period of 1 to 4 years at date of
issue which will be expired in year 2013 to 2016
and the renewal of which is subject to the approval
by the relevant PRC authorities. In the opinion of
the directors, taking into account legal opinion from
the Company’s PRC legal counsel, there are no legal
impediments for the Group to renew its gas business
operating permits upon expiry.

If the Group were unable to renew these permits
upon expiry, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
goodwill and intangible assets of approximately
RMB267,298,000 (2011: RMB269,637,000) and
RMB365,231,000 (2011: RMB395,474,000)
respectively might be significantly reduced, and the
Group might increase amortisation charges of those
assets where their useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it might write-off or write-
down the carrying amounts of those assets.

4.

25 & E ()

(b) HEEAREESTBRRK
ez ERETHER

BN B @ IR B R
o EBEEEEU TEAR
#18 :

() RARFEHEEFITENE
=
AEBIHBAETRARED
ICERTRIRE - NE L HEN
BRHE R —E0F - Wi
RZE—= _F—RF3
Hi - Mz ST Al B &S
AEFHEBETEBA AR
o BERR ERIAR
APBEEBERMNERE
R REBERERARED
BT B R AR T T A
NFHEEDERRERE -

fmE AR EE AR Z T
BEERER - AIANEER
EREREENRAED R
#ANR#267,298,0007T
(ZZE——F : ARK
269,637,00070) K AR ¥
365,231,000 (Z & ——
F : AR¥395,474,0007T)
AREE AIEMRE - MASE
AREE I NERFEORZ
AIEETMRZEEENEIHE
FA S AT Be s S MUR % 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

TURNOVER 5.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied and
services provided to customers, which excludes value-added
and business taxes and trade discounts. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during
the year is as follows:

3

EEBRATPERHE M LIRS 2 H
EE ETEEEERIERBAR
BENN - FARNEXBRRBZER

BERW BRI EMT

2012 2011
—E—_F —F——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Sales of liquefied coalbed gas BICKEERIEE 131,843 212,067
Provision of liquefied coalbed gas et /& b 1 B &7 R
logistics services 13,470 13,790
Sales of piped natural gas EBRARIMHE
(including provision of gas (BERHEHRERRS)
supply connection services) 38,521 27,992
183,834 253,849
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Hitlw AR Wz
2012 2011
—ET—_F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Interest income from bank deposits £ 1777 3 2 F U A 44 102
Other interest income H A B U A - 861
Net foreign exchange gain HNPE Uy 25 F 5B 79 —
Rental income e WA 3,830 —
Government grants DT 2 Bh
— PRC Enterprise Income — R EEMEFERE (iEs(a)
Tax refund (note 8(a)) 821 930
Other income (note) H U A (B5) 50,887 34,222
55,661 36,115
|

Note: Included in other income for the year ended 31 December 2012
was a compensation income of approximately RMB50,750,000
(2011: RMB34,060,000) to compensate for the shortage of electricity
supply in the industrial zone where the Group operates. There are
no other specific conditions attached to the compensation and,
therefore, the Group recognised the compensation income in profit
or loss for the year.

We &2 —T——F+_A=+—HIF
EREMRABIERUBERNEEL
BRI TR T )4 FE A2 R A (8 IR
A#)ANR#50,750,0007T (—F——
F: ARM34,060,0007T) ° s EL
A MR - Bt - AEE
A E B ERA R BZE AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E
7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRELAIE 18
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREiAT 2B EE MR ATRIE
2012 2011
2% =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
(a) Staff costs (a) BIR%E (BiEMEoRm
(including directors’ and EERTTHERTHEH)
chief executive’s
emoluments in note 9)
Salaries, wages and e IERHEMET
other benefits 20,087 16,800
Retirement benefit RRRE M ET B R
scheme contributions 2,838 2,174
Equity-settled share-based LA B& #E 4% e HARGD BE
payment expenses pANE N3 1,909 9,193
Total staff costs BETKA 24,834 28,167
(b) Other items (b) HMIEE
Cost of inventories FE 2 A (B 5E23(b))
(note 23(0)) 95,734 139,330
Auditors’ remuneration A% B % B
— audit services — RER 1,466 663
— other services — AR - 332
Depreciation of property, W - WERERERE
plant and equipment 29,165 24,590
Equity-settled share-based B TR 2 AR E R
payment expenses in 2 VARR R LS E LA D B
respect of share options EM 2R AX
granted to consultants 105 9,550
Amortisation of prepaid KEMA T IEN L & 8 8
lease payments for land
under operating leases 810 738
Amortisation of intangible mEEAESE GTAHERTN)
assets (included in cost
of sales) 30,243 25,369
Impairment loss on trade R 2 AR R e EL A i MK R TR
and other receivables 2 REEE (FFAEA
(included in other KERY)
operating expenses) 2,940 1,000
Net foreign exchange loss SN B3 18 )5 58 - 544
Loss on disposal of HEME WSS REREZEE
property, plant and (FFAHM&LERE)
equipment (included in
other operating
expenses) 35 1,338
Operating lease charges in THREFIKEROER
respect of land and
buildings 898 1,368
|

120

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7.

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: (Continued)

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

BREAIE R (@

BRRA 2 BIEEMRA TSR (B)

2012 2011
—E——f —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR¥ETTT
(c) Finance costs (c) MERF
Interest expenses on HARRAFANREERE ZRTT
bank and other REAMER T ERAEZ
borrowings wholly
repayable within
five years* 6,113 5,344
Other finance cost H g & AR 155 —
Effective interest expense ARRES s BERMN B
on convertible bonds (P$5E30)
(note 30) — 2,289
Finance charges on BMEMNAEZHREER
obligations under
finance leases 946 1,129
Total interest expense on WIRAFEGFABRZ 22/
financial liabilities BEZNERXERE
not at fair value through
profit or loss 7,214 8,762
|

Interest expenses on other borrowings paid to

non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries amounted to
approximately RMB3,943,000 during the year (2011:

RMBS3,770,000).

* FA - ENHE R RSEERE

R E A

ZHBRXK R

AR#3,943,0007T (—F——
F : AR#¥3,770,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8. HMEWBRAZFIBH
INCOME STATEMENT
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) #HEWEKRAZHIERE
2012 2011
—g——% —EF—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREF T
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BEJHAIRIE — FEICEMRER
Income Tax (“EIT”) (TREMRBRD
Provision for the year REZEE 15,283 16,429
Under-provision in BEFERETR
respect of prior years 683 631
15,966 17,060
Deferred tax BERIEA
Origination and reversal of TR EEEERED
temporary differences (8,021) (2,451)
7,945 14,609
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as RArBREBEREHSQARATR
an exempted company with limited liability under the EHEAMKIAEREBRA
Company Law of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is A At EREBANRESHEFT
exempted from payment of the Cayman Islands income tax. 1B/ o
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the HE-ZT——-F+-A=+—H
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 IEFE2EBNEBIZMFER
December 2012 (2011: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong BmHz16.5% (2T ——F :
Profits Tax has been made as the Group has no estimated 16.5%) 5t H - MR AEEREE
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for —E——FF+ZA=+—HL
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). FEVYERBEBEEIREDRH
B EHERBR A (2T ——F -
/) MU EABANERIELT
A L4 -
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the NI A RV AR IR T AR A R B
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant KIRITERARETE -
countries.
Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and BETFBEBERPERGSHRER
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of ([EERBTE]) REEMEH
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. EEMES - PBRMBATE =
TEEZNF—A—HRBZMEA
25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk v W 05 o Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8. WEWBRAZAMER ®
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: @ #HAEWBZERAZRHRIEE: (B)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, a PRC REBE-_E——F+=-A=+—
subsidiary, namely ;A L B2 gEJR B BR 2 7] (transliterated HIEFE @ —HPBEMB R
as Hebei Shuntai Energy Resources Company Limited) ez R B R 2 F ([ )E
(“Hebei Shuntai”) is entitled to a preferential EIT refund N EZEETCEMSHERGE -
treatment. The refund was equal to 100%, 50% and 10% RBEIRRB T —TFAE
of the EIT paid to the PRC State Bureau of Taxation for —E-TFH+ZR 2T —F
the period from June 2010 to December 2010, January —AEZZT—=F+=AHBEN
2011 to December 2013 and from January 2014 onwards rBZZE—NF— AR HIM
respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2012, ETR IR &= SRR
Hebei Shuntai is entitled to a new preferential EIT refund 100% * 50% K% 10% c REE—F
treatment, the refund is equal to 20% of the EIT paid to ——F+ZA=1+—HLFE"
the PRC State Bureau of Taxation for the period from AL IERZ A EMSHRER
January 2011 to December 2013. Fid o RBER T —F —H

E_T-=F1 " AHHRER
MFRHAEEMFERH20% °

(o)  Reconciliation between income tax charge and accounting b) RERMRFAEZMEHRL HE
loss at applicable tax rates: SHEEWENMT
2012 2011
—T=—_%F —EF——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ETTT
Loss before taxation MRS E (53,517) (34,726)
Notional tax on loss before 1% A8 B8 ¢ %5 &) )% #E & i FA T K51 &
taxation, calculated at ZBRBRBEAERTIA
the rates applicable to
the tax jurisdictions
concerned (13,392) (7,705)
Tax effect of non-deductible “~A] 1R BT 2 2 B 1B 77 £
expenses 10,041 11,467
Tax effect of non-taxable ~ HERFU I 2 B £
income — (4,263)
Tax effect of tax losses G Sk -2
not allowed for tax
deduction 10,578 5,753
Tax effect of unused tax RERHREARIBEEOT B E
losses not recognised - 5,626
PRC withholding tax P EITEHEL 369 3,200
Utilisation of tax losses AR ERIARER 2 BIAEE
previously not recognised (334) —
Under-provision in BEFERETR
respect of prior years 683 631
Income tax charge Frigfis i 7,945 14,609
D —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

8.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(©)

Pursuant to the EIT Law in the PRC, from 1 January 2008,
non-resident enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which have an
establishment or place of business in the PRC but whose
relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the PRC, will be
subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10% (unless
reduced by tax treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources within the PRC.

Pursuant to the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement
and the related regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for a reduced withholding tax rate
of 5% on dividends from a PRC enterprise if the Hong
Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25%
or more of the equity interest of the PRC enterprise. A
withholding tax rate of 5% is applicable to entities held
by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary.

8.

BEWBRAZFBH @)

(©

RIBFPEEEMAERE A-F
ENF-A—RAE  EFERA
RERUME 5P REHRAED
BIEARILEE - HSAEREZ
WA BREIE R B R PT RS
LA BEERBEZIFERD
% BEZEEF WA QR
REREAZRE) R10%H X (B
FHR B UIR TE R SR) B AR TRFOA ©

RIEBETEESHR LR EBR
T RMEARMBRERSTEEE
MIESEBA] > XRBZXT
PER2B5%HA EIRAERE - A&
REEHVERETBREEIRN
MR B R 2 B R R R
5% o HAERBEMAKILZHIE
NRAFBCEBZENMBRER
5% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFETHAEMNE
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2011: BENSERNG(ZE——F : NE)
eight) directors and the chief executive were as follows: EERFETBRABZMEET -
( Equity- )
Retirement settled
Salaries benefit share-hased
and other Discretionary scheme payment 2012
Fees emoluments bonus  contributions Sub-total expenses Total
B HBHRE
weR B4R NRhaER -3-Z

fié  KEEH  BRRL HDER it ZHERY #it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB000
ABRTR  ARRTT  ARRTR ARRTR ARRTIR ARRTR ARRTR

Executive directors BiER

Wang Zhong Sheng I8k - 1,059 - 15 1,074 - 1,074

Feng San Li (note) B (W) - 93 - - 93 - 93

Shi Liang it = 36 - 1 47 - 47

Zhang Qing Lin KR - 122 - - 122 - 122

Fu Shou Gang e - 528 - - 528 - 528

Independent non-executive ~ HUFHITES

directors

Wang Zhi He B! 47 - - - 47 - 47

Luo Wi Kun BeR 95 - - - 95 - 95

Pang Yuk Fong 2] | - - - | - 4
183 1,838 - 26 2,047 - 2,047
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFETHAEMNE

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
Equity-
Retirement settled
Salaries benefit Share-hased
and other  Discretionary scheme payment 2011
Fees  emoluments bonus  contributions Sub-total exXpenses Total
NRERE
ek RN WRhARER —T—-F
ik Hih 5 BERLL Rl N ZRFER fazt

RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RWBOO0  RMB'OOO  RMBO00  RMBOOD
ARBT  ARBTL  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTr  ARBTn  ARETx

Executive directors iER

Wang Zhong Sheng By - 865 - 1 876 505 1,381

Feng San Li (note) B=7 (K32) - 396 - - 396 505 901

ShiLiang % - 3% - 11 47 - 47

Zhang Qing Lin FEH - - - - - 505 505

Fu Shou Gang OEL! - 453 - - 453 505 958

Independent non-executive ~ HUFHTES

directors

Wang Zhi He G| 43 - - - 43 - 43

Luo Wei Kun BiEE 83 - - - 8 - 83

Pang Yuk Fong 2] 4 - - - H - 4
167 1,750 - 2 1939 200 3,959

Note: PR EE -

The chief executive of the Company Mr. Feng San Li, was also a director ARATTHAE E=R5EETRARATIES o

of the Company. Mr. Feng San Li was appointed on 17 June 2011 and B=FEERZTE——F AT+ -HEZEL

retired on 26 November 2012. RZE—ZF+—AZ+HRFE-
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10.

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments in the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
No inducement payments to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office were paid or payable to any
director or the chief executive for the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two (2011 four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

9.

10.

ESRFETHAENS
()

REBEE-ZTE——_k-_FT——F+=A
=+T—HLEFE BEXIESTHAER
RAMEZEEREAAMNE - REEZ
TE—FRZE——F+ZA=T+—
HIEFE  WEMEAESKEETNT
A B BRI ARSE B =
MAREE R 2 HELBERHE -

RE#FAL
AEBREREFALH WA (CE

——F MR R/EF  KFEZMER
BIZEOMEE - Rtb=% (=T ——%F

other three (2011: one) individual(s) are as follows: —Z)ATZHEBEBEHNT :
2012 2011
—E—%f —EF——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥4 + TE& & E 1@ F 520 61
Retirement benefit scheme RRRE A ET B K
contributions 24 4
Equity-settled share-based VARS8 45 B LARR 10 73 BB
payment expenses ZRFAX 204 5,055
748 5,120
|
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The emoluments of the three (2011: one) individual(s) with the

10.

BEaH AL @

=H(CE—F —R)BREFAL

highest emoluments are within the following bands: ZHENFUATEE :
2012 2011
—2—_F —
Number of Number of
individual individual
AB AER
HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 Z £ 1,000,000/ 7T 3 —
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 T £ 5,500,000/% 7T - 1
11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 1. KRR EERREGEE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of BE-_ZT——F+T-A=1T—HILF
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes B ARREGREEGGABES
a loss of approximately RMB35,101,000 (2011: FERARAUBEMERERE 2 BEL
RMB28,361,000) which has been dealt with in the financial AR#35,101,000C (ZE——4F : A
statements of the Company. R #28,361,0007T) °
12. DIVIDEND 12. RE

No dividend has been proposed or declared by the directors
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011 Nil).

HE_ZT——F+-_A=+—HIt#F
B BEEUVERBRNHIERKE (=
T——F F) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # %2 — & —

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is based
on the following data:

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

—F =A== HIEFEE

13. EREE

RAFEGERREEERERLEE
EETRE N BURRTH -

2012 2011
—B——F —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Loss -]
Loss for the year attributable to & & % E 7N & 858 F5 18 85 5K A
equity shareholders ZARNAERRREGEFRNER
of the Company for the purposes
of basic and diluted loss
per share (55,130) (45,016)
2012 2011
—B——F —
’000 ‘000
T B F A%
Number of shares B8 H
Issued ordinary shares R—H—BzBE&iTEmA
at 1 January 3,942,505 2,256,675
Effect of issue of shares BRRODEEEITRD 2FE
by share placement - 351,257
Effect of conversion of AR EREER s FE
convertible bonds - 341,712
Weighted average number of ATEERERLREEEERKA
ordinary shares at 31 December ZR+—-A=+—H
for the purposes of basic 2 E A niE
and diluted loss per share 3,942,505 2,949,644

Diluted loss per share attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011
is the same as the basic loss per share as the effect of dilutive
potential ordinary shares from share options and convertible
bonds are anti-dilutive.

BE-_ZT——fR-_T——F+=A
=t HLEFEARRBEEBREMN
FREEBBESRENEBRMAR -
REZEE R AT ES 2 #5EE
HEEBERAEEREEME
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‘%A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 — =&

14.

oA e o Y ik

— A=+ —AIEE

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s operating segments are determined based on
information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”), being the Company’s board of directors, for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment.
The CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting, assesses
the performance and allocates the resources of the Group as a
whole, as all of the Group’s activities are considered to be
primarily dependent on the performance of exploitation,
liquefaction production and sale of natural gas in the PRC.
Therefore, the CODM considers there is only one operating
segment under the requirements of HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments. In this regard, no segment information is presented.

Additional disclosure in relation to segment information is not
presented as the CODM assess the performance of the sole
operating segment identified based on the consistent
information as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

The total segment result is equivalent to total comprehensive
expense for the year as shown in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and the total segment assets and
total segment liabilities are equivalent to total assets and total
liabilities as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

14. 22,

AEENEEDBIREANEREZ
REAN(EREEEREAL EHK/AEJ
EE9)BERIEMKRBRNEME2H
MEMMERE - ERAKENMER
BUESETBERBENETBERAK - &
EEERBERARNRE  BFE
ERBANER LRI ARBENNA
MER  FAHAEENRRE D EA
SEER - At - BREERRAR
RIRBEEBMBERELNESHR KL
DEBIMRTE - AEREEE —ERED
BeoptltmE - WEZIDFER -

MR EFELERRAREBSEE VB R
RPWEN—BEHMTZEZHD
ME—REDM2RE AL EZS
B REREIMKRE -

DRFARBRERNEEEHEKER
PRRKANFE 2 EF AR5 - o
BERERSBAEABAESNG
BUBRREKATNBEEERESR

%O
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

(b)

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

14. 7 H2H (&)

Geographical information () IBE R

The Group principally operates in Hong Kong and the REBFEABFERPRHALEE
PRC. % o

AREE MR E S DA KA I

BEFHEEERIRDEED
ERFFIMT

The Group’s turnover from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
locations are detailed below:

Turnover from

external customers Non-current assets*

REIBERHERE FREBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
2% | 3% | 288 | -T—%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTRE | AR¥ETT | AR®TR ARETT
Hong Kong BB - - 170 449
PRC H 183,834 253,849 1,321,656 1,214,503
183,834 258,849 1,321,826 1,214,952
D —
* Non-current assets excluding deferred tax assets. * IEMBVEETBIREERIBEE ©

b)) FEEFMWER

Information about major customers

HEFERBEFNEREBE
REBBRZHI10%HZFFSMAT -

Turnover from customers of corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group is as

follows:

2012 2011

—2—_F =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFIT

Customer A =FA N/A' RiE A 35,371
Customer B =FB 20,176 N/A" 3
Customer C ®FEC N/A' F3&E B 32,042
Customer D =FD 24,237 28,838
44,413 96,251

~ @@

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total turnover of the Group.

1

FEAE 2 0 SR R A S L 2

FEH10% °

—E-"EFHR PEHBERABRES
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15.

GOODWILL 15. B8
The Group rEE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost: 5%
At 1 January 2011 R—E——F—H—H 186,279
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W BE M B~ 7] (BF5E35) 157,821
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 W_E——FR-_FT——F+=-_A=+—H 344,100
Accumulated impairment losses: RiREESR :
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H 52,971
Impairment loss BIEEE 21,492
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=A=+—H
and 1 January 2012 rZZE——F—HA—H 74,463
Impairment loss BB EE 2,339
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=ZH=+—H 76,802
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2012 wW-—Ee——-_f£+-"H=+—H 267,298
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=ZHA=+—H 269,637
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15. GOODWILL (continueq) 15. B8 &)

BERECRSELBNUZRE

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

//\IJﬁ
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes FMESETHRSEESEMANETH
to the following groups of CGUs: BRI
2012 2011
—E—_F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Piped natural gas UREANEERAR
located in Guangxi - 2,339
Coalbed methane exploration HERERLAE  RARRIE
and development, natural gas EBRIERAR (RIERAR]) 7 85
liquefaction and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG”) distribution 267,298 267,298
267,298 269,637

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

Coalbed methane exploration and development,
natural gas liquefaction and LNG distribution

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
value in use calculations with reference to an independent
professional valuation. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and
growth in revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates the discount rate of 20.73% (2011: 18.67%) using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. Changes
in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience
and expectations of changes in the market.

The value in use calculations are derived from cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period have been extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3% (2011: 3%) per annum which is based on industry
growth forecasts.

tRBEELE LLZTH&Z@%%E%/E
NEMBE2/REMALTT

KERBRRAE  RARBIL
KRR RAR D H

ARESEEEMNZAIREESENLE
BUBEGERBFEREEBENE - £
AEBEXZ\REEARFE S
EWAREREERAZBE - &
BE s - BhIREK £20.73% (ZF——
F :18.67%) * HFERAREEE ATE KR
MEBEBE MSHARBESEAEN Y
BFERBRZBRAIFNE SEBRER
RAZ BB TIABENBEHRETS
TBEE B AEE o

EREEFENREREEEE &
ZEHARRSFENBREMES 2 RS
METEA - HBESFHE RERERE
AR FIEREIN(ZE——F -
3%) HH  ZFERXRTIUITEERRE
B ELE o
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15. GOODWILL (continueq) 15. B8 &)
Coalbed methane exploration and development, HERBAEREE  XAKRK
natural gas liquefaction and LNG distribution {ERBICRARD H (&)
(Continued)
The directors are of the view that, based on its assessment, EERE BEEMS ABReELE
there was no impairment of goodwill as of 31 December 2012 BURBE-_T——F+-HA=+—
in respect of this CGU (2011: Nil). HYEEmERE(CE——F: %) o
In the opinion of the directors, any reasonable possible change %%;ﬁd% EaE A RE 2 E SR
in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying ARSI ERAREELENZ
amount of this CGU to exceed its recoverable amount. E{Eﬁ@tﬂﬁﬁ—f”&@f\%gﬂ °
Piped natural gas located in Guangxi URBEANEEXRAR
The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on AEeEABEMZAIKBeEII2E
value in use calculations with reference to an independent ﬁ VEXHERBEABEAEE
professional valuation. The key assumptions for the value in cEREBEFECTERRIDEY
use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and $$FZHEEE$ IR AR R E K
growth in revenue and direct costs during the year. Management RZRFE - BREME  BEXR
estimates the discount rate of 20.45% (2011: 17.10%) using 20.45% (ZF——%F : 17.10%) * JyfE
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the AR E I EEREREE TS
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. Change MRS EABMN 2 ERR 2 BRIFEA
in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience ME - EBREEKARIZEB TG
and expectations of changes in the market. FMGEBREMGEMEEHRELE -
The value in use calculations are derived from cash flow FREEFENREREEEEE
projections based on the most recent financial budgets for the B ARSFNBIEREFTES RS
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond METEA - BEasFHE RERERE
the 5-year period have been extrapolated using a steady growth AR FEREI% (2T ——F -
rate of 3% (2011: 5%) per annum which is based on industry 5%) HEE  ZFRERTIAITER R
growth forecasts. B A B E o
Based on value in use calculations at 31 December 2012, the BE-_ZE-——F+-_A=+—RHzf*
recoverable amount of the piped natural gas CGU located in REEBEHE  MREANEERAR
Guangxi was found to be less than its carrying amount. REELEE M—MSZ BeBERER
Accordingly, impairment loss on goodwill allocated to the piped BeRAl PETUREANEEX
natural gas’s CGU located in Guangxi of approximately ARBECEEBEVUNHEREFBELY
RMB2,339,000 (2011: RMB21,492,000) has been recognised ARM2,339,0007T (ZE——4F : A
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended R#21,492,00070) ERBEEZE T —=
31 December 2012. FT+ZA=T—BLEFEZHEE N

i‘%lﬁﬁﬁa@ °©
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y15 - BRRE
(@ The Group (@) XKH
Buildings Furniture  Transportation
held for Leasehold Plant and Computer and and motor ~ Construction
ownuse  improvements Pipelines machinery equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
L] ERIR

BF HREBIE Ef  BERGR  RMBR  GERBW RRE BRI it
RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOI0  RMBOO0  RMBOX  RMBON
ABRTR  ABRFR  ABRTR  ABRFRL  ARRIR ARRIR ARRFR ABRER  ABMER

Cost R
At1 January 2011 f’f‘“A’“ﬁ‘ﬂ‘E 80,540 13 JARIY 161,114 138 1765 2972 14217 324,088
Addtions g - 72 - 40 109 753 18,351 125,020 144,99
Acquiston of subsidiares (ote 35 WK B2 (H23) - - - 9014 17 122 150 62,424 iR
Transfer flom construction in progress #EBTEEH - - 873 10,831 k3 - - (11,739) -
Disposals & - 73) (5,126 - - (86) 2.802) - 8,087)
Exchange adjustments EffE - ] - - - ) - - (15)
At 31 December 2011 and RE—%TCA=t-R

1 January 2012 h-E--%-5-H 80,540 175 36,804 180,999 299 2548 40,6m 189,982 532,108
Addtions HE - - 18 6,585 3 266 2,582 140,17 160,319
Transferfom constructon i progress #EETEER 37,380 - 552 3,848 - - - (73,760 -
Disposel be - 13%) - - 5) (12 672) - (1229
Exchange adjustments EifE - 3 - - - - - - 3
At 31 December 2012 R-E--E+-fA=+-H 17,900 389 37,578 28432 283 2,689 42,581 256,939 681,791

Accumulated depreciation RitEREE
and impairment

At 1 Janvary 2011 RZE-—%-4-5 478 8 359 16453 ki 642 3075 - 28,660
Charge for the year mr XH 891 189 1945 11,181 9 581 6,725 - 24590
Disposals i - [52) (360) - - (84 (887) - [1573)
Exchange adjustments EiE - () - - - () - - 0
At 3t December 2011 and RoE--F+-f=1-H

1 Janvary 2012 R-E-£-F-A 8,755 21 4,988 27,584 79 113 8013 - 51,668
Charge for the year KRR 3917 222 2,087 15,290 5 i 7,159 - 2,165
Disposals i - (164) - ] 6) (110) (278) - (350
Exchange adjustments EifE - 5 - - - - - - 5
At 31 December 2012 HoF-ZEf2f=t-B 1273 27 7075 481 126 1402 15,79 - 80,288
Carrying amount BEE
At31 December 2012 RZZ-ZE+2AZ+-R 105,168 102 30,503 180,560 157 1,267 2,187 256,039 601,503
At 31 December 2011 HZE-—-%+zA=1-A 7178 561 31,908 183,415 0 1413 31,758 189,982 481040
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(@) The Group (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The buildings held for own use are situated on land held under
medium-term leases in the PRC.

The pipelines of the Group are located in the PRC.

At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of the Group’s
pipelines pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings was
approximately RMB28,397,000 (2011: RMB30,190,000).

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s building held for own use
and plant and machinery with carrying amount of
approximately RMB58,884,000 (2011: Nil) and
RMB118,753,000 (2011: Nil) respectively were pledged.

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets held under finance
leases (included in transportation and motor vehicles) at 31
December 2012 was approximately RMB10,754,000 (2011:
RMB9,980,000).

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s building held for own use
with carrying amount of approximately RMB8,925,000 (2011:
RMB9,423,000) was subjected to guarantee in relation to the
arbitration proceedings between the Group and the CBM
supplier as detailed in note 41(i).

16. 1% - BRFTHE B

() X&EHE (@)

MEeE

(i

(i)

(iv)

FrEBE M2 B FAIE+ B
GEROES s P nt

AEBZEBURTE -

R-B——F+=-A=+—8H -
BAREBEBTERMIKRE 2 A&
EEECZEEBENAARE
28,397,0007C (ZZ——%F : A
R #30,190,0007T) °

RZBE—ZF+=ZA=+—8"
REERFIEG R ZEFU R
Mgz REED RO ARE
58,884,0007T (=& ——4F : &)
N AR#118,753,0007¢ (—F—
—F )M o

RZE——F+=-A=+—H"
TEEREAEERAZEE G
NEHTANAE) ZEREEY
BANRA10,754,0007T (ZF —
—& : AR¥9,980,0007T) °

RZE—Z—F+=ZA=+—8"
AEEBEEEBENRBARE
8,925,000 (ZF——4F : AR
#£9,423,0007T) 2 FHEE A 218
FhEABBASEEREERME
EmEmzERmEER (FRIE
41()) B FEIR ©
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - WBERRE @
(Continued)
(b) The Company b)) XAF
Furniture
Leasehold ~ Computer and Motor
improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total

HERBIE RRERH RARER "E #it
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RME’000
AERTRE ARBTRT ARWTR ARRTRE ARRTR

Cost FE
At 1 January 2011 R-E-—-%-A-H 76 138 118 2,141 3,073
Additions AE 392 49 126 - 567
Disposals nE (73 - (83) - (156)
Exchange adjustments BiAZ ) - 6) - (15)
At 31 December 2011 RZB——E+ZA=T-A

and 1 January 2012 k-E-—%-f-H 386 187 155 2,141 3,469
Disposals nE - - - (304) (304)
Exchange adjustments BiAE 3 - - - 3
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—#+-A=T-H 389 187 155 2,437 3,168
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Bt E R &
At 1 January 2011 K-E——%-8-H 76 36 104 1,223 1,439
Charge for the year AEEYH 53 34 21 537 645
Disposals nE (52) - (83) - (135)
Exchange adjustments EREE () - 4 - )
At 31 December 2011 RZB——E+ZA=T-A

and 1 January 2012 R=%F--%#-F-H 7 70 3 1,760 1940
Charge for the year AEETH 210 37 64 371 682
Disposals HE - - - (147) (147)
Exchange adjustments EiA% 5 - - - 5
At 31 December 2012 RZF-Z51-A=1-H 287 107 102 1,984 2,480
Carrying amount EEE
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-Z£+-F=+-H 102 80 53 453 688
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—F+Zf=1-H 314 17 17 981 1529
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17.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND
UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease payments
for land under operating leases is analysed as follows:

17. REANTESLHAES

AEEZLLEHAO RN MBS 2K
EEDHWAT

The Group
*5KE

2012 2011

—E—_F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREF T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZEAE 35,929 29,967
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE Bt /B 2 &) (P13E35)

(note 35) - 6,700

35,929 36,667

Amortisation for the year NEEHH (810) (738)

Carrying amount at 31 December W+ - A =+—HB ZEHE 35,119 35,929

Less: Current portion B BVERER 9 (810) (810)

Non-current portion JERNER EL (9 34,309 35,119

The prepaid lease payments in respect of land under operating
leases are held under medium-term leases and situated in the
PRC.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
for land under operating leases with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB20,684,000 (2011: Nil) were pledged and
a carrying amount of approximately RMB8,561,000 (2011:
RMB8,780,000) were subjected to guarantee in relation to the
arbitration proceedings between the Group and the CBM
supplier as detailed in note 41(j).

The amortisation charges for the year ended 31 December 2012
of approximately RMB154,000 (2011: RMB154,000) and
RMB656,000 (2011: RMB584,000) are included in cost of sales
and administrative expenses respectively in the consolidated
income statement.

REHEOT 2AN LA S HE+ B
MOBAE  EURHE -

RZFE—ZF+HA=+—8H  &&
BREfOTENLHES 2 EEmE

# AR #20,684,0007T (- T ——4 :

m)DEEE,  MEEEEHNARE

8,561,000t (ZE——F : AR¥

8,780,0007T) JIEREB AR K E EHE
BREER 2 HNMPREF GFRM
41(i) B AR -

HE-_T——-—F+-A=+—HLF
E# T HHARE154,0000T (ZF
——&F : AR¥154,0007T) K AR
656,000 (ZE——F : AR%
584,0007T) D RIRERE W Em Kk 2 HE
R RATHE R S HIER o
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
The Group rE
Operating
Exclusive license for
right for liquefied
piped natural coalbed gas
gas operation logistics Total
EEXAR RILEER
RECZEZHEN NREERR #it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR

Cost JF B
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——%—H—H 70,470 97,300 167,770
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W BB B B 2 ) (PR 7£.35) 264,341 — 264,341
At 31 December 2011 and “E-—FR-E-——F

2012 +—H =t- E 334,811 97,300 432,111
Accumulated amortisation and ZiMBRAEE

impairment
At 1 January 2011 —E—%—H—H 2,349 8,919 11,268
Amortisation for the year Z'»‘EET&%EJ 5,909 19,460 25,369
At 31 December 2011 R-E——%+-A=+—H

and 1 January 2012 k=—Z2——F—H—H 8,258 28,379 36,637
Amortisation for the year AEEEH 10,783 19,460 30,243
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+=-A=+—H 19,041 47,839 66,880
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2012 R-E--#+”-H=+—H 315,770 49,461 365,231
At 31 December 2011 RZE-——F+=ZA=+—H 326,553 68,921 395,474
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continueq)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Exclusive right for piped natural gas
operation in Beiliu City

It represented the exclusive right to operate in gas pipeline
infrastructure and provision of piped natural gas in Beiliu
City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC and
is amortised as cost of sales on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of 45 years.

Exclusive right for piped natural gas
operation in Ruyang County

It represented the exclusive right to operate in gas pipeline
infrastructure and provision of piped natural gas in Ruyang
County, Luoyang City, Henan Province, the PRC and is
amortised as cost of sales on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of approximately 28.5 years.

Operating license for liquefied coalbed gas
logistics

It represented the operating license for liquefied coalbed
gas logistics in the PRC and is amortised as cost of sales
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
5 years.

(a)

(b)

(o)

18. BILEE (&)

EERTEEEERARE
B2 BRER

ZIENBERBEERALRBAR
b AR R RE B AR AR A A
RHUHEBRARZBREN - X
W EGEERAET AL A F #1456
FIERHERAEH

EAGHELEEBERARE
Bz BmRER

A% RENFE A BUA R A R R TR
R EMREBEMRREME
HEBRARZBREN - Lz
EREERGEAIERF R
28 5FERIHENAEH

RACEBRYREEHR

ZHREETEEERIERER
MR EENR  WIREARERE
Rt E A FHSFRERIHE
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19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. BERFANFFIE
The Group
xEH
2012 2011
—g—=F —EF—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Warranty money paid for REHELHE T RERE

the acquisition of equipment Sz RES (K@)

under finance lease

arrangements (note (a)) 6,566 8,161
Other deposits paid for R ERBE N o kS

acquisition of equipment 2,285 2,250
Other deposits for acquisition of U f& + iz 2 Kbz (Fi5E(b)

interests in land (note (b)) 10,462 10,462
Prepayments (note (c)) TETRIE (M5 () 34,172 12,809

53,485 33,682
|
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19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(@)

The balance represents the warranty money paid for the
acquisition of equipment under finance lease
arrangements. On 2 December 2010, certain subsidiaries
of the Group, as lessees, entered into finance lease
arrangements with certain suppliers and a lessor named
FEREMREFR AR (transliterated as CIMC Capital
Ltd.) (“CIMC”), pursuant to which the suppliers agreed to
manufacture and supply LNG tanks, gasified system and
equipment, LNG trailers, towing vehicles and LNG refill
stations (collectively, the “Finance Lease Assets”) at a total
consideration of approximately RMB79,155,000. CIMC
agreed to lease the Finance Lease Assets to the Group
for a total lease consideration of approximately
RMB95,461,000 (the “Finance Lease Arrangement”)
payable within the term of 36 months by monthly
installments, with an option for the Group to purchase
the Finance Lease Assets at the end of the lease term at
a consideration of approximately RMB7,000. The total
lease consideration would be adjusted due to the floating
lending interest rate to be promulgated by the People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC”) from time to time. Pursuant to
the agreements, the Group agreed to pledge the Finance
Lease Assets to CIMC, whilst J& 5 IEF18E R & IR A 7]
(transliterated as Luoyang Shunhe Energy Company
Limited) (“Luoyang Shunhe”) entered into guarantees in
favour of CIMC to secure the due payment of the
outstanding lease consideration by the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2011, Luoyang Shunhe became
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon
completion of the Group’s acquisition of the Wealthy Talent
Group as detailed in note 35. The Group agreed to provide
a total sum of approximately RMB15,831,000 to CIMC
as warranty money, which is repayable at the end of the
lease period. The Finance Lease Arrangement constituted
a very substantial acquisition on the part of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. The resolutions approving
the Finance Lease Arrangement were duly passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 14 February 2011.

19. RERFBENARE @)

(@)

ZERERRERELTHETK
BREINZRES -HNZT—
TFE+_A-H AEEETH
BRR (fEAEMA) BE TFHE
Ak—2EBEAREREHEESR
RARI(THREDFIIRMERER
BBl fERRERERE
ERIERARFERE RILEFH R
B RIERARIES - E5|&H
MBIERAR MR (BT A
HELE] BREAOARK
79,155,0007T ° RERE M A E
ELAmEREEE  #HER
BAHAREIS 461,0007T (A8

[REHEZHE]) - ARN361EA
AR ASBNR - NEEREE

HIE R AR EARBOARE
7000CHEERMEHEERE - 4478
EREBREBEREARRIT ([H
BARRIT]) TE QM EHE
EMEELAE - REZSW
#FOAKEREHSMENEESE
KR TFHRE  mRGIEMERE
BRAE (&SIEF]) JRE RTIZA
PEAXHANRE  BAEH
ZEINREEHEREREE
ReREBE-_T——F+_-A=
T—HIEFE - BEIEFMRASE
72 Ak U B Wealthy Talent Group
(FHIBENBI3E35) B AR ]
WEEZE2EKBAR - AEEF
ERAAERHBBHOARE
15,831,000/ 2 RE® * ZIRE
AR ERERERE - RIE
Bl EMRA - BMEMEELH
BRARRIZIETERKES
B ARRREENR =T ——F
ZATHBERTZREEIARE
FIEEAERERERHZ

IRFERR
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19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) The balance represents deposits paid by the Group for
the acquisition of interests in land located in the PRC
which will be held for own use under operating leases.

(c) Included in prepayments as at 31 December 2012 was
an amount of approximately RMB25,119,000 (2011:
RMB10,712,000) representing prepayment for the finance
lease payments of the acquisition of equipment under the
Finance Lease Arrangement mentioned in note (a) above.

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19.

20.

BRERANKE @)

(b)

ZAESEARBE B EBL N E
MmN ZiIE &Lt
BESRBEEHOKIEEN -

B+ -A=+—HzE
NRIBERE EXM T @il E
MELHE TNERE o /REMN
EFEZENREBEOARE
25,119,000 (ZZ2——F : AR
#10,712,0007T) °

RBLRz2RE

The Company
. /N
2012 2011
—g——% —E=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETID - AR

879,550 879,550
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RIB AT 2R E (4@

RZE——F+=-_A=+—HARH
FTEHBARZFBOT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2012 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRiELa
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share Group’s
establishment/ [registered effective
Name of subsidiary operations capital interest Direct  Indirect Principal activities
gL/ BRITRBMAEE/ F&0

HELRBE BRI EEHE EMEFEE ERER EE ME  EIERE

WEGRIERE LR PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
BB A7 (transliterated as s HK$85,000,000 RAEER
Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai Energy & 485,000,000 T
Development Company Limited)

(“Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai”)
(note (a) and (g))

(TR IESR])
GEEEE)

WAL KIERERER PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% - Manufacture and sales
ERAT (transliterated as # HK$140,000,000 of liquefied coalbed gas
Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy HE & 7140,000,0007% 7T EERBERLEER
Development Company Limited)

(“Shanxi Qinshui) (note (a) and (d))
(TilFEok])
(P& (@) R(o)
Sino Treasure Global British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
Group Limited (BVI") 1 United States dollar RAER
RERNES (US$")
IREBIET LRk
Allied Rich Management Limited BVI 3,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding
BEERERAA RERNES US$1 each REBR
3000k FRAEIETZ EBR

LR EEEREERAR PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(transliterated as Shanxi Alled & RMB5,000,000 BAEER
Rich Services Limited) &R ARES5,000,0007
(note (a))

(fft3E(a))
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RHIB AT 2 1RE (#)

RZE——F+ZA=+—HARA
TEMBRARZHBWT + (B)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2012 are as follows: (Continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRiELa
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share Group’s
establishment/ [registered effective
Name of subsidiary operations capital interest Direct  Indirect Principal activities
gL/ BRITRBMAEE/ F&0

HELRBE BIMEEERE  EREFEE ERER EE ME  EIERE

ERLTRRERAR PRC Registered capital of 97.5% - 97.5%  Sales of piped natural gas
(tranliterated as Guangxi Beliu & RMB20,000,000 and provision of gas
Gas Company Limited) & A AR %20,000,0007 supply connection services
(note (o)) HEEBRARRIEM
(Pt (o)) RS R

Hebei Shuntai (note (a)) PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% - Sales of liquefied

tIEZE (RT3 (a) i RMB87,280,000 coalbed gas

HHE R AR %87,280,0007 BICEERHE

BEERABRAR BVI 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(transliterated as Million ldeas RERNES of US$1 each RAEER
Investments Limited) 100 5RAEIETZ ERR

LRESEEREERAT PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(transliterated as Shanxi Wanzhi & RMB500,000 BEER
Business Services Limited) & A AR# 500,000
(note (a))

(I35 (a))

LWEEENRER AT PRC Registered capital of 83% - 83%  Provision of liquefied coalbed
(tranliterated as Shanxi Wanzhi RMB60,000,000 gas logistics services
Logistics Limited) (note (c)) & AR AR #60,000,0007T RERIEERMTRE
(F3E ()

Wealthy Talent Global Investments ~ BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited RERNES TREEIET, ERR REER
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2012 are as follows: (Continued)

20.

REBARZ2RE &)

R_E——F+_RA=+—HBARTA
FTEWBRBIZFBENAT : (B

Proportion of

ownership interest

:24:47)
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share Group’s
establishment/ [registered effective
Name of subsidiary operations capital interest Direct  Indirect Principal activities
EMEYT ERARMARE 58
HELRBE BIMEEERE  EREFEE ERER EE Mg  EIERE
Hong Kong Chung Wo Energy Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited 3 1REEBT LBk RAER
RPN EERREER AT
Luoyang Shunhe (note (b)) PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100% Sales of natural gas
BB IR (M3 (b)) :p HK$60,000,000 RARHE
i & 460,000,000 7T
GREEGERERLA PRC Registered capital of 60% - 60%  Exploration, development
(transliterated as H RMB30,000,000 and production of
Yangcheng Huiyang & AR AK 30,000,000 coalbed methane
New Energry Development BE FREREEKER
Company Limited)
(“Yangcheng Huiyang”) (note (b))
(IBREEG]1) (b))
GRGIEZEHEEERAA PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100%  Gas Distribution
(Trangliterated as A RMB10,000,000 RARDH
Yangcheng Shun An HERAR10,000,0007T

Gathering Pipeline

Company Limited) (note (a))

(T RZ £5EE]) ()
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Notes:

(a) Registered under the laws of the PRC as a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise.

(b)  Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability enterprise.

(c) Registered under the laws of the PRC as a Sino-foreign equity joint
venture.

(d)  The registered capital of Shanxi Qinshui was HK$150,000,000, of
which HK$140,000,000 has been paid up as at 31 December 2012.

(e)  The registered capital of Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai was
HK$300,000,000, of which RMB85,000,000 has been paid up as
at 31 December 2012.

EERARLARRAMNBARIAETE
FEAEEXENEELE EFR
A REEMMB AR ZFIEEEH
RIEBNITE -

M3 -

(@) IRIEEARKAEAREMAINGE
B

() RiEHEARKANELEIMAERE
T

(€ IRiEEARKAEEREIMARIA
B

(@ PN K Z & A 4150,000,0007%
JC + EH1140,000,0008 T E R ZF —
ZE+ZA=+—H#K -

€ WLWEABHRIERZFTMEL B
300,000,000 HA AR
85,000,000 ER-—E——F+-A=
+—B8#f -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. BRAFEFF A AERZEmE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3
The Group
xEEH
2012 2011
—E—%f —EF——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Financial assets at fair value BAFEFFAEBEGZEREE
through profit or loss:
— Unlisted overseas — R EHBEIMEEES
investment fund 200 200
22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. HibemEE
The Group and the Company
FEERELT
2012 2011
—g—-F —EF—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Contingent consideration in WHENEAREB A RE

relation to acquisition of (BF7E35)

subsidiaries (note 35) - 17,051
Change in fair value of the contingent consideration is FEREBEZATFEEHNGEKER
recognised in the consolidated income statement. MR o
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23. INVENTORIES

23. B8
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial @ REETBRRAEAZEFESR
position comprise: 1=
The Group
xKMH
2012 2011
it et 2 —EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Raw materials JRH 3,443 1,463
Finished goods LA 2,506 1,134
5,949 2,597
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) EERAMXIABRZEE
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: TR OMWT
The Group

*T5KE
2012 2011
—F—=F =7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEZKAR 95,734 139,330
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. BRI R H it U 1A
The Group The Company
FEE 3|
2012 2011 2012 2011
8% | -2 —% | Z®-Z% | 2%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE | AR® T | AR®TR AREBTR

Trade and bills receivables NGRS K B R B 14,918 23,109 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts i = F & & (1,913) - - —
13,005 23,109 - —

Amounts due from subsidiaries P B A 71 FIE

(note 42(o)(iv) (Bt 5 42(b)(v)) - - 133,915 169,293
Amounts due from directors fEUE =B

(note 42(b)(ii)) (Bt 5 42(b) i) 945 568 1,361 3,812
Other receivables Hfth & W IE 61,325 52,574 742 1,527
Amounts due from related NGB

companies (note 42(b)(i)) (Mt sE42(0)(0) 16,247 13,468 - —
Loans and receivables BRIk YA 91,522 89,719 136,018 174,632
Advances to suppliers [m) 4 FE 7 2 5K 1,163 2,591 - —
Prepayment relating to ERERAX A

construction expenses Z R 71,068 22,041 - —
Other prepayments HAt T 508 20,166 22,659 10,840 10,402
Other taxes recoverable H At AT U [ 718 3,468 1,748 = -

187,387 138,758 146,858 185,034
-

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be TE HR BT A LSRR R % L i P UK SR IE G
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. R—FRREHERBFAL ©
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. EWERAR K HAiEWFIE (@
(Continued)
(@) Ageing analysis () BREC DT
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, FEWER R R R R (R B EHH
based on invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful NANbr RERRE ) NS AR 2Bk
debts at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BONIT -
The Group
xEH
2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBET T
Within 1 month 118 A X 5,587 20,718
More than 1 month but less 11 A & 1B31E& B
than 3 months 4,408 —
More than 3 months but less 31& A 12 1B 61E B
than 6 months 2,986 2,340
More than 6 months but less 61E A 12 1B 1218 B X
than 12 months - 1
More than 12 months 121@ A & 24 50
13,005 23,109
The Group generally allows credit period of 30 to 180 REE 4G TEF30E180H
days to its customers. The Group may, on a case by case FEH - AKEZESEERE
basis and after evaluation of the business relationship and o RRAHEBEAELES
creditworthiness, extend the credit period upon the % ERPERIEREER-

customers’ requests.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. EWERER KR HMEWFIE @)

(Continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables b) EBWERRKREWEEZEE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded JEUBR SR 2 R E B 18 T R
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied FRaCE: - MEAN R E{E AU KA
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the BRI BEMERR R BR AN - FEULIBR
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly T - ORE BT B B R YRR SR
(see note 2())). 8 (R MFE2()

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during FRAREBEZZHNOT :

the year is as follows:

The Group
x5E
2012 2011
2% —
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

At 1 January n—H—H - —

Impairment loss recognised & &2 2 6l B &5 18 1,913 —

At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 1,913 —

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s trade and bills RZE——F+=ZRA=+—8 "
receivables of RMB1,913,000 (2011: Nil) were individually REE 7 KRR R EWEEA
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired R #1,913,000c (Z&——F :
receivables related to customers that were in financial ) AR EE RRE - ERRE
difficulties and management assessed that the receivables Z FEWGRIE PG A B S IR 2 2 &%
were not recoverable. Consequently, specific allowance FERH BEEEMTEREK
for doubtful debts were recognised. FIEAAIUE o FHi - Bt REE

RRFERDIT Rl B4 -
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

24, BRI R B EWRIE &)

() ABEEKEIREVRRE

2 5R A AN A A1) Fo FL [R]RL(E Y FE UL
R R EWRE 2 BRI DT 1A
T

The Group
*TEE
2012 2011
2% —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Neither past due nor AR M RORUE
impaired 12,981 23,058
Less than 1 month past due #8872 11E A - —
1 to 3 months past due wEI1 2318 A - —
Over 3 months past due i B R R 31E A 24 51
24 51
13,005 23,109

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to an independent customer that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of this balance as there had not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balance was still
considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral over this balance.

R R ARRAE B RIS [
REEF  REEFPROVER
RECEE °

780 BB 15 AR ORL(E 2 FE Wk IR 6
RAKBEHEE RIFEAREZE
URFPER  REFBELR B

g BERMGHRIDEEAA 2
g m - WHBAREBAESRIEL
AR R - AEBY B L EER
FEEFMERAR -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERIREEEY
The Group The Company
FEE 3|
2012 2011 2012 2011
8% | -2 —% | Z®-Z% | 2%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE | AR® T | AR®TR AREBTR

Cash and cash equivalents RekAEEEY

— Cash at bank and in hand — Bk FERS 29,437 21,698 455 6,065
D —
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RIRIT2REBRIBRITEEFHHE
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy LIZEAEBREA LS o RITHERTFN
banks with no recent history of default. REERIFRHATEE R CEAIR
7 o
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents RI|EHR - AEEUAREED
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately REeERBEEVHARERARKE
RMB26,998,000 (2011: RMB10,024,000). RMB is not freely 26,998,000 (ZE——F : AR
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC’s 10,024,0007T) ° AR AI B HE#HR
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of PREMER - BREFR R INEEE
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange IEHIFNAETE - SERNIESERE
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other REBEEZREREETINEER
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign ZIRTICARE SBRKEMER o

exchange business.
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. BN R R EEA IR

The Group The Company
r 3] r A
2012 2011 2012 2011
—¥-2F | T F| ZB-2F | T F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTRE | AR¥ T | AR®TR ARETT
Trade payables FE 1 BE3X 76,621 50,962 - —
Amounts due to subsidiaries ~ FEfTH B A 7 FIE
(note 42(b)(iv)) (M 5E42(0)(iv)) - - 3,274 6,606
Amounts due to directors [ERESRIE
(note 42(b)(iii)) (Hf sE42(0) i) 514 7,852 778 -
Amounts due to non-controlling  fEf<t it B A &
shareholders of subsidiaries ZIEERR R R
(note 42(b)(i) (Bt sE42(b) i) 1,979 1,569 - —
Accrued expenses and FEEH BT R Eo A
other payables e IR 55,753 5,501 4,117 2,361
Payables for acquisition of W% - s
property, plant and equipment & R BB FE 131,372 50,250 - -
Financial liabilities measured at & # 855k A5 £
amortised cost ZERAR 266,239 116,134 8,169 8,967
Deposits received from customers [F1& P UL 2 &4 12,531 9,249 - —
Other taxes payables HA e TR IR 1,421 2,017 582 573
280,191 127,400 8,751 9,540
D — D —
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26. FE{TRRFR H B FRUIE ()

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice ERBER GRBZEAH) RBEHRM

date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREC DT T -
The Group
P31
2012 2011
—ET—_"F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TR ARETF T
Within 1 month 11E A N 19,306 5,102
More than 1 month but less 11&8 A& B31E A KN
than 3 months 958 5,556
More than 3 months but less 3EA%EMARN
than 6 months 15,989 17,628
More than 6 months but less 618 A& 1EB12{8 A K
than 12 months 12,946 22,440
More than 12 months 1218 A& 27,422 236
76,621 50,962

The trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on

JE AT AR R K E At FE A5 SRIR TR EA R I —
FRBEXRERRWARAREZKE

demand. = o
27. PROVISION 27. 15

2012 2011
—2—_F —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
At 1 January n—H—H - —
Provision for the year F N 2,694 —
Amount utilised for the year FANEAHZHIE (187) —
At 31 December w+Z—A=+—AH 2,507 —
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27. PROVISION (continued) 27. 81 »®)

TERERENOAEERETEER
RZFE-——FRMOORARROIE
- UAREEERERE -

The provision for production safety has been determined by
the directors to meet the production safety standard in
accordance with the rules and regulations imposed by the PRC
authority in 2012.

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. RITREMERK

RZE——"F+_A=+—8  EE
BRI REMEROT

As at 31 December 2012, the bank and other loans were
repayable as follows:

The Group
*T5KE
2012 2011
—E—_F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARET T
Secured bank loans repayable: ZBE{EE R EFRITER ¢
Within 1 year or on demand 1FANBRERKER 30,600 12,900
After 1 year but within 2 years 1R E2F A 2,400 —
After 2 years but within 5 years 218 {B5%F A 3,000 —
After 5 years 5% LA+ - —
36,000 12,900
Unsecured other loans repayable: 7B{& & EEIFE M EF -
Within 1 year or on demand 1F AN BIRENRER 80,000 50,000
116,000 62,900
Less: Amount due within B OmEAAET
1 year shown —F AR E] 2 FKIB
under current liabilities (110,600) (62,900)
Amount due after 1 year shown JERBIEBE TN —FER B ZHE
under non-current liabilities 5,400 —
|
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # %= — &

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Bank loans bear interest at variable interest rates ranging from 6.60%
10 9.98% (2011: 7.67% to 16.80%) per annum.

Unsecured other loans of RMB80,000,000 (2011: RMB50,000,000)
represent loans due to non-controlling shareholders of PRC
subsidiaries of the Group. The loans bear interest at fixed rates
ranging from 5.69% to 11.50% (2011: 5.69% to 7.12%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2012, bank borrowings of RMB6,000,000 (2011:
RMB8,000,000) were secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of approximately RMB28,397,000
(2011: RMB30,190,000). The remaining bank borrowings of
RMB30,000,000 (2011: Nil) were secured by the pledge of certain
plant and equipment of # {5 (BAE )M TREM B BR A A
(transliterated as Nopin (Xian Country) Engineering Material &
Machinery Co., Ltd. (“Nopin Engineering”). Nopin Engineering is a
company owned by Mr. Wang. As at 31 December 2012, the Group
did not have any undrawn banking facilities (2011: Nil).

28. SR1ITR

%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ%#i’%ﬁiﬁ

—EFZA=1+—HIEFE

HMER @

BHIEN T5F6.60%29.98% (=
T——F : 7.67%%216.80%) 2 ZEF|
KE B e
R 2 E B 5k AR #80,000,0007T
(ZZ=——%F : AR¥50,000,0007T) T3
4R RS E R B B A R SRR R AR R 2
B - ZEERENTEF5.69%%
11.50% (ZF——1F : 5.69%%£7.12%)
2 EEFEE -

R-T——F+-A=+—H - BT
FARHEB,000,0000T (ZE——F :+ A
R #8,000,0007T) A AN EBREBELN A
AR #28,397,000L (ZZE——4F : A
R#30,190,0007T) Z Y% - #25 L&
BEEM - -EHBBITERARE
30,000,0007C (=& ——4F : &) T A
(B i TREMBERAR ([#
ZhzaE ﬂ%é%%& BIERIEIR - 15
BErREHRBZ AR  c RZE—ZF+
—A=+—8" $%@I?ﬁﬂ£ﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁy
ZHRITEE(ZT——F  #) o
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 29. i & #H A& IE

At 31 December 2012, the Group had obligations under finance RZF—ZF+A=+—80 &&
leases repayable as follows: AU TEEMNARE ML #FIE
The Group
F5%E
2012 2011
~B-CF —E——F
Present Present

value of the Total | value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

REHR REHR REHE REHE
ftReRE ftE®E | (IFNRE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARBTRT | ARBTT ARETR

Within 1 year 1R 4,747 5,182 3,420 4,242
After 1 year but within 2 years 124 /B2 1,256 1,304 3,006 4,242
After 2 years but within 5 years 2514 /185F & 149 151 350 354
After 5 years 5% 14 - - - -
6,152 6,637 7,676 8,838

Less: Total future interest B RARF B B

expenses (485) (1,162)
Present value of lease obligations 78 #)&IEM B E 6,152 7,676
The Group leases certain equipment for its operations under AEEREREROLHERES TR
the Finance Lease Arrangement as detailed in note 19(a). These HEBHAREKEE  FHEANMWFE
leases are classified as finance leases and have remaining lease 19(a) e ZEMN DB AMERLD -
terms ranging from 13 to 27 (2011: 25) months. FIRHEAN F13E A Z27 @A (ZF —

—4F 1 25) 2 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 30. ATRARES
The movements of the liability component, derivative TMREFNEESHD - STETEH
component and equity component of the convertible bonds MkERE D EBEHFWOT -

are as follows:

Liability Derivative Equity
component of component of component of
convertible  convertible convertible

bonds bonds bonds Total
REREFN TREEHFD TRERHH

RRHBH TEIRBH E£anm et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARBTRE AR®TR AER®TR

At January 2011 —T——%—A 43,137 (6,621) 15,810 52,326
Issued during the year (note 35) ¢ M E %17 (F13E35) - - 413,621 413,621
Interest expenses FEFAY 2,289 — — 2,289
Conversion of bonds BHRES (43,913) — (188,222) (232,135)
Fair value loss NEEEER - 6,487 - 6,487
Exchange adjustments b 5 3% (1,513) 134 - (1,379
At 31 December 2011 R-E—%R
and 2012 —E-°F¥
+-A=+-H - - 241,209 241,209
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

(@)

On 16 July 2010, the Company issued HK$ denominated
zero-coupon convertible bonds (the “2010 Convertible
Bonds”) due 15 July 2013 with aggregate principal amount
of HK$187,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB165,000,000). The 2010 Convertible Bonds had a
maturity period of 3 years from the issue date and were (i)
convertible at the option of the bondholder into
937,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company at any time from 16 July 2010 to
15 July 2013 at a conversion price of HK$0.20 per share;
and (ii) redeemable at the option of the Company at any
time from 16 July 2010 to 15 July 2013 at 100% of the
principal amount.

The 2010 Convertible Bonds contained a liability
component, a derivative component and an equity
component, who fair values on the issue date and at the
end of the reporting period were determined by the
directors with reference to an independent profession
valuation.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, all the remaining
2010 Convertible Bonds with aggregate principal amount
of HK$63,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB59,723,000) were converted, resulting in the issue
of 315,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.20
each.

30. I ERKRESR @

(@)

RZE—ZFFLA+H A2
AT & 4858 /3187,500,00078
7T (#9588 7 A K #165,000,000
L) 2 EBARRES - ZEAR
BREHFUETHTERR=E—=
FLA+RHRAEH - —F—ZF
RBREHFBRITHEBRT =F
BE - Bi)ATHESFFBAERRE
RN_E—EFLA+HEZZT
— =%+ A+ 5 B HENEMAE
B R ER0.20/8 TR EE
#2/5937,500,0000% A 2 &) A A A
BREECOVB T ZERE &
(AR GIEER_ZT—TF
+tA+RNHEZZE—=FtA+
Eall= R ok e G o N

ZEEM -

—ET-EFEARRESFEEE
B~ STET A REEE
fn - BT BB RN RS HIE
RZRAFEDHESE2ERY
BEMEEE -

tmk

HE-ZT——F+=-A=+—H
IFFE - K& 4% 463,000,000
BIT (KA E R ARKS59,723,000
TT) 2 2 EFEp - T —TF B
B4 B IR FIR0.208 T B E
i - BEE17315,000,0000% 4
AR AP FREE0.01ETTZ
Tk -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

(b)

On 12 July 2011, the Company issued HK$ denominated
zero-coupon convertible bonds (the “2011 Convertible
Bonds”) due 11 July 2013 for aggregate principal amount
of HK$499,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB413,621,000) as consideration for the acquisition of
the Wealthy Talent Group (note 35). The 2011 Convertible
Bonds have a maturity period of 2 years from the issue
date and are (i) convertible at the option of the bondholder
into 1,919,230,769 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the capital of the Company at any time from 12 July 2011
to 11 July 2013 at a conversion price of HK$0.26 per
share; and (ii) redeemable at the option of the Company
at any time from 12 July 2011 to 11 July 2013 at 100% of
the principal amount. The Company is not required, upon
the maturity of the 2011 Convertible Bonds, to redeem
or pay any outstanding principal amount of the 2011
Convertible Bonds.

The equity component of the 2011 Convertible Bonds was
recognised at fair value on initial recognition, whose fair
values are determined by the directors with reference to
an independent professional valuation and are presented
in equity heading “convertible bonds reserve”.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the 2011
Convertible Bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$208,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB172,412,000) were converted, resulting in the issue
of 800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.26
per share. No conversion of the 2011 Convertible Bonds
was exercised during the year ended 31 December 2012.

30. T RARE S @)

(b)

{E AU B Wealthy Talent Group
(f3E38) < REBE - RZF——F
tA+ZH  AREBEITAELR
%8 /4499,000,000/8 7T (H#HE
AR #413,621,0007T) 2 B1]
BRES ([T ——FrBRE
%) o ZEABRES B ITET
BEERR-_E—=FtA+—AH3
H. 2 ——FrlREHFE %
fTHHIRRFTMFEE - B()J A
EEEAEAN_ZE—F+A+
“HE-ZE—=%+H+—HH
R R R - IR ERR0.26/8 T
H RS (B8 41,919,230,7690%
RARRAFEREEC.OIET
2 EERE R (i)l B AR BRI
RZE——FtA+ZHEZZ
—=F+ A+— BHENE AR
M BEALEEEEELD - NAF
BER-_ZE——FAaRESHE
HgELg SN T ——Fa
BREHFNERREERNSE -

T —FABRRES 2 ERE
IR VNRFEREF IR N FAERER -
BRI MESEKE2ERFUEEM
BEE  Y2IINEDZAZ [
BB -

BHEzE—_Z——F+-_A=+—8
I FE N & 8w A
208,000,000/ 7T (X E R AR
¥172,412,0000) 2 —F——F
AR ES B IESR0.26/8 TH
"R E S B B RET
800,000,0000% 7K X &) A% A
REEC.OVEIT 2 EMliR - BLE
—E-—F+ZA=1+—HLF
B —ZE——FaRESHE
e o

—E-"EFHR PEHBERABRES
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

(b)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the 2011 Convertible Bonds
with aggregate principal amount of HK$291,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB241,209,000) (2011:
HK$291,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB241,209,000)) remained outstanding.

31. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

30. I EKRESR @

(b)

(%)

RZEBE——F+-A=+—8"
R4 #8%8 /291,000,000 7T (49
HENAR®E241,209,0007T)

(ZZ——1F : 291,000,000/ 7T
(HHEERNARB241,209,000
) 2 ZE——Fa R EHD

R -
31. REMBRRARANZAEB

(@) Current income tax recognised in the consolidated (@) 4REMBAARREANERZBVEFT
statement of financial position and the movements during BREEFREFHNT
the year is as follows:
The Group The Company
F5EE b /N
) )
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--F | _——%F | ZB8-Z§ —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE | ARBTx | ARBRTR ARETT
PRC EIT FELEMGR
At 1 Jaunary R—A—A 12,869 (66) 56 -
Provision for the year REERE 15,283 16,429 217 821
Under-provision in PBEFERBEIR

respect of prior years 683 631 - -

EIT paid for the year AEEEHNTE
e (6,582) (4,069) (231) (769)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B A 7]

(note 35) (Ff7E35) — (56) = -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~ 22,253 12,869 42 56
Income tax recoverable  RABI AR MAER

recognised in Z AR B FER

the statement of

financial position - (687) - —
Income tax payable REF AR R M RERR

recognised in < ERETE R

the statement of

financial position 22,253 13,556 42 56
Net tax payable R F 5 22,253 12,869 42 56

D — D —
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1. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised

The Group

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as follows:

Fair value

adjustment on

Fair value prepaid lease

adjustment payments for
on property  land under
plant and operating

equipment leases
BEENT

LERY ] Rftti
Rl i 1

LFEEE  ATEAE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARRTR

3. ZEMBERRERAZAER

(%)

b EEREEHEEERAEE

REH
RA PR R T R AR
HEE,/ (Bff) 280 RERF

NEEBEFSI T -
Fair value
adjustment

on
intangible ~ Withholding

assets tax Others Total
ELEEL
LFERE BAR 4] an

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT  ARRTR ARRTRT ARWTR

A1 January 2011 HW-E——%-5-F 23 0 (3912 - - (38,696)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35)  WEEM B A & (Fi13£35) - (672) (66,085) - (622) 67,379)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated A/ (B B) A KER

income statement (98) 6 6,343 (2,439) (1,369) 2,451
At 31 December 2011 and RZE-—§+-R=1-H

1 January 2012 k-F--5-A-F 13 068)  (98,868) (2,435 (1987)  (103,824)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated A/ (% &) HAKER

income statement (20) 14 7,561 (369) 835 8,021
At 31 December 2012 R-E-"F+ZR=+-H 114 (654) (91,307) (2,804) (1,152) (95,803)
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31. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 3. REMBRRARAZMEH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#&)

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities b CRIAEEHRBEEERARE
recognised (Continued) (#)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances TR A B E T A RER
for financial reporting purposes: TSRO -

2012 2011
—®——F —
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Deferred tax assets Rir & BRI ER
recognised in BRZELEFIEEE
the consolidated
statement of

financial position 152 189
Deferred tax liabilities Rér e M BRAERR
recognised in RIBERIEEE

the consolidated
statement of

financial position (95,955) (104,013)
(95,803) (103,824)
|
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31. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31.

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(0)

recognised (Continued)

The Company

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

mEMBRRERAZAEHR
(4)

b)) EEAELEHEEERESE

(&)

ZNNE
IR F RS R PO HE AR Y R A7 1R
BESORERFRANEBHT
LI

Withholding tax

FHR

RMB’000

AR®BTT

At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H —

Charged to profit or loss FFABR (2,179)
At 31 December 2011 and R_E——F+-ZHA=+—H

1 January 2012 BE-E——%—F—H (2,179)

Charged to profit or loss FFAE &= (369)

At 31 December 2012 w-—E—_f£+-R=+—H (2,548)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2012, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
carried forward of approximately RMB22,357,000 (2011:
RMB23,693,000) is due to expire within 1 to 5 years under
the current tax legislation for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the Group in which the losses arise. The
cumulative tax losses have not been recognised as a
deferred tax asset as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

() HABIZELEBAEE

RZE——F+ZA=+—8 "
REBW R ERELE RFTHIE
BB (HRBE AR AR EEE
Bz —Z2RFAEE - LUKEAE
SERZZERTRN) WARKE
22,357,000 (ZE——F : AR
#283,693,0007T) B B IRERIE
BE - REHIEEEIL R ER
BEEHIEEE - TYRRIEEH
M AR R EE T A8

A SRR IE S 1B 2 R AR FE R B R
) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —E— —F+_A=1+—HIFE

32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s

32. EXKRE

(@) FEBEFESEESEAKRBHR
FURFRGERZHRHANEGS
BEEFHRA - AR Tflf‘a%&ﬁ
HARE DR ENRFR 2

individual components of equity between the beginning BEINWT
and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Convertible
Share  Contributed option  Translation bonds Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
THRERRS
EkhER BABR BREHG BERE 1] AHER &

RMB’000 RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AERTR ARBTR AERTR ARBTR AEWTR ARBTR AEWTR

Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE-——E-F-BzEH 484532 37,490 - (1,431) 15,810 (115,697) 420,704
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - (28,361) (28,361)
Other comprehensive income ~ REEE#2EYNE
for the year - - - 2,257 - - 2,257
Total comprehensive REERENG/ (AR B8
income/(expense) for the year - - - 2,251 - (28,361) (26,104)
Issue of new shares B{HRA
— Share placement —RARE 176,717 - - - - - 176,717
— Conversion of — ERTRRESR
convertible bonds 222,132 - - - (188,222) - 34,510
Transaction costs attributable to - E{THR A EER ZMA
issue of new shares (5,615) - - - - - (5,615)
Recognition of equity component B2 A& ERHES R
of convertible bonds - - - - 413,621 - 413,621
Equity-settled share-based Mﬁxfé%ﬁuw}ﬁgﬁé
payments pAE: S - - 28,793 - - - 28,793
Lapse of share options ERELT - - (417) - - M7 -
Transfer to accumulated losses  EEZ 2318 - (37,490) - - - 37,490 -
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=E—-—-F+-F=+-H
and 1 January 2012 RZE-—E-F-HzH#% 878,366 - 28,376 826 241,209 (106,151) 1,042,626
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (63,974) (63,974)
Other comprehensive expense ~ AEEEM2EMR
for the year - - - (60) - - (60)
Total comprehensive expense ~ AEE 2 AN EHE
for the year - - - (60) - @397 (64,034)
Equity-settled share-based DREEZ DR RER
payments A S - - 2,790 - - - 2,790
Lapse of share options BRELH - - (403) - - 403 -
Balance at 31 December 2012 W-E—-§+-AZ+-H
41 ] 878,366 - 30,763 766 241,209 (169,722) 981,382
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 32. EXRKfRE &)
(b) Authorised and issued share capital b ZERDEITRA
The Group and the Company
FRERFLT
2012 2011
—2--§ —T——F
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
Bir®E &8 BiHEE G|
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
T AR®TR T ARETTT
Authorised ordinary shares /A& — &R EE
of HK$0.01 each: 0018 T2 L@ : | 10,000,000 94,610 10,000,000 94,610
Issued and fully paid BERETRHR
ordinary shares of FHREE.0VETT
HK$0.01 each: BB
At 1 January R—A—H 3,942,505 34,828 2,256,675 20,681
Issue of shares by BBRRHEE
share placement BIIRM - - 570,830 4,744
Issue of shares pERIREES
upon conversion BITRM
of convertible bonds - - 1,115,000 9,403
At 31 December R+ZA=+—A~ 3,942,505 34,828 3,942,505 34,828
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TRRFEEABRESTREIR
dividends as declared from time to time and entitled to ZHRBERARREHLZEE
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All fR—E 2 ERE - A LB
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s RARZFBREEZEHESE
residual assets. o
(i) Increase in authorised share capital () BIEERA

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 20 June 2011, the
Company’s authorised ordinary share capital was
increased to HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB94,610,000) by the creation of
an additional 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.

BEARBRER T ——
FRAZTHBITZBRES
ARG BBIEFRIRZESR -
RRB AL RRAER
# 3% 58 4M85,000,000,000
B EREEC.OIE T L&
% 34 )1 2 100,000,0007% 7T
(W BEERARE
94,610,0007T) ' ZFE&D
EEFEERAARREER
M ERIFHAL -
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

(ii)

Issue of ordinary shares

On 17 March 2011, the Company allotted and issued
a total of 326,830,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company at a placing price
of HK$0.225 per share by way of placement to
independent investors. The net proceeds from the
placing amounted to approximately HK$71,281,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB60,011,000).

On 4 August 2011, the Company, Mr. Wang and
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited (“Jumbo Lane”)
entered into a placing and subscription agreement
with a placing agent for: (i) the placement on a best
effort basis of a maximum of 200,000,000 and
200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company owned
by Mr. Wang and Jumbo Lane respectively at a
placing price of HK$0.6 per share (the “2011
Placing”); and (ii) the subscription of 400,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company by Mr. Wang
and Jumbo Lane respectively at a subscription price
of HK$0.6 per share (the “2011 Subscription”). The
2011 Placing and 2011 Subscription were
completed on 10 August 2011 and 17 August 2011
respectively. An aggregate of 244,000,000 placing
shares (as to 122,000,000 shares from Mr. Wang
and 122,000,000 shares from Jumbo Lane) have
been successfully placed to independent investors
at the placing price of HK$0.6 per share and an
aggregate of 244,000,000 subscription shares have
been issued and allotted by the Company to Mr.
Wang and Jumbo Lane at the subscription price of
HK$0.6 per share. The net proceeds from the 2011
Subscription amounted to approximately
HK$141,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB115,835,000).

— A=+ —AIEE

32. EXRKfRE @&

EEREBITRA (8)

(ii)

BITERER
W_E——F=ZA++tH"
RARBBRBILIREER
EZ2AN 0 UERRO. 225/%
T2 EREERETA R
326,830,0000% A~ A &) & A<
FREREE.OIE T LR
i% - BRE TS FIE TR A
71,281,000/ 7t (A& R4
AR #60,011,0007T) °

F:f——iﬂﬂﬂa ViN
T TRERBERESR
AR([EE]) H—RiE
1%%%%&—1&1@8%&%,&%%
%% CNBBER  ()RIBEMT
R F%0.678 T2 B
%FEE%E%E&ELBEU
#8895 %200,000, ooon
%200,000,0000% 7% A
@H&(F:@—@——E@E%J) ;
RV EAEREERER
O6/%7EZH Eﬁfﬁf\ quE%
400,000,0008% 7K 2 &) 1 &
LHX(’—:EE__QEWUEﬁj)
TR FRERZT——
FREEDIR=ZZE—F
NA+BEE=ZZE—FN\A
+ B K - & X
244,000,000 FR & A% 17 (E
R 122,000,0000% & 17 2 &
F 4 4 K 122,000,000/% A%
MR EEE) KNI EHR0.6
B REEBRABLIRES
e - RARAZEZR0.6
;%ﬁanE%{EmE%E&%
BRI RE®A
244,OOO,OOOHXWE§HXTA °
T —FRBHOAMERE
5%%5%@7,%141,850,000,%71
(HE RH ARE
115,835,0007T) °
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

(iii) Conversion of convertible bonds

On 19 August 2011, the 2010 Convertible Bonds
with principal amount of HK$63,000,000 were
converted into the Company’s ordinary shares at a
conversion price of HK$0.20 per share. As a result
of the conversion, 315,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company were issued.

On 5 September 2011, 20 September 2011 and 6
December 2011, the 2011 Convertible Bonds with
principal amounts of HK$130,000,000,
HK$52,000,000 and HK$26,000,000 respectively
were converted into the Company’s ordinary shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.26 per share. As a
result of the conversion, 800,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were issued.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of share premium if (i) it is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital account.

32. EXRKfRE &)
b EERCBITRAER (&)

(iii)

BB AIRRES
RZE—FN\A+IH
N4 %8 463,000,000/ T2
—E-TFBRRES - &
FH%0.20/8 T 2 AR (B iR
RANEEBR o BT
% NARIMBBITEER
#Z 51315,000,0000% °

RZE—FNARB - =
T——FNAZ+THK=F
——%+-ANB  ALHE
2 Bl 5130,000,000/% 7T
52,000,000/ 7T 126,000,000
BT —E——F A R E
%5 1RER0.267 T 2 AR
BEBARNNRLEE - &
BEKE - ANARINB T
T3 A% 3= £1800,000,000
A% o

© fRBEZHEEREN

(i)

IR R E
RIBERASEBHESRARE - B
BERI DR T ARBRER
HE A1 (1) 20 I PR = L A& R B
BEEINMEE  KMHEBEE
AEREERMmMIRNEARG
KB BEITIRARR 2 #2588
ARRBPMEEIRSGKABLE
SR I B R R AT
K °
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

General reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to appropriate at least 10% of its after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior years’ losses), based on the PRC
statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and financial regulations
applicable to PRC enterprises, to the general reserve
until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of the
PRC subsidiary’s registered capital. Thereafter, any
further appropriation can be made at the directors’
discretion.

The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset
the prior years’ losses, or be utilised to increase the
capital on the condition that the general reserve shall
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital after such increase.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of
the grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to executive directors, employees and
consultants of the Group that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in note 2(q)(ii).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(u).

32. EXKGRE @
) RE2HEREN @)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

— BB
RIBETBEBRAENER
ETBEMB RN EHEBE
FEEBERR  AXBRER
AREFER (ARG
A1) RPBEEER W5
FDIiR B2 BDE E W 154
= BERBEEN B &
PI0%IER—RF#EE - BEE
Ee 2 #HREDTEMEA
AIFEMERZ50%AB1E o B
& ERAEHBEREFELE
AT BEINE R

—REEE R AERHEBE
FEER  SKBEENE
A HERINE AR - —fRIAH
BREF T ORNEMEARZ
25% o

IR EREE

EBREREBEREETASEE
WITES - BB RERAK
TEERENREBEAYT
BB - %30 EREM
2(0) (i AT sk LA RS 15 75 B
B AT B & 5 T BGR T
T AR ©
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BEREREEMAREIIE
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 32. EXRf#B )

(0 REZUEERBH @

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Convertible bonds reserve
The convertible bonds reserve represents the value
of unexercised equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2(m).

(d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt
comprises the Group’s bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases less cash and cash
equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Adjusted capital comprises equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
plus net debt.

(v) ABRREZHE
A BE SR AN AR
T AR B SR B R T (L
mabin 2 BIE - ZREERE
B EE2(m) Pk B0 E R T IR BR
e

d) EFXREE

AEBEEEAZ T ZR RS
RAEEFERLE 28T - U@
BREHOR  TEFREER
RBRENBEESKA -

AREBEERIY F B MEEA
BAKE  AEERIESKRE
[B] #R B2 AR 2 & AR AT AR 2 B
SEEKF 2 HEREFE - XE
ERBEBR BBHENEEIE
B ANEER AR TR
ZEB e BIIHRKHER
B AREETS

AEENBEHERAEE R L X
ERHEBENGERE - AL RIFR
BERAKHREANGE - FRE
BIEAEE 2 R1T M E A S KA
LkBEROAERREE MRS
BY (iR E M BHOR KRR -
RPABREARBREARNRBERRR
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Capital management (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2011, was to

T—HIEFE

32. EXRKfRE @&

d) EXEE (&)

REBEE—T——F+-_A=1+—
HIEFE - $El¢hﬁf7—

maintain a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio within 20%. —FHRZER  BFaEHEK
“%ﬁ$%4ﬁ%%m%w
The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at RZE——FR_E——F+=
31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: A=+—RHZFBEHKARE
REEMT :
2012 2011
—E—C—%f it
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TR AREF T
Bank and other RITREMER
borrowings 28 116,000 62,900
Obligations under B A A A R PE
finance leases 29 6,152 7,676
Less: Cash and cash B ReERBEEEEY
equivalents 25 (29,437) (21,698)
Net debt FEE 92,715 48,878
Equity attributable to RAE SRR G ER
equity shareholders
of the Company 1,000,060 1,052,422
Adjusted capital AR 1,092,775 1,101,300
Net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio FREHLHABREARL X 8.48% 4.44%
|
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 18
May 2011, the Company'’s old share option scheme adopted on
28 July 2003 was terminated and a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and will remain in
force for a period of 10 years. The purpose of the New Share
Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best available personnel,
to provide additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-
time), directors, consultants and advisers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no share option
was granted to eligible participants under the New Share Option
Scheme (2011: a total of 258,300,000 share options were
granted to eligible participants at an exercise price of HK$0.495
per share).

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

3B.UBRELEEUROGAER 2

R

BREARBBRR_ZF——FRAATN
Eﬁﬁmh?%%kAtL@%%%R
R ARAR-_FET=FLA=-FTN
SEAS: Wm&ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁéﬂaiﬂt K #h
R B AT & ([ BT 81)) 2R
W R T FHREARER R - i
W%ﬂ%%ﬁ%%%%&ﬁ%@%A
8 RAKENES (RBEFRE)
= BER R ERREE R - ]I
RN B EBKY

2T —F+_A=+—HLF

E BEREHERENEREGER
2EERHERE(CE—F : A4
B2 EER T A 258,300,000
MR - 1T EBAENK0.49587T) -

(a) IEEIERBEHNT -

Number Contractual
of options Vesting conditions life of options
MEREsA 5% B & HBRESHER
Options granted:
ERHERE -
30 May 2011 215,220,000 Vest immediately 10 years
—FT——FHA=+AH BB 55 8 T+
30 May 2011 43,080,000 50% are exercisable at any time 10 years
—FT——FHA=+H after the expiry of 1 year from
the date of grant up to 2 years
from the date of grant; and 100%
are exercisable at any time after
the expiry of 2 years from
the date of grant up to 10 years
from the date of offer.
S50%AI A H BB M1FE +TF
A E R ET M2 HARIBE R 1T
K 100% A A 4% B B e AT 2F &=
LX) A ERRET M10F BB R 1T -
Total share options
granted
ER D ERERAR 258,300,000
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average prices of share options
are as follows:

The following table discloses movements in the
Company’s share options under the New Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2012:

33.

UREGEURGAER

X5 #)

(b) BBEEZER LINEFHITEE
e

TREEHZ—_Z——F+—-H
Zt+—HIEFERQ BB E
STEIE T 2B EEE)

Number of

Period during Exercise  Outstandingat  share options Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
which share price per 1 January  granted during during during 31 December
Date of grant options are exercisable share 2012 the year the year the year 2012
RZB-2%
RZE-Z% ERiittic +ZBZ+-H
BN BRETER  SROTER -A-R&fE RRERE FREHE FREXN RiTE

HKS

AT
30/6/2011 30/6/2011-29/6/2021 0495 215,220,000 - - - 215,220,000
30/6/2011 30/6/2012-29/5/2013 049 19,245,000 - - (1,975,000) 17,270,000
30/5/2011 30/5/2013-29/5/2021 049 19,245,000 - - (1,975,000 17,270,000
263,710,000 - - (3,950,000) 249,760,000

Exercisable at the end of year

RERAE

Weighted average exercise price (HKS)

METHaEE (Ex) 0.495

232,490,000

- 0495 049
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(0)

The number and weighted average prices of share options
are as follows: (Continued)

The following table discloses movements in the
Company'’s share options under the New Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2011:

B.URELELUROGAER 2

X5 #)

A2 BB RnEFITTEE
mr o (E)

TEREBEEE-_T——H1+=A
=+ —HLEFEARBNBRE
AHEIET 2 BREEE) -

Number of
Period during Exercise  Qutstanding at share options Exercised Lapsed  OQutstanding at
which share price per January  granted during during during 31 December
Date of grant options are exercisable share 2011 the year the year the year 2011
R-B2——F
) _ _ RZF-——F ERfite _ R
RS BREGRS  BRORE -A-BAAE  EREHR ERRR ERBAR AfrfE
HKS
AT
30/5/2011 30/5/2011-29/5/2021 0.49 - 215,220,000 - - 215,220,000
30/5/2011 30/6/2012-29/6/2013 0495 - 21,540,000 - 2,295,000) 19,245,000
30/5/2011 30/5/2013-29/5/2021 0495 - 21,540,000 - 2,295,000) 19,245,000
- 258,300,000 - (4,590,000) 253,710,000
Exercisable at the end of year
RERTTHE 215,220,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKS)
mEFAHEE (L) - 0495 - 0495 0.495

No share options were exercised during the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2012.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had an
exercise price of HK$0.495 (2011: HK$0.495) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.4 (2011:
9.4) years.

E R —FR-FE——F+
“A=Zt+—BIEFEHEERE
EEITHE o

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H2
RITIEIBARIE 2 17108 /R0.4957
TL(ZZF——F : 0.495%70) * &
TZMEFHEHNFEREAF
(ZF——1F : 94%F) °
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to the directors and employees is measured based on
the Binomial option pricing model to reflect the impact of
vesting period, exit rate and exercise pattern on the option
value.

— A=+ —AIEE

B.URELEEURGAER 2

X5 (4#)

(©

BARIE Y AFERBSR

BT EERIESMBRIES (b2t
AFEIRE —ER T EE
Rt B URBREEBS  REX
AR TR R EE Y
go

2011
—F—F
HKS

AT

Fair value at measurement date RtERBZ ATE
Share price at measurement date REtEHEZ IR E
Exercise price I (E
Expected volatility HEK IR
(expressed as a weighted average (RE—EA
volatility used in the modelling under
the Binomial option pricing model)
Option life
(expressed as a weighted average life
used in the modelling under
the Binomial option pricing model)

FRIHEF
(R A B

Expected dividends EHIR 8
Risk free interest rate e P

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility due to publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

The fair values of the share options granted to employees
for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
approximately RMB1,909,000 (2011: RMB9,193,000)
which has been recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2012.

0.2141-0.3122
0.495
0.495
85.43-88.13%

EERAMAZ EF IR ESR)

10 yearsfE

EERAMAZ EFHFHHIR)

NilZ
0.468-2.368%

TR AR I8 O3 R Se R i (iR Ps A e
BT 2 T F A E) REE
B - WERE AR ER AR IO
B2 EFTAREE TIAFE - i‘E
HIREDIRBEZREREE
e Eéﬁliﬁﬂfﬁj‘“Z“@JTE
FENFEME -

BHE-_ZT——-F+=-HA=+—H
LtFERTREENBREZ AT
BN A ARKE1,909,0007T
—EF——44F : AK®09,193,000
T BREEZE——F+-A
= t—RIEFEZHEEREERA
WRA—IBERAX -
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Fair value of share options granted to consultants

The Company measures the fair value of share options
granted to consultants by reference to the fair values of
services rendered. The fair values of the share options
granted to consultants for the year ended 31 December
2012 amounted to approximately RMB881,000 (2011:
RMB19,600,000), of which approximately RMB105,000
(2011: RMB9,550,000) has been recognised as an
expense in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and approximately
RMB776,000 (2011: RMB10,050,000) has been
recognised as other prepayments in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2012.

34. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at specified rate and capped at
HK$1,000 (HK$1,250 effective from 1 June 2012) per month
per person. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC participate
in a mandatory central pension scheme organised by the PRC
Government for certain of its employees, the assets of which
are held separately from those of the Group. Contributions made
are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme. The employer’s
contributions vest fully once they are made.

B.URELELUROGAER 2

X5 #)
) BIPHMERNEREy ATE

KRR EMRHERE 2 A FE
ATERTHEABERZEBREZA
FE-BHE_T——F+_-_/=
T+T—HULEFERTHABERE
BiEZAFESBHNAARE
881,000 (—ZT——4F : AR¥E
19,600,0007T) * EFHARKE
105,000 (ZE——%F : AR¥
9,550,0007T) ERBE-_T—=
F+-A=+—HLEFEZRA
WERANERAE—EHRAZ A
R#776,000 (ZF——%F : A
R #10,050,0007T) EFERZZ—
—F+ A=+ HZEAUE
R R AR BEMTERFIE -

34. ERE AR AT E

AEBHRERREBEBEOHEES
BrEE  REEZERHELESE
EMEFIZR B A ESE B ([87FE
©FrEl]) - BESFEIEHRBILIET
ANBIE 2 ERBEFURKE & - BIER
Bests  BERHEEBAESAMG
EEH R ELBIZER BABAZ
T ERAB1,0008T(E_E—=F
NA—H#AE1,25087T) ° shfE & st
BRGNS R EREREME -

ARRRPEKL B ABIRES
TREZ2Eb P EBNFEN 28T
RRRREEE - R B2 EEEAN
KSEEEDHTE - REZTEZ
BA AEBREEREBEZF DL
REHHER - TREMFRERN
B o BEHRFNELRIANZHER
BEME -
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35.
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN (Continued)

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations beyond
the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by the
Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt with in
profit or loss for the year are disclosed in note 7(a) to these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its
employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
and the PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2012 in respect of the retirement of its
employees (2011: Nil).

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
The Wealthy Talent Group

Pursuant to an acquisition agreement dated 6 April 2011 (as
amended by a supplement agreement dated 25 May 2011)
entered into between the Company (as purchaser) and Mr.
Wang (as vendor) (the “Acquisition Agreements”), the Group
acquired from Mr. Wang the entire issued share capital of
Wealthy Talent Global Investments Limited for a consideration
of HK$499,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB413,621,000) (the “Wealthy Talent Group Acquisition”)
which was satisfied by the issue of the 2011 Convertible Bonds
to Mr. Wang.

Wealthy Talent Global Investments Limited, through its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Hong Kong Chung Wo Energy Investments
Limited and Luoyang Shunhe (collectively referred to as the
“Wealthy Talent Group”), is mainly engaged in the supply of
natural gas to its industrial customers through pipelines, LNG
trailers and tanks in Ruyang Industrial Zone in Luoyang City,
the PRC. It is also engaged in the sales of LNG in Henan
Province.

34.

35.

EEMFEBINETE @
B S BAREKES 2R

KENBARTEIEEARESN
AEBREBFHINDLEEMBES -

ZIS%IEJL RORAE AT 8 2 B Xt
RENFAZBRETRE  ¥YER
lrt—r%?/:\]ﬁﬂ‘%i&i%f%ﬁaﬂ( )RR -

ANE BN EFEF B KB AN B R
Al EER I EMEMRKSEE -
RRAREERA RZE—ZF+=
A=+—H AEETEIANABE
BRERKZEAKRAB(ZE——
Fm|m) o

g1 N
The Wealthy Talent Group

BERARTIERER) BERE (ER
BRIV —HBEAZET—FW
RNBzWiEm= (TRl (&R
MA—ZE——FHA-THHMNMER
MEAERT) - AEEREEERE
Wealthy Talent Global Investments
Limited® 2 HEHTRA - RKEB
499,000,000 T (HHERH AR
413,621,0007t) ([Wealthy Talent
GroupdeBg]) - REBETEBA AR AT
EEBRT_E-——FUBRRESFNA
ES-Z NI

Wealthy Talent Global Investments
Limitedi% i@ B 2 & I B A 51 & & H A
REREEREERA ﬂ&/%ﬁ%ﬂlﬁ%ﬂ (&
7 [Wealthy Talent Group)) = Z R R
wEmalE TXRRBEE  RIEX
ARBE L HEMAETEZTSHERXR
AR HMRAEERERIERAR
HE -

178

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The Wealthy Talent Group (Continued)

The Wealthy Talent Group Acquisition constituted a major and
connected transaction on the part of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules and the resolutions relating thereto were
passed by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 20 June 2011. The Wealthy Talent
Group Acquisition was completed on 12 July 2011.

35. WIBK B2 A ()
The Wealthy Talent Group (%)

RIEEIZE R EM A - Wealthy Talent
Group BB A AR —EEE L=
X5 HEMBAZRER-ZT——
FRAZTHRITHREFIARE £
AR DRI FREB - Wealthy Talent
GrouplBEE R 2 —F A+ =H

FERK ©
Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
immediately
before Fair value Fair
combination adjustments values
RESHE
BWES
ZIREE LFEAE LFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AER®TR
Property, plant and equipment M - HERRE
(note 16(a)) (P 3E16(a)) 71,727 - 71,727
Intangible asset B AE
— Exclusive right for piped natural — BBARAREH
gas operation (note 18) ZBRRER (Fi:E18) - 264,341 264,341
Prepaid lease payments for land KEMH TR I
under operating leases (note 17) e (fFFE17) 4,011 2,689 6,700
Inventories e 398 - 398
Trade and other receivables JE WS BR 3% K% L Ath B U FR0E 11,871 — 11,871
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEeEEY 754 - 754
Tax refundable (note 31(a)) MREN R (H5E31(a) 56 - 56
Trade and other payables JE 1< BR 3R R H b FE 5T SR8 (32,668) — (32,668)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 31(b)) B IBEE (H3E31(b) (622) (66,757) (67,379)
Net identifiable assets and liabilites A% 5| & E R & EFE 55,527 200,273 255,800
Goodwill on acquisition (note 15) ERME 2 BmE (M5 157,821
Consideration RE 413,621
Total consideration satisfied by: BREUTISIEER
2011 Convertible Bonds (note 30(b)) —ZT——Fa[RES
(Ff#5E30(0)) 413,621
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: W3z IR & R AFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BB 7H 4 KIRELEEY 754
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The Wealthy Talent Group (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
RMB705,000 had been excluded from the consideration
transferred and had been recognised as an expense in the
current year, within administrative expenses.

The fair value of receivables acquired, which principally
comprised trade and other receivables approximated their gross
contractual amounts. There were no contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected.

The Wealthy Talent Group contributed revenue of approximately
RMB40,671,000 and profit of approximately RMB27,599,000
to the Group’s revenue and results for the period from date of
acquisition to 31 December 2011. If the acquisition had been
completed on 1 January 2011, the Group’s total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2011 would had been
approximately RMB290,217,000 and loss for the year ended
31 December 2011 would had been approximately
RMB46,767,000. This pro forma information was for illustrative
purposes only and was not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2011, nor was it intended to be a projection of future
results.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of the Wealthy Talent
Group was attributable to the anticipated potential synergy with
the existing business of the Group in sales of natural gas to
end-user market.

Goodwill arising on the Wealthy Talent Group Acquisition was
not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

35. WIBHMI B 7] (&)

The Wealthy Talent Group (%)

%9 AR #705,0007T B8 Uk BE AR B A9 AR AR
ENfEEZARETRHNR  TERA
FERTHREYPHERE—HERY -

G2 IR (X2 BRBEIRR R
Hi EUGRIR) WA FEEESRES
BMEE - WEBHEZWLNA FR
B e

Wealthy Talent Group 4 72~ £ B 72 Uk &
AfZz-_FT——F+-_A=+—H0H
MW AREEERMBRANARE
40,671,0007T K2z F ) A B #27,599,000
Lo REBUER T —F—A—H=
K AEEREE-_Z—F+_A8
=+ —HIEFENBRABORBAR
#290,217,0007T + MEE =T ——4F
T A=+—HLEFENBEOAA
R #46,767,0007T ° ZEEERHEMH
2ZR% U MEABERER =T —
—F—-A—HERASBEEE S
WA R EZEERNIET - I MER
RIRZEERTENR -

U B& Wealthy Talent GroupE 4 H) i 2
TR TE B & AN K BIR A /M AR 5
APMZHERARNEBEEE

B 153 (] A5 FE o

8 HiWealthy Talent Groupi B 2= 4= &Y
BRI

180

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 25 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Wealthy Talent Group (Continued)

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreements, Mr. Wang has
warranted to the Company that, subject to the terms of the
Acquisition Agreements, the adjusted consolidated net profit
after tax and excluding the amortisation of intangible assets of
the Wealthy Talent Group (the “Net Profit”) for the financial years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 shall not be less than
RMB30,000,000 and RMB40,000,000 respectively (the
“Warranted Profit”). In the event that the actual Net Profit is
less than the Warranted Profit (the “Shortfall”) for the financial
year ending 31 December 2011, Mr. Wang shall pay to the
Company a total sum of 14 times of the Shortfall after the
determination of the actual Net Profit for the year ending 31
December 2011. In the event that the actual Net Profit is less
than the Warranted Profit for the financial year ending 31
December 2012, Mr. Wang shall pay to the Company a total
sum of 10.5 times of the Shortfall after the determination of the
actual Net Profit for the year ending 31 December 2012. The
payment will be satisfied by means of cancellation of
outstanding 2011 Convertible Bonds held by Mr. Wang. If the
principal value of the Convertible Bonds held by Mr. Wang is
less than the amount payable, the payment shall be made in
cash.

The consideration adjustment in relation to the Warranted Profit
as described above is accounted for as contingent
consideration whose fair values on initial recognition and as at
the end of the reporting period were determined by the directors
by reference to an independent professional valuation. The
directors assessed the fair value of the contingent consideration
at the date of acquisition was insignificant. As at 31 December
2011, an increase in fair value of contingent consideration of
approximately RMB17,051,000 was recognised in profit or loss
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, an decrease in fair value of contingent
consideration of approximately RMB17,051,000 was
recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2012.

35. WEBFI B 2~ &) (@)

The Wealthy Talent Group (%)

REWERZ  TAEEMARTE
R EWREHBZERODBRRT
Wealthy Talent Group&Ei &= —ZF —— &
F—E-——F+_A=+—HIYE
FEMNGRTBEATTAERLEESH
LR E Far (DFaM]) -
o B TME A AR #30,000,0007T & A
R #40,000,0007T ([ER&EF]]) ° 78
ETHE—_T——F+=-HA=+—H
IEFEMNERFRMNZ2E  WEaEES
TE——F+ - A=+—HIUKE
ERERFmHPRERER (T2
SR TEEBRAR RN E
HERTEEEIAEHMRE - £EEBE
HEe—_T——F+-_A=1+—HItF
EHNERFRMzE MEHEZZ
——F+ A=+ HIUBFEEN
BEEFRMORERZN - EHEH
MARRZNRFAHEHERATE SR
10.5(FKIFKIE PR ST B AT
HEAEFAENAREH _T——4F7
BREFHFARER - MEEEE
BEMNIRREFNASEEBIRE
N#IE - BIEARBES I -

Bt b R & FIE R R E AR AT
BEBRE  ERVPERRABRE
HRZAFETHESLERLEE
HEETE ESFERAERWEBS
FERENAFELFTEKN - RZE
——&+-—A=+—H  BEREHE=
T——F+_A=Z1+—HILEFEZE
ANERCERZAERLBERELTF
B4 ARA17,051,0007T °

R-E——F+-A=+—H0 2R
BHE-_Z——F+-_RA=+—HItF
EZHRealaR2EZABRRER
BEAFEBLHARK17,051,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments of the Group as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

Financial assets

36. $RMTESHE

TEMEE

AEERBREPRNSEESRITAY
EREMEWT -

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

BROTET
AR&2
EMEE
Held Loans and
for trading  receivables Total
HRE
BFHEER FE i R IE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N &b AR®TR AR®TT
2012 —E-_"%F
Financial assets at fair value through BAFER ABR
profit or loss (note 21) LERMEE
(Mf&E21) 200 - 200
Trade and other receivables (note 24) FEUER R R EAtb
FEU R IE (P 5E24) - 91,522 91,522
Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) RekBEEED
(Ht5E25) - 29,437 29,437
200 120,959 121,159
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 36. eI B9 HE ®
CATEGORY (Continued)
Financial liabilities cTREE
f Hnanda{
liabilities at
amortised cost
RMB’000
VS 1) 3]
ROEMAR
AR®TT
2012 —E—"%F
Trade and other payables (note 26) JE A1 BR SR % HL At FE A< 5K 38 (Bt 3E26) 266,239
Bank and other borrowings (note 28) R 1T & H b & 2k (Fft 5£28) 116,000
Obligations under finance leases BhE M & AHE (F15E29)
(note 29) 6,152
388,391
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

Financial assets

36. EMIAESE ®

ETREE

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

BATEFABRZ
Designated
as such
upon initial Held for Loans and
recognition trading receivables Total
R8T RIEEE JE W08 @z
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETT
2011 —T——F
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZAFEH AR

through profit or loss ZemAE (fMa21)

(note 21) - 200 - 200
Other financial assets (note 22) E & FE E (FH5E22) 17,051 — - 17,051
Trade and other receivables UK BR 71 % H fth fE Uk 3008

(note 24) (HtE24) - - 89,719 89,719
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAEEEY

(note 25) (Bt £F25) - - 21,698 21,698

17,051 200 111,417 128,668
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LA 85 Bk 2 %)
FENemBeE
RMB’000
AREF T
2011 —E——F
Trade and other payables (note 26) JE AT BR R % HL b FE 5 3RIB (Bt 5E26) 116,134
Bank and other borrowings (note 28) R 1T & H b & 2k (Fft 5£28) 62,900
Obligations under finance leases B E R EAE (5E29)
(note 29) 7,676
186,710
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments of the Company as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Financial assets

TEMEE

36. ST ESE &

ARARBERRNSEEMIAY
BEEEMT :

Loans and
receivables
HRER
BRI
RMB’000
AR®TR

2012

Trade and other receivables (note 24)
Cash and cash equivalents (note 25)

—E——%f

R MK B R N L A W kIR (R RE24)
Fe MEeFEY (E25)

136,018
455

136,473

Financial liabilities

THMEE

—— O

)
Financial

liabilities at
amortised
cost
LI+
JIRE &R
AR
RMB’000
AR®TRT

2012

Trade and other payables (note 26)

—=E—_%F

JEASS B AR B LA A5 R IR (BT °E26)

8,169

TE-CEFR TEHEREAERREEREXEEERAAF 185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 Y 205 e B ek

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

36. EMIAESE ®

CATEGORY (Continued)
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
RATE
AB#HZ
EREE
Designated as
such upon
initial Loans and
recognition receivables Total
R LR ERk
BHETE IR @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFTT  ARETR ARETT
2011 —T——f
Other financial assets (note 22) EtnemEE (Hi22) 17,051 - 17,051
Trade and other receivables (note 24)  FEURBE F0 N E 4 R UR 208 (FiT3E24) - 174,632 174,632
Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) RekReEEYM (F525) - 6,065 6,065
17,051 180,697 197,748
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
A% 35 B 2R
HIBRH) 2
BE
RMB’000
AREFT
2011 —ET——F
Trade and other payables (note 26) JE <8 BR K % HL b & A 3KIB (Fft 3E26) 8,967
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, other financial assets, trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, bank and other borrowings and obligations
under finance leases. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Credit risk

()  As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated and company statements
of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

(i) Inrespect of trade and other receivables, in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
of its customers’ financial position and condition are
performed on each major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customers
operate. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets. Trade debts are usually
due within 30 to 180 days from the date of billing.

37.

M EREEEBERBUR

AEECZFESMIABERATE
ARG ZEMEE  HUE®E
B RUERR L EmEEEOR - B
RBReFEY - BNRFT N E M EN
FE - RITREMERALBREHE
A BRI AZHBRESBHE
KE - ZEemIAZEBRRBHE
AEEEREEBERTPELZEE
R - RBESER  FEXER 8
ERRLREMERRR EEEEHE
RERZERRE - LEREREAX
EEZENER

o

@ FERR

() H-BE——F+-RA=+—
B AEERARE Z&A
EERRALE R ARTB
MRRTRASIE S RLE EL
BRAEMRERER KR
& -

(i) ARSI MEWERR R HAb
JEW R Rk - EEED
RN —EEERR  THE
BAEERBETRHEERR -
AEEeTHEUETERR
Z IR R EITEE
Tl o ZETEHEEFB
FXfHEEBREZELRE
AlzSeE  WEREF
RFEER REPEEFTRA
BIRIR AR - AEBEFH
CEMEET R BEA
me BSEK—REMEH
HA#E30E180H W EH1 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

37. WKEAREEEEREE

(%)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) () EERMK &)

(b)

(i) (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 39.71% (2011:
61.27%) and 90.51% (2011: 95.18%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 24.

(i) The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
board to directors’ approval. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group relies on bank and other
borrowings as a source of liquidity.

(b)

iy (%)

AEEBEZEERREE
RERPZERGHTE -
BPEBZITEREBHTE
ZBERZEHORBITEEE
EBEFE  BRRERE -
RREHR  ~EBE—F
BENEEEFRRR - RE
ERUASESEAEP KR
AEFE 2 RUIRFR D BIME =
WBE739.71% (2B ——
F :61.27%) %90.51% (=
T——1%F :095.18%) °

BRAREER B BWIRR KX
Hth fe s I8 2 EE R 2
-T2 BRBEHNM T
24 o

iy BRYFHHREEREE
AREERTSEETRZ
RIT - MLRBERZEER
2B R o

REBESER

AEEET 2B LEERER
BEERBEZREEE  BRER
Bff 2 BHIIRE NEBEREFIAM
REHReHR  HARKEES
BEDAMEE - AEBZBERB
EHERENNREFZRBES
TR REEERBZER LA
ERASEEREFEHNESS
BEN RSB ERG R SR &
SERE  meHEEHRES
MEBERZER - AEBKREIR
TREBERERTBDESK
i
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37. UREREEEERBE
(4)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
RBELRRE (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)

Also as mentioned in note 2(b), the Group (i) has
successfully rolled-over its other borrowings for 12
months; (i) obtained undertaking from Mr. Wang to provide
continuing financial support to the Group; (i) the Company
and a placing agent entered into a placing agreement on
14 March 2013, whereby the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent on a best efforts
basis, a maximum of 400,000,000 placing shares to
independent investors at a price of HK$0.25 per placing
share; and (iv) the Company is exploring other sources of
funding including finance lease arrangement of
approximately RMB95 million as announced by the
Company on 21 May 2012. All of the above steps have
been enable the Group to mitigate its liquidity risk.

The following tables set out the weighted average effective
interest rate and the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

SHN - w20 ATt - A5 &)
BRI EMERZ ERBLER
128 A : (NS EEERAEER
REFEM B IR 2 A (i) K
ANEE-—FHRERER-_ZT—=
F=RATMAFIIEEHE - &
WARRRBIREHRZE AL ENR
ERmBHEERERS
400,000,0008% fid & f& 15 T ¥& 3L
wEE  BRESKRMNIERE0.25
B Riv) ARRIERZ NHERE
HESHR  BREARFARE
——FRA-t+—RHAR_HZE@E
HELHH AR®E95,000,000
JT o PR AREAEE 2
mEE R -

TREINAEERARE ZIEDT
EERAERREHRZ NEF
BERMERGINENH  HE
REHmRERERER (BRERG
MR (7 B) M E R
ZRITRIEGT B Z M B R
SERARAATEEZHZTA
HImET -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits and bank and other
borrowings and fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed rate bank and other borrowings.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting

37. WKEAREEEEREE

(&)
(©) F=EREM

AEEEH 2 RERENKEAR
BT B RRITIF A RIRTT K
HERAER - A FENXE
B RIJ 22 [ TE A R 2 R1T e A R
TRAERE -

(i) F=HR
TRAVNAEBEFTNRE
HIR 2 FIRR -

period:
The Group
F%E
2012 2011
-5 —T——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
BR#=E B =
% ARBTR % ARETT
Fixed rate [ElE FI R AR

borrowings:

Other loans HiEX 8.58% 80,000 6.83% 50,000
Floating rate FEFRER

borrowings:

Bank loans RITER 7.16% 36,000 11.13% 12,900
Total borrowings BiEm 116,000 62,900
Fixed rate borrowings [l FII & f& 715 42

as apercentage of EBRZANL

total borrowings 69% 79%
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The entire bank and other borrowings of the Group
which are fixed rate instruments are insensitive to
any change in interest rates. A change in interest
rates at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase or decrease the Group’s loss after taxation and
accumulated losses by approximately RMB360,000
(2011: RMB129,000). Other components of consolidated
statement of changes in equity would not change in
response to the general increase or decrease in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2011.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Currency risk

(i

Exposure to currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB
must take place through PBOC or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by
the PBOC that would be subject to a managed float
against an unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance
of earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the
availability of foreign currency (which depends on
the foreign currency denominated earnings of the
Group) or must be arranged through the PBOC with
government approval.

The group entities collect most of the revenue and
incur most of expenditures in their respective
functional currencies. The directors consider that the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s
transactions are denominated in the functional
currency of each individual group entity. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exposure should the need arise.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s major monetary assets
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are as
follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. KRR EEEERBEER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) E¥ER &)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () E¥ERREEE)
The Group b
Exposure to foreign currency
S B R BR K 2
2012 2011
Hong Kong Hong Kong
dollars dollars
—E—_—% —E——%F
BT BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Cash and cash ReLkREFED
equivalents 2,278 5,930
(i) Sensitivity analysis iy HBREDM
The following table indicates the approximate TRFA - RREHAR - K
change in the Group’s loss after taxation and SERBREBERRFEE
accumulated losses in response to reasonably AERASBEEEERREY
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to X SREEEHMESE
which the Group has significant exposure at the end LB EH o

of the reporting period.

The Group AEE
2012 2011
—2--F —T——F
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after (decrease) loss after
in foreign taxation and in foreign taxation and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rates losses rates losses
HERRE HERBEK
ExEm/  SRRRM | Exign/ BRER R
(®d) BRzZEE (R 4) BREZYE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETT
Hong Kong dollars /& 7T 5% (114) 5% (297
(5)% 114 (5)% 297
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. AR EEEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) E¥ER &)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the Group’s exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence
at that date, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ loss after taxation. The stated changes are
used when reporting currency risk internally to key
management and represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the end
of the next reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

(e) Other price risk

Oil and gas price risk

Apart from the financial instruments disclosed above, the
Group’s activities expose it to market risk relating to oil
and gas price risks.

The Group is engaged in a wide range of gas related
activities. The global oil and gas market is affected by
international political, economic and global demand for
and supply of oil and gas. A decrease in the world prices
of cruel oil and gas could adversely affect the Group’s
financial position. The Group has not used any derivative
instruments to hedge against potential price fluctuations
of crude oil and refined and gas products. The
management will consider hedging oil and gas exposure
should the need arise.

(e)

(i) BREIF (&)
BRGURE DT TR E R
ERARAEE BB FE
ZEMIAAEZ ¥R
% AEREMAEMER
(LERHE) R T EmE
E o ERZINZAITERRK
REAEERZEREREE
BrERYE - g
AEREEEANBERTE
RBREER  AREEEY
[EEREE N —EREHR
IFEAR 2 A BT H) 2 7Y
- BRAOMIRE—T——
FHERZEEET -

H B % E

Bl R AR EE R

BREXFEZEMTAI K
SEZEB R AEE AT A
HRERARAE SRR

AEERESHEAAREER
e 2RAMERARTEE 2
BRBUR ~ B2 RAH MR RA
REKRAEE - RARRARZ
EIRER TR S AEE 2
MIEX TR E - AEREIL R
EREAITETA - SRR -
RIEREMRRARERZEE
BRKE - WEREE  EEE
K& EEE P mRERRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37. MKEKREEEERBX

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
® Fair value " AFE
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () RAFEIKRzZEMIA

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments.

° Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

TRENNHEMK - BE
BB IREERFE TR (26
TA : #EIMREZRF
BEEFRHIE 2 =EFRH
BAFEAEZEMTAZ
fREE - ERESEEDHE
TRITAZAFERZEER
HATEFEBEAZHZE
BWAZE - BESEAEN
T

.« FREREM) A
5 BB 5 7 4
SETAZHE (R4S
AR HEATE -

o oA MREARM
LHREUERTAZ
BE IMEEEH
ABBIHE Z R HEE
ERABEMHEUE
ZIEERMGTERF
' -

.« ESR(BESM) A
P S B 8 AR
I 3 R AT B
R 2 b E BT
AFAE ©
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oA e o Y ik

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

() Fair value (Continued)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

37. MKEREEBEERBX

(%)

" RVE @

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () RAFEIRZEMIA
(Continued) (&)
2012 —E—_"%f
4 N\
The Group The Company
350 48
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
#1 #28 EAT #it 18 H28 % @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTR  ABRTRT  ABRRTRT  ARBTRT  ABRRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR
Assets BE
Financial assets at AT Eif
fairvalue through A%
profit or loss SHEE 200 - - 200 - - - -
(. J
2011 —E——f
The Group The Company
1458 LN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 8 Total
214 o8 238 @t F18 BV 238 @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETr  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Assets BE
Financial assets at AT Eif
fair value through A% #)
proft or loss SHEE 200 - - 200 - - - -
Contingent “BEHE
consideration for 2 3
a business RE
combination - - 17,051 17,051 - - 17,051 17,051
200 - 17,051 17,251 - - 17,051 17,051

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These

instruments are included in level 1.

WEEMEEEZ ST A
ZRHERBRERR 2T
SHRENE - EBMISTIE
A5 B T HRTE R HF
RiEE BN TTERE
= - RERG A E B
BHmE2TE - MERBKRE
RHEE 2¥R 5 HRE
E2R - AEEMFERE
EFRZTSHRERERE
RE ZELASWINRSE
148 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(f) Fair value (Continued)

(i

Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash
flow analysis, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments.

All the resulting fair value estimates are included in
level 1 except for contingent consideration for a
business combination as explained below.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011, there were no significant transfers of financial
assets between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy
classifications.

37. MKEKREEEERBX

(%)

" RVE @

(i)

BAFEIKRZEHMTA
(%)
HEEMSTEER 2 SR
TAMUSIMTETR) 2R
FEDIERBEEREERE
BERETEEEEMME
BZABEMSEE A&
ERIEBERZFEM
8 EMBRTETIARTE
PR EREABURR TR
R ZTAIIAF2MH -

EEXZEE AW ARE
WIRBEABRTISEIRE
R - BIZIBETASIAS
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ARtESRMITABELR
EMEDERLE

s BUIEAEZMS®RE
XX ZERE °

s WHREREINF
H A 77 7% R AR E g
EBMITAZAFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(M) Fair value (Continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)
The movement during the year in the balance of
Level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

MEEREEEBERBUER

(&)
» DFEEE
() ZHAFEIEZERMIA
(&)
FREIWRE IR FERT
BEEHIT

The Group and the Company

FRERFAT
2012 2011
=% —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Contingent consideration BOFEMEZ

for a business E¥BaZ

combination at fair value RENE
At 1 January n—H—H 17,051 —
Change in fair value FAREZAER

recognised in profit 2 N EEE

or loss during the year (17,051) 17,051
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - 17,051
Total (losses)/gains for RmEBRAFAR

the year included in BEFTABZEAK

profit or loss for assets FRE (BB s

held at the end of

the reporting period (17,051) 17,051

Changes in fair value of contingent consideration for
a business combination are recognised in “fair value
(loss)/gain on other financial assets” in the
consolidated income statement.

EHattAREZAFE
EPNEERERNIEE
CREENATE(EE)
Yogs | R EERR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. KRR EEEERBEER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
M Fair value (Continued) ®» 2¥E@E
(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at (i) WIERAFEIEZEHMT
other than fair value Bz R¥E
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERB NRIZE—Z=FK
the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments —E——F+ZR=+—
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially B REERARGIRR A
different from their fair values as at 31 December S IERAS R Rt TR
2012 and 2011, ZERHREERAA T ETESE
AER -
(g) Estimation of fair values (@) HEFRAFE
The following summarises the major methods and TXHAR G eI AR
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial B2 EFEHEMRE
instruments.
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREMMER
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future NEEERRBESREZRET
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates fhst - WERAEU eI AZIR
for similar financial instruments. TS A RATIR o

—E-CHEER TEBEREERESREXEEARAT 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 Y Y i
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38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, additions to
property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB2,576,000 (2011: RMB10,417,000) were financed
by finance lease arrangements.

On 12 July 2011, the Company issued the 2011
Convertible Bonds with principal amount of
HK$499,000,000 as consideration for the acquisition of
the Wealthy Talent Group. Further details of the acquisition
are set out in note 35.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
disposed of property, plant and equipment with carrying
value of approximately RMB4,576,000 to Luoyang Shunhe
which was offset by the current account with Luoyang
Shunhe.

39. COMMITMENTS

(@)

In addition to the Finance Lease Arrangement detailed in
note 19(a), the Group had the following significant capital
commitments contracted but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:

38. TBHBRERSZ

(@)

BE-T—_F+-A=1+—H
WLFE - ABEYE  HBEREE
#ANREE2 567,000 (—F——
F: AR¥10,417,0007T) JoE Bl
BEHECHRERE -

RZE——FtA+=H AR
BTN 48 %8 £499,000,00078
T2 _E——FaiES - U
e B Y B Wealthy Talent Group 2.
BHRE - ZWEBSEZ2E—F
15 HAMIEESS -

HE-_ZT——E+-A=+—H
IEFE - AEEREREIERM L&
FREEN A ARK4,576,0007TH)
YIEE - HERRERE - FIEERE
FBIER A4 H AR B ] -

39. KiE

(@)

BRHESFE19@MFFt s AR E R
SN - REBRGZEHBREKE
RIHMERBE 2 E REAEEN
T

The Group
xEH
2012 2011
—g——F —EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Acquisition of property, WEE S - MR REE
plant and equipment (BIEEREIRE)
(including construction
in progress) 222,645 104,852
D —
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HILFE

39. COMMITMENTS (continued) 39. &iE &)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum (b)
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of office premises are payable as follows:

RBERR - BEBLREVEZ
PR RERE LB T 2 RKE
NREEEFEABAOT -

The Group The Company
FEE 3|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F | 5| ZB-Z§ —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR®TRE | ARET | ARBTR ARETT
Within 1 year —FR 444 759 444 744
After 1 year but —FRBAREN
within 5 years - 446 - 446
444 1,205 444 1,190
—

The Group leases a property held under operating lease.
The lease typically runs for an initial period of one to three
years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEBRBLEHNARYE -
NEHEB—RE—E=F - &F
MOMEeSREE -

EEERH

R-ZTE——F+—-A=+—H K&
BRI KEERA) 2 S AR E D /B IR o
AEBZEMEEERD RISHNM T
16 /%17 »

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 40.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s entire shareholding in
Qinshui Energy were pledged. Details of the Group’s pledge of
other assets are included in notes 16 and 17 respectively.
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41. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
filed a claim with it RF#Z & € (“Beijing Arbitration
Commission”) against one of its coalbed methane
suppliers (the “CBM Supplier”), claiming for financial losses
of approximately RMB407,193,000 arising from
insufficient supply of coalbed methane under contract. In
February 2012, the CBM Supplier filed a counterclaim with
the Beijing Arbitration Commission against the Company,
claiming for (i) financial losses of approximately
RMB155,336,000; (ii) late payment interest of
approximately RMB3,771,000; and (i) financial loss arising
from early termination of contract of approximately
RMB102,775,000. The directors of the Company
consider, based on the legal advice obtained from the
Company’s legal counsel, that the Company has a valid
defence against the above counterclaim and, accordingly,
no provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2012 in relation to these proceedings.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, a customer
claim against a subsidiary of the Group for compensation
of approximately RMB6,954,000 arising from alleged
failure on the part of the subsidiary to supply gas under
contract. The directors of the Company consider, based
on the legal advice obtained from the Group’s legal
counsel, that the subsidiary has a valid defence against
the above claim and, accordingly, no provision has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 in relation to these
proceedings.

4. IREEREE

(i)

REBEEZTE——F+_A=1+—
HIEFE  ARastHE—RBE
EBrRitEm ((HEREER]) R
IERMPHZESGREFR  BXK
BEERERESOHEREHK
BRMSARAEIHNIKEE
#) AR #407,193,0007T c R=Z
——FZ A EERMHEMITY
RARAERHHEESRER
BER - ZREEOMBEEOA
R #155,336,0007T : (i) A X
FEHAREES,771,0007T ¢ Kiii)
RATKIEARNES 2 BEEY
AR¥102,775,0007C ° ANAAE
RE - BREARREZEMZ
EERER  ARRIABHE E
REBFZHRMFEE - B
BT ——FRIF—F+=
A=+—RIFELERGE N
BHREREZEFFAELREE -

REBEZT——F+=—A=+—
HIEFE  —&2%FFEBLASEE
—RIM B AR RERIES LM E
AT - MZHBRARRELA
R#6,954,0007T - A AREER
B REAEEEARZBRE AR
R ZMBARABHENU L
REZAESUNEEE  ALEE
TE——FR-FT——F+=A
=+ —BHIFETERGETB
WERZEFAEL B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —F+_A=1+—HILFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party transactions.

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the directors
are of the view that the followings are related parties of the

Group:
Name of party Relationship
Luoyang Shunhe A company established in the PRC
with limited liability and was
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr.
Wang as at 31 December 2010.
Upon completion of the
acquisition of Wealthy Talent
Group, Luoyang Shunhe was
thereafter accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Group. Details
as set out in note 35.
WIKEE IR EBR Effectively owned 17% equity
R aa/NE] interest in Wanzhi Logistics as
(transliterated as a non-controlling shareholder
Shanxi Qinshui of a subsidiary and provided
Prefecture Chengrong financing to the Group
Investment Limited of RMB50,000,000 as disclosed

(“Chengrong Investment”)  in note 28(b).

Yangcheng Yangtai Effectively owned 20% equity
interest in Yangcheng Huiyang
as a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary.

2. EXBEALXRS

BRALR A M B HR O E M B T E
MR 5 MR - AEEEFIZ T
BERBEEALRS -

BE-_Z——_HR-_FT——F1+-A
=t—HLEEE EFRRTINES
RAEBEZBEANT

FREHEE  RE

75 b5 IIE AN —RKRPEKIZE
BRAR - KR
Z-ZFTF+A
=+—H@EE*E
FHEZ2 AR
B o MU
Wealthy Talent
GroupZ 1& + %5
JIE A0 H 18 51 BR 7=
AEEWEAR
Al BB
FMIEE35 o

IDKBBREIEE (EA— KB AR
BEREMTAR ZIEERBESR
(BRI E]) BwEEEE

Y17 % I% AN HE
= RMAEHE
REESARKE
50,000,0007t (%A
Mt sE28(b)Fr 3%

%) -

k5 9 5 2= tEm— B E 2R
ZHEERBRRE
X Yk A B R
k% 6920 % A 7~ #

Ny
S o

N

SE-CHEER TEBBEBRESREXEEARLT 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Aok 5 Y 205 e B ek
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Name of party Relationship

BN S RAER BT RIS Effectively owned 20% equity

BRAF] interest in Yangcheng Huiyang
(transliterated as as a non-controlling shareholder
Zhengzhou of a subsidiary.

Zhengcheng Energy
Technology Service
Company Limited
(“Zhengzhou Zhengcheng”)

B ESREEESE Effectively owned 20% equity
BBR A7 (transliterated interest in Yangcheng Huiyang
Yangcheng Yangtai Group as a non-controlling shareholder
Industrial Company Limited  of a subsidiary.

(“Yangcheng Yangtai”)

(@) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group
and the above related parties for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

42,

BERXBEALRS ©)

ERErFREBE RE

EINEKER (EA—HMHERQF
B AR 7 IR EE
ER AT R B B i
(FEMaErk]) FBrI20% A% A& #E

GHEEREEE (FA—RHNE LR
BEXERAF]
([ EE])

ZHEBRBRRE

B IEA (5 S

B 20 % i% A ##E

N
S o
I

@) BE=_T——-FrR=-F—F+

“RA=t—HLFE AEEH
FIBEAL 2 HETZERR

ZEHBWOT
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2012 2011
FHRESREB ZHHEHR —E—_F —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARBT T

Luoyang Shunhe Disposal of property, plant - 4,576
and equipment
&[5 AN HEWE - B NRE
Luoyang Shunhe Sale of LNG - 11,638
&[5 AN HELNG
Chengrong Investment Interest expenses 3,451 3,770
BRI & MBI X
Yangcheng Yangtai Interest expenses 492 -
(5 §415 2= MER X
~——
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group
and the above related parties for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, a subsidiary of
the Group, namely, Guangxi Beiliu Gas Company Limited
(“Guangxi Beiliu”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding dated 8 October 2010 with Luoyang Shunhe,
pursuant to which Guangxi Beiliu agreed to deliver certain
pre-sales liquefied natural gas tanks included in property, plant
and equipment with a total carrying amount of approximately
RMB4,711,000 as at 31 December 2010 to Luoyang Shunhe
for the purpose of trial-operation for a period of nine months
(up to 30 June 2011) before signing a formal sales and
purchase agreement. On 30 June 2011, before Luoyang
Shunhe entered into the Group, Guangxi Beiliu formally signed
a sales and purchase agreement to sell these tanks at a
consideration of RMB4,576,000 to Luoyang Shunhe.

During the period from 1 January 2011 to 11 July 2011, the
Group supplied LNG to Luoyang Shunhe in an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB11,638,000. During the same
period, Luoyang Shunhe was indirectly wholly-owned by Mr.
Wang. Luoyang Shunhe became a subsidiary of the Group
upon completion of the Group’s acquisition of the Wealthy
Talent Group in July 2011, further details of which are set out
in note 35. These transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions, as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The amount represents interest expenses on loans due to
the non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries as detailed
in note 28(b).

42. ERBEAETRS @

(@) B=—F——FR-_F——F+
“A=t—HLEFE  AKER
EIIRBEAT 2 METZEAR
FEBWT + (8)

(i)

(ii)

HE-_ZT-ZTF+-A=+—H
ILEFE - AEB—HHBARE
miLFRRER AR ([EL
ROR-ZZE—THE+ANBEEF
fZIBFET S — BB A =% - 1R
I BRI RRAEERTERE
B A - A TIAYE -
BRRERN BR-Z—TFE+
ZA=t—RAZEEBENAA
R#4,711,0007T 19 T8 & R AL K
ARREERS FIREIEF - LA
HEITABNER B2 ——
FRA=ZTHIEDWAEE - ©¥
—E——EXA=1H " &%H
BRI AAEEK B AR ZA
B RIERNBTEEHE - A
REARKA,576,0007C A%
JEFD PR E R o

RZZE——F—F—HE=-Z—
—F+A+—RAEHE AEEM
HEBIEFHEASTEHOARE
11,638,0007T K /RIL RAR ° £
B —EAf - JRBZ B B E % A R
BEa2EERs R _ZT——F+A
7N 52 B 52 A U BB Wealthy Talent
GroupZ 1 * J&IGIBRAK B A&
BB AR - BRE— S
BERAKIFESS ° RERFH IEK
BIER ETHRRIZE20E AT EE D
FEEERS -

BB IRSE BT & R IR AR
BERZERZ2FBFX - s R
#28(b) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —F——F+_H=1—HIFF/E

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) EZEF

(b) Balances with related parties

42. ERBEAETRS @

BEALTZ&ER

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group and the

R —FR=F——4+=

Company had the following balances with related parties: A=+—8 #AEBEKKAFE
FEATE FI&EER
(i) Amounts due from related companies () EWEEEXRFIE
The Group X5KHE
Maximum amount
outstanding
during the year
FERRE
*RESH
)
2012 2011
—E-CF “E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB%TR ARETFT AR®TR
Chengrong Investment EREE - 168 168
Yangcheng Yangtai BLAES 6,000 6,000 6,000
Nopin Engineering E4H 2,447 - 2,447
Zhengzhou Zhoncheng B &K 7,300 7,300 7,800
16,247 13,468
| —
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and ZERBRFIAREERWR - 2
repayable on demand. BYWEREEREE -
(i)  Amounts due from directors (i) EWEEE
The Group FEE
Maximum amount
outstanding
during the year
FRERE
*RESHE
)
2012 2011
~B-§ —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETT AR%TR
Wang Zhong Sheng By 691 - 691
Zhang Qing Lin BB 254 473 473
Feng San Li (Note) B=H (3 - 20 20
Shi Liang i - 55 55
Fu Shou Gang el - 20 20
945 568
| —
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 42. ERBEALTRS @
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Balances with related parties (Continued) (b) BEEEATZ&E& B
(i) Amounts due from directors (i) FEWRESRRIE
The Company b. 3/ |

Maximum amount
outstanding
during the year

FARE
FEECH
)
2012 2011
. et “T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT ARBTR

Wang Zhong Sheng 25 1,361 3,737 3,737
Feng San Li (Note) =7 (Bt at) - 20 20
Shi Liang iR - 55 55
1,361 3,812
[
The amounts due from the directors are unsecured, ZERWESFIAEEWT -
interest-free and repayable on demand. REWARENKRERE o
Note: BEE -
Feng San Li was retired on 26 November 2012. B=FMR=—E——F+—A=+
NEEE o
(iii) Amounts due to directors/non-controlling (i) ENES BT ZIFE
shareholders of subsidiaries % IR SRR IB
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and M:?,%K RIBAERR - &
repayable on demand. W/AEERER -
(iv) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (iv) FEY (FE) B A RRIE
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and RERBRFIBREER &
repayable on demand. BWEEEREE -
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

43.

44,

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including emoluments to the Company’s directors
and the chief executive as disclosed in note 9 and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is

42. EXBAEAEITRS @)

0 TEEBAEZEHMN

AEBETZERABZEHM (B1E
DRIRH IR M 10 E 2B
NARBES TBTHAER
ET&=FMEE ZBE) MT

as follows:
The Group
xEMH
2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
Short-term employee HEEERH
benefits 2,541 1,978
Post-employment benefits B Bt 1 18 7 50 26
Equity-settled share-based  LAR% # 45 & LARR 15 & E i
payment expenses pANE 53 204 7,075
Total remuneration FEN@EE N8 KA
is included in “Staff costs”  (fft3£7(a))
(note 7(a)) 2,795 9,079

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 March 2013, the Company announced that the Company
and a placing agent (“Placing Agent”) entered into a placing
agreement on 14 March 2013, whereby the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent, on a
best efforts basis, a maximum of 400,000,000 placing shares
to independent investors at a price of HK$0.25 per placing
share. The maximum net proceeds from the placing will be
approximately HK$96.4 million. Up to the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the placing has not
yet completed.

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI.
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

43. HEHREIR

R-ZE—=F=ZF+WMAH  XAFE
o ARRHE-—FRERE ([BER
BOR-_ZE—=F=ZA+WMABEZZ—
HDERE R - B - AAFE K
AEABREREBRBHEAERESR
%400,000,0000 Bl E %10 T B E
E BRESKRHEE025E T « i
& 2 &= FT 15 $UIE 15 49 596,400,000
BIL - BEZRZRAVBRRENE
HES - BERATAK ©

44 BEERBRATIRRARERA

R-B——F+-_A=+—H &=
RERNEEEET QAR REEERS
AEBERERRAR  —RKREBE
THEFTMRIHAR - BEIKES
PRARWEBREEARER R
=,
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RESULTS e

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-HL%EE

)
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
~$-ZF | _T——% CT-F —TTNF  ZETTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR | ARBTE AR®TR ARETT AR%ETR
Turnover EEE 183,834 253,849 230,989 40,056 —
Loss from operations REXBELEZBR (26,913) (15,036) (8,150) (17,645) (11,508)
Finance costs HMBER (7,214) (8.762) (0,681) (4,260) (1,844)
Gain on remeasuring existing  EUEEMEH &
interest in an AftHERE
available-for-sales BEERZ W
investment on acquisition - - 4,960 - -
Fair value (loss)/gain on other ~ Efi & BEE 2
financial assets AFEER)
Wz (17,051) 17,051 - - -
Fair value (10ss)/gain on BB ESITE
the derivative component of T EZH 2 A F
convertible bonds & (B1R) /s = (6,487) 3,223 - -
Impairment loss on goodwill 2R E 518 (2,339) (21,492) - (52,971) -
Loss before taxation BRELATEE (53,517) (34,726) (9,648) (74,876) (13,352)
Income tax (charge)/credit R (R%) /
i) (7,945) (14,609) (871) 251 -
Loss for the year from REFELEER
continuing operations ZARFERE (61,462) (49,335) (10,519) (74,625) (13,352)
(Loss)/profit for the year from ~ RE B K &£
discontinued operations EBeAFE
(B18) /& Fl - - (11,947) 15,795 (20,233)
Loss for the year REEBR (64,462) (49,335) (22,466) (58,830) (33,585)
Attributable to: THIRELE
Equity shareholders AREERBRE
of the Company (55,130) (45,016) (20,493) (58,741) (33,585)
Non-controlling interests |3 g (6,332) (4,319) (1,973) (89) -
Loss for the year REEER (61,462) (49,335) (22,466) (58,830) (33,585)
| —
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
At 31 December
®+=RA=+—AH
)
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ZE-Z§ | _Z——%F —Z-TF —ZTHE —ZT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE | ARBTE AR%TR ARETT ARETR
Total assets BEE 1,545,761 1,396,942 713,299 545,025 239,139
Total liabilities BaRE (528,058) (315,545) (258,971) (275,176) (119,009)
Non-controlling interests I (22,643) (28,975) (21,294) (2,527) -
Equity attributable to equity AR E/EZRE
shareholders el
of the Company 1,000,060 1,052,422 433,034 267,322 120,130
-
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